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W] FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT HISTORY
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2015 *—

On January 20, 2015 CTI
officially traded an additional
17,999,997 shares on the Ho
Chi Minh City Stock Exchange,
raising its charter capital from
VND 150,000,000,000 to VND
329,999,997,000.

2021 *—

On June 1, 2021, the BOD
approved the issuance of
private bonds to invest in the
exploitation and processing of
construction stone at the Thien
Tan10 quarry and to supplement

the company’s working capital.
2010 *—

On May 3, 2000,
Cuong Thuan
Co., Ltd. officially
commenced

On March 19, 2010, CTI was
officially listed on the Ho Chi
Minh City Stock Exchange — ) —e 2019
with charter capital of VND
150,000,000,000.

operations with On March 15, 2019, the Board

of Directors approved the

PPy

initial charter capital
of VND 4,612,860,000.

issuance of private bonds

to fund the development of

the company’s stone mining
business.

2016 *—

On October 21, 2016, the 2020

2007 *— On December 6,

On September 19, 2007, the
company officially converted
to a joint stock company. On
December 6,2007, Cuong Thuan
JSC became a member of the
Southern Urban and Industrial
Development Investment
Corporation (IDICO).

2008 —

Cuong Thuan JSC  was
renamed to Cuong Thuan
IDICO Development Investment
Corporation (CTI).

company increased its charter
capital to VND 429,999,970,000.

2017

On May 9, 2017, CTI established
a subsidiary named “Cuong
Thuan CTI Tourism Joint Stock
Company.” On July 29, 2017,
the company increased its
charter capital from VND
429,999,970,000 to VND
629,999,970,000 through an
Employee Stock Ownership
Plan (ESOP) and issuance to
strategic shareholders.

On January 16, 2020, the Board
of  Directors approved the
cancellation of the private bond
issuance plan according to
Resolution No. 17/2019/NQ-BOD
dated December 26, 2019. On
March 27, 2020, the BOD approved
the transfer of Tan Cang 8 quarry
to Hung Vuong Construction Co,
Ltd. for VND 400 billion. On April
10, 2020, the BOD decided not to
transfer the Phan Thiet - Dong Nai
BOT toll project. On October 8, 2020,
the BOD approved investment in
Sam CTI Investment Joint Stock
Company with a contribution of
VND 40,000,000,000, accounting
for 40% of Sam CTlI's charter capital.

2024, the People's
Committee of Dong
Nai Province issued
a decision approving
the Construction
Stone  Exploitation
and Processing
Project at Thien Tan
10 quarry, marking
an important
milestone in the
company’s strategy
for mineral resource
development  and
overall growth.
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» Certificate of Viethamese Brand for Cuong
Thuan hot mix asphalt products, awarded by
the Vietham Union of Science and Technology
Associations; .EI --

» 1SO 9001:2008 Quality Management System
Certificate, issued by the Directorate for :
Standards, Metrology and Quality of Vietnam; Eﬂ E -

s

18l

» In 2018, Cuong Thuan IDICO was the only
company in Dong Nai Province to be listed
L ny " - among the Top 50 Most Efficient Businesses

wid b _
L ! mi - » Certificate of Me.mbershlp in the Viethamese g
g Brand Community;

in Vietnam;
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» Vietnamese Brand Golden Cup for hot mix ; 1] n |
asphalt products; i tt 1K = |
| i\
» Vietnamese Brand Golden Cup for concrete !z fin !‘_—; '.
Wy |l |
drainage pipe products. l '
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W) BUSINESS SECTORS & BUSINESS LOCATIONS

BUSINESS SECTORS BUSINESS LOCATIONS

The company operates mainly in Dong Nai Province and other provinces and cities in the Southeast region

Business Sectors

of Vietnam. This is the most economically developed area in the country, with a high population and

leading GDP. It also has other advantageous socioeconomic conditions. Additionally, it is a top destination

] Design and construction of civil, industrial, transportation, and irrigation projects; for foreign direct investment (FDI) in Vietnam, particularly in the provinces of Dong Nai, Binh Duong, and

Ho Chi Minh City.

2 Site leveling and land reclamation;

Production and supply of reinforced concrete pipes using centrifugal and vibration pressing

technology, as well as hot mix asphalt;

Investment in infrastructure projects under models such as BT (Build-Transfer), BOT (Build- i P NHA DAU TU DU AN -
Kinh chiic quy khdach thu

Operate-Transfer), BOO (Build-Own-Operate), etc;

5 Processing of soil, stone, and sand;

6 Transportation of goods by road and waterway;

7 Trading of construction materials;

8 Trading and leasing of construction machinery and equipment;

9 Real estate investment and business, along with other commercial and service activities.




14 Annual Report 2024 CUONG THUAN IDICO DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT CORPORATION - CTI 15

u ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

IDICO

NGTHUAN

CORP

GOVERNANCE MODEL

The company applies a governance model in accordance
with Point g, Clause, Article 137 of the 2020 Law on Enterprises
of Vietnam. This model includes the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board,
and the General Director.

» General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS)

Comprising all voting shareholders, this is the highest
decision-making body of the Company.

» HBoard of Directors (BOD)

The managing body of the Company, with full authority to
represent the Company in deciding and executing rights
and obligations not under the jurisdiction of the GMS. The
BOD consists of 7 members and is responsible for overseeing
the General Director and other executive departments.

» Supervisory Board (BOS)

Currently composed of 3 members. Its role is to ensure
accountability and provide oversight of the BOD and
executive management in operations, accounting,
statistics, and financial reporting, ensuring accuracy,
legality, consistency, and transparency.

» Executive Board (General Director and Deputies)

Includes 1 General Director and several Deputy General
Directors, appointed by the BOD. The General Director
leads and manages daily business operations, and is
accountable to the BOD and GMS for all decisions related to
the Company’s business activities.
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a ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Corporation

Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment COMM ited

to Trust

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART DEPUTY CEO

DEPUTY CEO OF DEPUTY CEO OF DEPUTY CEO OF DEPUTY CEO OF DEPUTY CEO
DEPUTY CEO OF

ADMINISTRATION AND FINANGE CONSTRUCTION AND PRODUCTION AND PLANNING AND OF PROJECT

HUMAN RESOURCES TECHNICAL BUSINESS INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT

A DEPUTY CEO OF
LEGAL AFFAIRS

BOT PROJECT - BIEN HOA
HUMAN RESOURCES ACCOUNTING TECHNICAL DEPARTMENT BUSINESS DEPARTMENT PROJECT MANAGEMENT

DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT BYPASS ROAD BOARD 01

MECHANICAL REPAIR ECHANICAL TRANSPOR PRECAST CONCRETE QL 91-91B CAN THO - PROJECT MANAGEMENT
MATERIAL DEPARTMENT e LA AN GIANG PROJEGT COARD 07

MOTOR VEHICLE NATIONAL HIGHWAY 1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT POI CHUA 3 STONE A BOT PROJECT - ROAD
INSPECTION STATION TOLL STATION BOARD MINING PLANT 319 EXTENSION AND
INTERCHANGE WITH HO
TL 16 TOLL STATION MO KHAI THAC BA CHI MINH CITY - LONG
THANH - DAU GIAY

XUAN HOA
EXPRESSWAY

LEGAL DEPARTMENT

PROJECT BIDDING BOARD

NATIONAL HIGHWAY 91

TOLL STATION

XUAN HOA STONE MINING
PLANT BOT PROJECT -
DEDICATED ROAD
FOR TRANSPORTING

DOMESTIC CONSTRUCTION
WATERWAY PORT

GAS STATION
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SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

No. Company Name

Dong Thuan
1 Investment Joint
Stock Company

Address

No. 315 Vo Nguyen Giap
Street, Phuoc Tan Ward,
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province, Vietnam.

Main Business Activity

Investment in the construction,
exploitation, and business of urban
technical infrastructure under the
(BOT)
contract method; Construction
transportation

Build-Operate-Transfer

of civil works,

infrastructure, etc.

Real estate business, ownership or
lease of land use rights.

CTl's
Ownership

Ratio

83.10%

No.

4

. rrmmemn
(SRR RRT]
IANL Y]

i

Company Name

Cuong Thuan CTI
Vehicle Registry
Corporation

ER_R__ 0§ 1 |
.

Address

No. 370/2A Vo Nguyen
Giap Street, Phuoc Tan
Ward, Bien Hoa City,
Dong Nai Province,

Vietham.

Main Business Activity

Sale of automobiles and other
motor vehicles.

Maintenance and repair  of
automobiles and other motor

vehicles.

Technical inspection and analysis;

Details: Vehicle inspection for

motor vehicles.

CTI's

Ownership

Ratio

93.67%

Quoc Lo 91 Can Tho -
2  An Giang Investment
JSC

No. 315 Vo Nguyen Giap
Street, Phuoc Tan Ward,
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province, Vietnam.

Construction of transportation
infrastructure. Investment in the
construction of transportation
works (under the Build-Operate-
Transfer (BOT) contract method);
Construction of various types of
buildings, other civil engineering

works; Toll collection services.

59.57%

BOT 319 Cuong Thuan
CTlIJsC

No. 315 Vo Nguyen Giap
Street, Phuoc Tan Ward,
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province, Vietham.

Construction of transportation
infrastructure (under the Build-
Operate-Transfer (BOT) contract
method); Construction of public
utility works; Construction of
various types of buildings, other
civil engineering works;  Toll

collection services.

67.53%

An Thuan Phat BOT
Investment JSC

No. 315 Vo Nguyen Giap
Street, Phuoc Tan Ward,
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province, Vietnam.

Construction of transportation
infrastructure (under the Build-
Operate-Transfer (BOT) contract
method); Construction of public
utility works; Various types of
buildings, other civil engineering
works; Toll collection services.

95.25%

Cuong Thuan CTI
Tourist Corporation

No. 01B, Ton Duc Thang
Street, Group 3B, KPS,
Vinh An Town, Vinh
Cuu District, Dong Nai
Province, Vietham.

Hotel and guesthouse business,
restaurant and catering services,
tour operation, domestic waterway
passenger transportation...

100.00%




20

W) DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION
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Main goals

With the motto: “ALL FOR CUSTOMER SATISFACTION”, Cuong Thuan IDICO strives to become a leading
brand in Vietnam in the field of construction materials, reinforced concrete pipes using vibration

pressing technology, and the construction of infrastructure works.
Mission:

Increase value for shareholders, improve the material and spiritual well-being of employees,

and bring benefits to society.

Through the quality of products, works, and comprehensive services, we aim to bring satisfaction

to customers across all market segments.

Construct high-quality projects with aesthetic value, create infrastructure foundations for local

development, and contribute to the transformation of the country.

Medium & long-term strategies

Product development

Improve technology to enhance quality, reduce costs, lower product prices, and strengthen

core product competitiveness.

Develop new products to meet market demands in the field of transport socialization and

social infrastructure construction.

Focus on priority areas such as mining (stone and sand quarries), and petroleum business

sectors approved by competent authorities.

Integrate enterprise development with environmental protection.
Market development
»  Proactively seek stable sources of input materials.
» Expand and develop the domestic consumption market.

»  Seek opportunities to export products to neighboring countries.

CUONG THUAN IDICO DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT CORPORATION - CTI

Environmental goals

The Company always pays close attention to environmental protection
activities and is committed to strictly complying with environmental
protection regulations according to the goals set out. During the entire
production and business process, the main objective is to minimize the
use of products, raw materials, and substances containing harmful
components that negatively affect the environment.

Responding to the global green economy trend, the Company makes
maximum efforts to use environmentally friendly and recycled materials.
This is not only a cost-saving strategy but also plays an important role
in protecting the environment, reducing waste, and minimizing negative
impacts on nature.

The Company also places special importance on promoting
environmentalawareness amongits staff. Activities such as afforestation,
minimizing the negative effects of emissions and wastewater, and
stopping pollution-causing behaviors such as forest burning or
releasing toxic substances into the environment are always prioritized
and regularly organized. The Company considers this an important part

of its sustainable and community-responsible development strategy.

Social and community goals

The Company continuously maintains and improves its organizational
structure and management system in accordance with established
standards, aiming to create sustainable value for shareholders,
employees, and society. This not only reflects the Company’s
commitment to operational efficiency but also demonstrates its social
responsibility to the community.

The Company is committed to building a safe working environment
where there are no factors harmful to the health and life of workers,
partners, customers, and the community. Safety measures are always
strictly implemented and inspected to ensure a healthy workplace and
the protection of everyone’s rights.

In addition, the Company actively supports local charitable activities
and participates in community-focused projects. Participation in such
activities is not only a responsibility but also a long-term commitment
by the Company to contribute to sustainable development and improve

the quality of life for the community.
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W risks
ECONOMIC RISKS

Cuong Thuan IDICO operates in multiple sectors,
primarily focusing on mineral resource exploitation,
construction, and operation of BOT projects in
the Southern and Western regions. Due to these
characteristics, CTlI's business activities are directly
affected by macroeconomic fluctuations. When
the economy maintains stable growth, inflation
is well-controlled, and investment remains at a
reasonable level, it creates favorable conditions for
the Company to grow. Conversely, in the case of
economic recession, surging inflation, or decreased
investment, CTI's business results will certainly
suffer negative impacts.

In 2024, Vietnam continued to face economic
challenges from global geopolitical instability,
sluggish recovery in international trade, and weak
demand in major markets. Strategic competition
among major economies, the Russia—-Ukraine
conflict, and military tensions in the Middle East
are key factors putting considerable pressure on
the global economy, thereby affecting Vietnam.
However, according to the General Statistics Office,
Vietnam’s GDP in 2024 grew by 7.09%, significantly
exceeding the growth target of 6-6.5% and much
higher than the same period last year.

Meanwhile, the real estate sector continued to face

many obstacles due to the market's incomplete
recovery from prolonged difficulties. The corporate
bond market remains unstable, with rising delays in
principal and interest payments, putting pressure on
the economy as a whole and on related enterprises.
Although the consumer price index is forecasted to
rise slightly, the level remains insufficient to drive
a clear economic recovery. Regarding inflation,
although there are signs of improvement, it is still
high, leading to increased pressure on production
and operational costs. Fuel prices, though slightly
lower, are still insufficient to completely eliminate
cost pressures in production and construction.

Solution: In response to these circumstances, CTI
has proactively implemented decisive solutions to
effectively cope with economic risks. The Company
places special emphasis on enhancing the control,
analysis, and forecasting of macroeconomic
developments that may impact business
operations. In addition, CTI has developed flexible
response scenarios and contingency plans to
minimize the adverse effects of economic and
geopolitical fluctuations. These efforts will help the
Company maintain stability and aim for sustainable
development in the future.

CUONG THUAN IDICO DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT CORPORATION - CTI 23

LEGAL RISKS

As a publicly listed joint stock company on the
Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE), the
Company’s operations are governed by the legal
system, policies, and regulations of Vietnham. These
legal documents include, but are not limited to,
the Law on Enterprises, the Securities Law, relevant
Decrees and Circulars on the stock market, as well
as regulations and decisions from HOSE and VSDC.
Especially in capital mobilization activities, the
Company uses private placement bonds, meaning
all bond-related activities must comply with
regulations from state agencies and bondholders,
ensuring transparency and legal compliance.

In terms of production and business operations,
the Company must comply with the Construction
Law, Bidding Law, Contractor Law, and Investment
Law, as well as related sub-law documents such
as the Decree on Investment Project Management,
Decree on Construction Quality Management,
Decree on Public-Private Partnership Investment,
and other relevant regulations. Especially during
its operations, the Company must apply for
various licenses and approvals from Government
agencies, Ministries, Departments, and in some
cases, must amend or renew licenses as required
by the competent authorities.

Furthermore, obtaining licenses for mineral
exploitation—especially stone quarrying—is
becoming increasingly difficult. Environmental
protection requirements are also becoming stricter,
increasing the complexity of legal procedures
related to mining operations. The issuance or
extension of mining licenses, particularly for deeper
exploitation, requires strict compliance with legal
regulations and often faces challenges related to
licensing conditions or changes.

Legal risks to the Company may arise when legal
regulations—especially those related to securities
activities and business operations—change rapidly
or unexpectedly. This can negatively impact the
Company’s operations and business performance.
Given that Vietham'’s legal system is still evolving,
legal changes are inevitable. This is evident through
recent amendments and enactments of key laws
such as the revised Law on Real Estate Business and
the revised Housing Law.

Solution: In light of these legal changes, the
Company is always proactive in updating the
latest legal documents related to its production
and business fields and other related areas.
The Company also develops appropriate legal
strategies and promptly adjusts in each period to

protect its interests and maintain efficient business
operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS

The Company’'s construction stone mining
operations are limited by finite reserves and also
have certain impacts on the natural environment
and surrounding communities. The mining,
processing, and transportation of stone products
may negatively affect ecosystems and significantly
alter the landscape of the mining area. Aware of
this issue, the Company strictly complies with all
government environmental protection regulations

and policies.

INTEREST RATE RISKS

In 2024, the global economy continued to face many
challenges due to geopolitical uncertainties and
monetary policy shifts inmajor economies. Although
inflation showed signs of easing, it remained at a
high level, prompting many countries to maintain
tight monetary policies, particularly through interest
rate hikes. In Vietnam, the State Bank reduced
lending rates by 0.44% to support businesses and
citizens while still controlling inflation. This decision
is expected to have a notable impact on the general

interest rate level in the market.

Cuong Thuan IDICO Investment and Development
Joint Stock Company uses both short-term and
long-term loans to fund its operations. Therefore,
any fluctuation in interest rates can directly
impact its financial costs and business efficiency.
When interest rates rise, borrowing costs increase,
resulting in greater financial burdens and negatively

affecting the Company’s profitability.

Solution: The Company focuses on investing in
modern equipment and technology, continuously
upgrading and improving machinery and
production processes to minimize negative impacts
on the environment and landscape. In addition,
the Company implements various environmental
protection measures throughout its operations,
such as minimizing air, water, and soil pollution,
optimizing resource reuse, and closely controlling

waste generation.

These environmental protection efforts not only
ensure full legal compliance but also contribute
positively to natural resource conservation
and enhance the quality of life for surrounding

communities.

Solution: To proactively manage and minimize
interest rate risks, CTl is implementing measures
such as restructuring short-term and long-term
loans and optimizing the use of financial leverage.
Additionally, the Company closely monitors market
interest rate trends to develop the most flexible and
appropriate financial strategies. The Company’s top
priority is to maintain a stable and secure financial
structure, ensuring effective response to market
fluctuations while continuing to aim for sustainable

development in the future.

CUONG THUAN IDICO DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT CORPORATION - CTI
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W2 risks

COMPETITIVE RISKS

As Vietnam continues to deepen its international
economic integration, opportunities for domestic
enterprises have increased, but so has the level of
competition. The participation of foreign companies
in the domestic market has intensified competition,
especiallyinthe field of transportation infrastructure

and construction.

Additionally, both domestic and international
enterprises and joint ventures have strong market
influence and actively participate in bidding for
transportation construction projects, reducing the
Company’'s chances of securing such projects.
With the rapid development of transportation
infrastructure and increasing demands for the
quality of toll roads, enterprises are now required to
focus not only on the construction phase but also
on the maintenance and post-construction quality

management.

In response, Cuong Thuan IDICO Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company consistently
monitors and responds quickly to market changes.

The Company is well aware of the fierce competition

in the field of transportation infrastructure
construction and BOT toll projects. To ensure
OTHER RISKS

sustainable growth, the Company is expanding and
diversifying its operations into new areas such as
real estate, manufacturing, and entertainment and
tourism services. At the same time, the Company
continues to maintain and develop its traditional
sectors such as transportation construction, pre-
cast concrete pipe trading, and construction

materials business.

Although the Company has many years of

experience in  transportation  infrastructure
construction, to enhance competitiveness, it needs
to continue investing in technological development,
improving engineering capabilities, and upgrading
workforce quality. These efforts will help the
Company maintain its competitive edge over both

domestic and foreign rivals.

Solution: To ensure sustainable development in
the future, the Company must proactively identify
and evaluate the effectiveness of its business

operations, thereby proposing appropriate
solutions to improve competitiveness—especially in
investment activities—helping the Company adapt

and grow more effectively in the new era.

In addition to the key risks mentioned above, Cuong Thuan IDICO Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company also faces other force majeure risks, including natural disasters, wars, or widespread outbreaks
of dangerous diseases. If these risks occur, they could have extremely serious consequences, directly
affecting the Company’s operations and development. In this context, the Company always proactively
develops operational scenarios that take into account the most adverse situations. The Company
implements measures to respond to these risks, such as preparing backup resources, improving risk
management systems, and ensuring the safety of its assets and personnel. The goal is to minimize

damage and maintain stable operations even under difficult or unexpected circumstances.

Solution: Furthermore, the Company places great emphasis on building partnerships and cooperation
with organizations both within and outside the industry to enhance its ability to respond to emergencies.
This helps the Company not only protect its interests but also ensure sustainable development under all

economic and environmental conditions.
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W] BuUsINESS OPERATIONS
RESULTS OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS DURING THE YEAR

Unit: VND million

2023 2024

%2024/2023

Indicator
Value Proportion Value Proportion

Revenue from petroleum sales 30.804 3,78% 35.512 319% 115,28%
Revenue from sales of processed stone
) ) 40.786 5,01% 32.426 2,92% 79,50%

and quarrying services
Revenue from construction and
. . 232.378 28,53% 497.629 44,77% 214,15%
installation works
Revenue from toll collection at toll stations 482.734 59,27% 506.749 45,59% 104,97%
Revenue from tourism and restaurant

) 22.879 2,81% 19.541 1,76% 85,41%
services
Other revenue 4.825 0,59% 19.733 1,78% 408,97%
Total 814.406 100% 1.111.590 100% 136,49%

0.59%
m Revenue from

petroleum sales

2.81% 1.76% 1.78% ,_3.19%

W

m Other revenue 2023 2024

2.92%

:

m Revenue from sales of
processed stone and
quarrying services

= Revenue from
construction and

installation works 45.59%

Revenue from toll 59.27%
collection at toll
stations

Revenue from tourism
and restaurant
services
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In 2024, the Company’'s business activities
experienced notable growth with total revenue
reaching VND 1,111,590 million, an increase of
36.49% compared to 2023.

Among this, revenue from construction and
installation projects witnessed a breakthrough,
reaching VND 497,629 million, marking a growth
of 114.15% and accounting for the largest share
in the revenue structure (44.77%).

This growth was partly driven by the
acceleration of public investment, especially
as the Viethamese government prioritized
disbursement of infrastructure development
funds, creating favorable conditions for
construction enterprises to participate in key
national and local projects.

Additionally, toll collection activities continued
to play an important role, contributing 45.59%
of total revenue and increasing slightly by
4.97% compared to the previous year. This
was thanks to the stable recovery in traffic

PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO PLAN

Indicator

2024 Plan

volume following the COVID-19 pandemic and
the growing demand for transportation and
logistics in line with overall economic recovery.

However, some other business segments
such as tourism services, restaurants, and
processed stone products and quarry
services recorded revenue declines of 14.59%
and 20.50%, respectively. This was due to
increasing market competition and fluctuating
demand, especially as the real estate and
civil construction sectors remained in slower
recovery than expected, impacting the
demand for construction materials and related
auxiliary services.

Overall, 2024 marked positive developments
for the Company, particularly with the strong
breakthrough in the construction segment.
Amid expansionary fiscal policies and
supportive macroeconomic conditions, the
Company has many opportunities to leverage
its competitive advantages and expand market
share in the near future.

Unit: VND million

2024 Actual % Actual vs. Plan

Total Revenue 1.184.223 1.111.590 93,87%

Net Profit After Tax

104.166 116.159 m,51%

Although total revenue did not meet the set target, the Company still recorded a very positive net
profit thanks to effective cost control. Notably, interest expenses in 2024 saw a sharp decline of
15.11% compared to the previous year, mainly due to the Company’s proactive redemption of bond
tranches and reduction of long-term debt. In addition, the favorable interest rate environment
during the year enabled the Company to flexibly choose optimal funding sources, significantly
reducing financial expenses. Although general and administrative expenses increased in line
with construction revenue, the rise remained within a controllable range. By the end of 2024, net
profit after tax reached VND 116,159 million, achieving 111.51% of the plan.
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WE] ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL

LIST OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

As of December 31, 2024

No. Member Position Number of Shares Ownership

Owned Percentage
1 Mr.Nguyen Xuan Quang General Director 1,627,430 2,58%
2 Mr.Nguyen Xuan Cuong Deputy General Director 419,958 0,67%
3 Mr.Nguyen Van Khang Deputy General Director 440,000 0,70%
4  Mr. Doi Hung Cuong Deputy General Director 1,100 0,002%
5 Mr.Pham Thanh Quang Deputy General Director - -
6 Mr.Vu Tien Dung Deputy General Director 3,850 0,006%

7  Ms. Pham Mai Thu Deputy General Director

8 Mr. Bui Tien Vuong Chief Accountant
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EXECUTIVE BOARD PROFILE

1IMr. Nguyen Xuan Quang

Member of the BOD and CEO

Professional qualifications: Road construction engineer
Current position at another organization:

«  Chairman of the Board of Directors of Dong Thuan Investment Joint Stock Company

Number of shares held at present: 1.627.430 shares, accounting for 2,58% of the charter capital

Work experience

me Lo
Head of the Mechanized Vehicle Team at An Binh Company - Ministry of Defense

(BQP)
Director of the Mechanized Construction Enterprise at An Binh Company - BQP

03/1993 - 06/2000

06/2000 - 09/2004
09/2004 - 05/2005
05/2005 - 03/2008

Deputy Director at An Binh Company - BQP

Officer at Corps 4 - Ministry of Defense

Advisor to the Board of Directors at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment
03/2008 - 04/2009 .
Joint Stock Company

03/2008 - 02/2013 Chairman of the Board of Directors at Dong Thuan Investment Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Directors cum CEO at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development
27/02/2013 - Present .
Investment Joint Stock Company

Mr. Nguyen Van Khang

Board Member and Deputy General Dire¢

Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Finance
Current position at another organization:

« Director of Dong Thuan Investment Joint Stock Company;

+  Chairman of the Board of Directors of Quéc 16 91Investment Joint Stock Company, Can Tho — An Giang.

Number of shares held at present: 440,000 shares, accounting for 0.70% of the charter capital

Work experience

tme lpositer
1998 - 2000 General Accountant at An Binh Company - Ministry of Defense
2000 - 05/2005
06/2005 - 08/2007

Head of Accounting at the Mechanized Construction Enterprise, An Binh Company

Head of the Mechanized Construction Enterprise at An Binh Joint Stock Company

2005 - 09/2007 Deputy Financial Director at Cuong Thuan Co,, Ltd.

09/2007 - 01/2008
01/2008 - 03/2010

Deputy CEO of Finance at Cuong Thuan Joint Stock Company

Deputy CEO at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Directors cum Deputy CEO at Cuong Thuan IDICO
15/03/2010 - Present '
Development Investment Joint Stock Company;
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EXECUTIVE BOARD PROFILE

Mr. Nguyen Xuan Cuong

Deputy General Director

Professional qualifications: Bachelor's degree in Business Administration

Current position at another organization:

«  Branch Director of Cuong Thuan IDICO Investment and Development Joint Stock Company.
« Director of An Thuan Phat BOT Investment Joint Stock Company

« Deputy Director of Dong Thuan Investment Joint Stock Company

Number of shares held at present: 419.958 shares, accounting for 0,67% of the charter capital

Work experience

e Lo

2014 - 2016 Business Specialist at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment JSC

11/2016 - 04/2018 Branch Director at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment JSC

04/2018 - 06/2022  Branch Director at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment JSC

Member of the Board of Directors at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment

07/2022 - 04/2023
Jsc

07/2022 - Present Deputy General Director at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment JSC

Mr. Pham Thanh Quang

Deputy General Director

Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Economics
Current position at another organization: None

Number of shares held at present: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
Work experience

e oo
2000 - 2007 Sales Staff at Cuong Thuan Co,, Ltd.
2007 - 08/2010

Sales Manager at Cuong Thuan Joint Stock Company

08/2010 - Present Deputy CEO at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development Investment Joint Stock Company.
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Mr. Doi Hung Cuong

Member of the Board of Directors cum Deputy General Dir

Professional qualifications: Electronics Engineer

Current position at another organization:

» Member of the Board of Directors of QL91 Can Tho — An Giang Investment Joint Stock Company
»  Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of BOT 319 Cudng Thudn CTI Joint Stock Company

Number of shares held at present: 1.100 shares, accounting for 0,002% of the charter capital

Work experience
e Jposion
2002 - 2003 Technical Staff at Hoang Anh International Transport Joint Stock Company

2003 - 2005 Technical Staff at An Binh - Ministry of National Defense
2005 - 09/2007

Deputy Head of Technical Department at Cuong Thuan Limited Liability Company

09/2007 - 01/2008 Deputy Head of Technical Department at Cuong Thuan Joint Stock Company

Deputy Director of Construction Technical at Cuong Thuan IDICO Development

01/2008 - 03/2009 Investment Joint Stock Company

03/2009 - 05/2021  General Director at BOT 319 Cuong Thuan CTI Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Directors and Deputy General Director at Cuong Thuan

07/05/2021 - Present IDICO Development Investment Joint Stock Company.

Mr Vu Tien Dung

Member of the Board of Directors cum Deputy General Direc

Professional qualifications: Master of Economics
Current position at another organization:
« Deputy General Director of Dong Thuan Investment Joint Stock Company

Number of shares held at present: 3.850 shares, accounting for 0,006% of the charter capital

Work experience

e Lo

2004 - 2006 Employee at An Binh Company

Director of Ready-Mix Concrete Plant at Cudng Thudn IDICO Devel-opment

2007- 2010 Investment Joint Stock Company

2011 - 2019 Technical Director at Cudng Thudn IDICO Development Investment Joint Stock
Company
Technical Director at Cudng Thudn IDICO Development Investment Joint Stock
Company

2019 - Present Deputy Director at D&ng Thudn Development Investment Joint Stock Company

Head of Corporate Governance

Authorized Information Disclosure Representative

Member of the Board of Directors and Deputy CEO at Cudng Thudn IDICO

05/2023 - Present Development Investment Joint Stock Company.
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EXECUTIVE BOARD PROFILE

Ms. Pham Mai Thu

Deputy General Director

Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Economic Law, Master of Economics

Current position at another organization:

«  Member of the Board of Directors of Cuong Thuan CTI Motor Vehicle Inspection Joint Stock Company;
«  Member of the Board of Directors of Cuong Thuan CTI BOT 319 Joint Stock Company;

«  Member of the Board of Directors of Dong Thuan Investment Joint Stock Company;

«  Member of the Board of Directors of Cuong Thuan CTI Tourism Joint Stock Company

Number of shares held at present: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.

Qua trinh cong tac

1996 - 1999 Accountant at Charoen Pokphan Vietnam Livestock Co.,, Ltd.

2000 - 2001 Accounting Manager at Charoen Pokphan Vietnam Livestock Co,, Ltd.
2002 - 2003 Chief Accountant at Charoen Pokphan Vietham Livestock Co., Ltd.
2004 - 2008 Chief Accountant at DD AVIVA Technical Co., Ltd.

2009 - 05/2014 Chief Accountant at B&ng Thudn Investment Joint Stock Company

Deputy CEO in charge of finance and Chief Accountant at Cudng Thudn IDICO

06/2014 - 05/2023 Development Investment Joint Stock Company

Deputy CEO in charge of finance at Cudng Thudn IDICO Development Investment

01/2014 - Present Joint Stock Company.

..........
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Mr. Bui Tien Vuong

Chief Accountant

Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Economics.
Current position at another organization:

»  Chief Accountant of Cuéng Thudn CTI Motor Vehicle Inspection Joint Stock Company

Number of shares held at present: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital
Work experience

RN

Accounting Specialist at An Binh Company

2002 - 2004 Deputy Head of Accounting Department at Cudng Thudn IDICO Development
Investment Joint Stock Company
2012 - 6/2014 Chief Accountant at IDICO Dong Nai Construction and Building Materials

Investment Joint Stock Company

Chief Accountant at Quéc 16 91 Can Tho - An Giang Investment Joint Stock

07/2014 - Present
Company

Chief Accountant at Cuéng Thudn IDICO Development Investment Joint Stock

05/2019 - 05/2023 Company

05/2023 - 01/2024 Chief Accountant at Cudng Thudn CTIMechanized Inspection Joint Stock Company

Chief Accountant at Cudng Thudn IDICO Development Investment Joint Stock

17/01/2024 - Present Company.

LIST OF CHANGES IN THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS IN 2024

Executive Board Member Position

Appointment Date Termination Date

Ms. Pham Mai Thu Chief Accountant 01/05/2023 17/01/2024

Mr. Bui Tien Vuong Chief Accountant )1/2024 -
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THE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Classification Type Quani Percentage
(people)
A By Education Level 358
1 University and higher 53 14,80%
2 College and intermediate level 10 30,73%
3 Primary and technical workers 137 38,27%
4 General workers 58 16,20%
B By Employment Contract Type 358
1 Fixed-term contract (1 to 3 years) 50 13,97%
2 Indefinite-term contract 308 86,03%
C ByGender 358
1 Male 299 83,52%
2 Female 59 16,48%

AVERAGE INCOME

Indicator

Total number of employees (persons) 319 315 416 358

Average monthlyincome (VND/person/month) ~ 14.230.000  14.894.000  15.670.000  15.262.000

CUONG THUAN IDICO DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT CORPORATION - CTI 39

Total number of employees 2024

a0m ) 358 ..o

Average income 2024

@mﬁ_’h 15.262.000 VND/person/month
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HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

Training

The Company fully recognizes that the quality of human resources is a
core factor determining success in business operations. Therefore, the
Company consistently facilitates opportunities for officers, employees, and
workers to participate in regular training programs throughout the year.
These training programs are specially designed to enhance employees’
competencies, skills, and work performance, enabling them to meet job
requirements effectively and adapt to market changes.

The Company’s training programs are thoroughly researched and
ensure high quality, focusing on the comprehensive development of the
workforce. Investment in training not only increases labor productivity but
also reduces production costs, boosts profitability, and improves service
quality. This approach helps the Company strengthen its competitive
position and deliver optimal value to customers and partners.

Recruitment

Human capital is always considered the most critical factor, playing a
decisive role in the success or failure of a business. With this in mind, the
Company not only emphasizes training policies but also pays special
attention to sourcing high-quality personnel right from the recruitment

stage. A transparent and methodical recruitment policy has been !
developed to attract candidates with the qualifications and experience
aligned with job requirements.

The Company’'s HR management team bases recruitment strategies on
actual needs, operational plans, and both short- and long-term objectives.
Candidates are carefully evaluated and clearly informed about attractive
compensation policies and comprehensive training programs for new
hires. This helps the Company attract talents and motivates them to stay
and grow with the Company sustainably.

Work Environment

The work environment plays an essential role in attracting and
retaining talent, building a positive corporate culture, and enhancing
the Company’s reputation. Acknowledging this, the Company strives to
create a friendly, professional, and modern workplace where employees
can maximize their potential. The Company continuously connects with
and learns from leading enterprises in the industry while also listening to
employees’ feedback to improve the work environment.

In addition to boosting morale, the Company invests in modern facilities,
ensuring a clean, safe, and well-ventilated workspace. Work areas are
logically arranged to optimize efficiency and comfort. Employees are
equipped with the necessary tools, from modern working equipment
to standardized personal protective gear and occupational hygiene
resources. These efforts not only enhance the quality of the work
environment but also motivate long-term employee commitment and
contribution to the Company’s sustainable development.

Salary, Bonus, Welfare, and Benefits

The Company’'s compensation and benefits policies are designed not
only to support staff in participating in training and skill enhancement
activities but also to foster a work environment that promotes both
personal and collective growth. The Company regularly organizes internal
emulation movements, accompanied by clear and fair reward policies
for outstanding individuals and teams contributing to the Company’s
development. All contributions are duly recognized and rewarded,
thereby encouraging employee morale and long-term loyalty.

Moreover, the Company strictly complies with labor laws regarding
mandatory insurance regimes, including social insurance, health
insurance, and unemployment insurance. This ensures the legitimate
rights of employees and reflects the Company’s commitment to employee
welfare, building a stable and sustainable working environment.
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WE) INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND PROJECT
IMPLEMENTATION

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS i BT

As of December 31, 2024, the Company held held-to-maturity investments in the form of term deposit
contracts with joint stock commercial banks, with terms ranging from 6 to 12 months and interest rates
ranging from 2.9% to 5.5% per annum, totaling VND 7,476,411,762.

i

FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Dong Thuan Investment Joint Stock Company

An Thuan Phat BOT Investment Joint Stock Company

Unit: VND Unit: VND
Indicator 2024/2023 Indicator 2024/2023
Total Assets 1.072.083.031.550 1.121.091.793.081 104,57% Total Assets 165.763.347.431 148.277.009.747 89,45%
Net Revenue 266.053.455.639 248.738.116.081 93,49% Net Revenue 36.386.305.979 46.860.071.297 128,78%
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 87.688.916.981 90.917.573.105 103,68% Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 14.318.833.775 18.422.916.852 128,66%
Financial Income 13.179.951 10.926.796 82,90% Financial Income 6.076.276 2.327.008 38,30%
Selling Expenses - - ~ Selling Expenses - - -
General and Administrative Expenses 36.123.614.257 38.405.866.827 106,32% General and Administrative Expenses 7.521.282.965 7.959.809.239 105,83%
Financial Expenses 42.492.432.989 26.218.156.404 61,70% Financial Expenses 12.185.449.087 10.520.239.891 86,33%
Operating Profit 99.761.644.363 93.207.446.541 93,43% Operating Profit 1.866.816.428 9.959.432.323 533,50%
Other Profit - - - Other Profit -1.554.941 -2.747 0,18%
Profit Before Tax 99.761.644.363 93.207.446.541 93,43% Profit Before Tax 1.665.261.480 9.959.429.576 598,07%
Profit After Tax 94.773.562.145 88.547.074.214 93,43% Profit After Tax 1.665.261.480 9.959.429.576 598,07%
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FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Can Tho - An Giang National Highway 91 Investment Joint Stock Company

Cuong Thuan CTI Vehicle Inspection Joint Stock Company

Unit: VND Unit: VND
2024/2023 2024/2023
Total Assets 1.502.558.025.079 1.552.479.849.354 103,32% Total Assets 32.820.035.405 33.188.081.714 101,12%
Net Revenue 103.529.409.434 114.523.953.702 110,62% Net Revenue 10.259.487.422 14.407.501.521 140,43%
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 21.468.413.421 22.727.106.808 105,86% Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 4.614.078.887 7.439.735.806 161,24%
Financial Income 8.793.964 124.920.775 1420,53% Financial Income 1.610.981 2.236.484 138,83%
Selling Expenses - - - Selling Expenses - - -
General and Administrative Expenses 18.128.357.072 20.159.482.183 m,20% General and Administrative Expenses 5.464.269.138 6.889.824.939 126,09%
Financial Expenses 72.172.530.699 74.429.789.779 103,13% Financial Expenses - - -
Operating Profit -13.231.497.760 -2.667.504.293 20,16% Operating Profit 155.750.378 80.177.260 51,48%
Other Profit - - - Other Profit 35.860.820 (767.230) -2,14%
Profit Before Tax -13.231.497.760 -2.667.504.293 20,16% Profit Before Tax 191.610.450 79.410.030 41,44%
Profit After Tax -13.231.497.760 -3.720.551.233 28,12% Profit After Tax 153.235.633 63.317.633 41,32%
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FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Cuong Thuan CTI BOT 319 Joint Stock Company

Unit: VND
Total Assets 811.424.650.269 791.579.415.876 97,55%
Net Revenue 66.764.452.660 96.845.055.555 145,05%
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 12.796.100.443 17.081.211.501 133,49%
Financial Income 246.156.174 174.880.085 71,04%

Selling Expenses - - -

General and Administrative Expenses 10.427.363.376 9.071.560.734 87,00%
Financial Expenses 60.043.090.645 61.143.118.773 101,83%
Operating Profit -22.255.945.630 9.724.044.632 244%

Other Profit - - -

In 2024, CTI's projects continued to be actively implemented

Profit Before Tax -22.256.125.630 9.724.044.632 244% : : :
and achieved several key milestones. Notably, in the Phuoc Tan

Profit After Tax -99956.125.630 9.724.044.632 244% Residential Area project, the Company accelerated land clearance

efforts, resulting in an increase in long-term construction in
progress assets from VND 370,531 million (as of January 1,2024) to
VND 490,819 million (as of December 31, 2024). Another significant
development was the Thien Tan 10 construction stone quarry
project, which officially received investment approval, marking
a major step toward expanding the Company’s mining and
processing operations for construction stone. At the same time,
key projects such as Phase 1 of Road 25C — Nhon Trach, the Can
Tho — Hau Giang Expressway, the Social Housing Project in Tam

Hoa Ward (Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province), and the Tan An

Industrial Cluster Construction Project are all being implemented
by the Company in accordance with the planned schedule.
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FINANCIAL SITUATION
Unit: Million VND

Indicator % 2024[2023

Total asset value 4.515.715 4.561.348 101,01%

Net revenue 814.388 1.111.590 136,49%

Profit from business operations 93.657 125.649 134,16%
Other income (1.300) (480) 36,95%
Profit before tax 92.357 125.169 135,53%

Profit after tax 80.034 116.159 145,14%

Profit after tax

PROFIT 1] 6.1 5 9 Million VND

In2024, boththe globaland Viethamese economies continued their strongrecovery
momentum, with Vietnam recording an impressive GDP growth rate of 7.09%
compared to the previous year. Embracing this general trend, Cuong Thuan CTI
effectively leveraged opportunities from the Government’s acceleration of public
investment disbursement, resulting in a robust 36.49% year-on-year increase in
net revenue. Core business segments such as construction and installation made
significant strides, driven by the successful implementation of key projects in Hau
Giang — Ca Mau and Bien Hoa — Vung Tau. Meanwhile, the toll collection segment
maintained stable growth, supported by increased traffic volume at BOT toll
stations and appropriate adjustments to service pricing. However, certain sectors
such as construction stone, tourism, and restaurant services faced some objective
challenges, primarily due to licensing issues in quarry operations and a decline in
local tourism demand. Thanks to its flexible business strategies and effective cost
management, Cuong Thuan CTI concluded 2024 with a notable after-tax profit
of VND 116,159 million, representing a strong growth of 45.14% compared to the
previous year.
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W] FINANCIAL SITUATION . o
Liquidity Ratios
Two liquidity ratios of CTlI have shown opposite trends, reflecting the changes in the Company’s
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS financial situation. Specifically, the current ratio increased from 0.59 to 0.64, mainly due to a
significant rise in work-in-progress costs for projects, increasing from VND 169,370 million to VND
340,623 million (a 101.11% increase),
0.70 0.64
Indicator while short-term debts grew at a 0.60 0.59
slower pace. On the other hand, the 0.50
Liquidity Indicators quick ratio (excluding inventory in @ 0.40 0.3
current assets) decreased from 0.32 £ 030
. . to 0.19, also due to the significant 0.20 019
Current Ratio times 0,59 0,64
increase in work-in-progress costs. 0.10 .
1
Despite the contrasting movements, 0.00
Quick Ratio times 03 019 both ratios tell a similar story: CTl is 2023 2024
accelerating the implementation m Current Ratio  m Quick Ratio
Capital Structure Indicators of investment and construction
projects, opening promising revenue
Debt/Total Assets Ratio % 68,76 66,59 growth prospects for the coming years.
2
Debt/Equity Ratio % 220,] 199,30
Operational Efficiency Indicators 4 . .
P Y Capital Structure Indicators
By the end of 2024,the Company’s debt structure showed notable changes comparedtothe previous
Inventory Turnover cycles 2,54 2,72 ) ) )
5 year, primarily due to the flexible 550.00% )
capital adjustment strategy to 220.12%
199.30%
Total Asset Turnover cycles RS 0 adapt to actual business operations.  200.00%
Specifically, with the completion
Profitability Indicators of bond maturity and payment of 1°0-00%
long-term loans as per agreements,
100.00%
Net Profit/Revenue Ratio % 9,83 10,45 long-term debt decreased sharply 68.76% 66.59%
by VND 191,823 million, representing  50.00%
Net Profit/ Average Equity Ratio % 5,81 7,92 Q 7.73% reduction compared to the
same period last year. In contrast, ~ 0-00%
4 . 2023 2024
Net Profit/A Total Assets Rati . 178 56 due to the positive performance of
rofit/Aver I % , , . . .
etrro erage lotal Assets katio the construction sector in 2024, the m Debt/Total Assets Ratio  m Debt/Equity Ratio
Company proactively increased
Profit from Operations/Revenue Ratio e 1,50 1,30 short-term loans and strengthened cooperation with partners, customers, and suppliers. This
led to significant growth in accounts payable, advance payments from customers, and short-
term loans and financial lease debts compared to the previous year. However, total liabilities still
recorded a general decrease, which led to improvements in key ratios such as Debt/Total Assets
and Debt/Equity, which reduced from 68.76% and 220.12% to 66.59% and 199.30%, respectively.
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

4 )
Operating Efficiency Indicators
Thanks to the Government's focus
. . 2.80 0.30
on public investment, both net
revenue and cost of goods sold for 2.72 004 02°
the Company in 2024 increased by 270 .
36.49% and 71.69% compared to the @ 0.18
previous year, reaching VND 1,111,590 Q 2:60 054 015
O .
million and VND 692,787 million, 0.10
respectively. On the other hand, total 250 .
assets at the end of 2024 changed :
insignificantly compared to the same 240 0.00
. . . 2023 2024
period last year, while inventory
recorded a strong increase of 101.11% mm Inventory Turnover Total Asset Turnover
due to the significant rise in work-
in-progress costs for ongoing projects. Therefore, both inventory turnover and total asset turnover
ratios showed improvement
- J
4 )

Profitability Indicators

The positive business results in
14.00%

2024 led to improvements in all 1.50% 11.30%

12.00%
profitability ratios compared to the 10.00%

9.83% 10.45%

7.92%
H ifi 8.00%
previous year. Specifically, the Net 58]%I
2.56%

I 1.78%

. L. 6.00%
Proflt/Net Revenue ratio increased 2002

from 9.83% to 10.45%; the Net Profit/ 40

o > 3 o
and the Net Profit/Total Assets ratio % g % 3 %
increased from 1.78% to 2.56%. % é‘J’ ° g % g §
However, the Profit from Operating § g & % g % %
Activities/Net Revenue ratio § § % : ‘%
decreased from 11.50% to 11.30% - = - &

Equity ratiorose from 5.81% t0 7.92%,  0.00%

due to the reduction in gross profits w2025 mz02

from construction, installation,

quarrying, and tourism & restaurant operations compared to the previous year. Nevertheless, the

overall picture still reflects a highly promising year with outstanding achievements.

- J
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W] SHAREHOLDER SITUATION, CHANGES IN
OWNER’S INVESTMENT CAPITAL

SHARE
Number of shares issued: 62.999.997 Shares
»  Number of freely transferable shares: 62.999.997 Shares
»  Number of restricted shares: 0 Shares
Number of outstanding shares: 54.799.997 Shares
Number of treasury shares: 8.200.000 Shares
Share type Common shares
Par value per share 10,000 VND/share

IDICO

CUONGTHUAN

MAXIMUM FOREIGN OWNERSHIP RATIO CORP

49% (According to the disclosure on foreign ownership
ratio as of December 31,2024, by the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation).

CAC CHUNG KHOAN KHAC

On June 1], 2021, the Company issued a private bond offering with a total value of VND 150 billion, a maturity
period of 36 months, and a face value of VND 1,000,000 per bond, with a total of 150 bonds issued. The
bonds are non-convertible, not attached to warrants, and unsecured by assets. The bonds carry a fixed
interest rate of 10.2% per period for the first four interest periods, and 10.6% per period for the last two
interest periods. The collateral for the bonds includes: the land use rights for a plot of land in Phuéc Tén
Commune, Bién Hoa City, Bong Nai Province, as per the Land Use Rights Certificate No. BC 796540 issued
by the People’s Committee of Bién Hoa City, which is owned by the Company; 8,600,000 CTI shares owned
by a third party; and all rights to income generated from those shares.

During the year, the Company fully redeemed the bonds and canceled the registration for trading as per
Notification No. 2565/TB-SGDHN from the Hanoi Stock Exchange dated May 22, 2024.
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u SHAREHOLDER SITUATION, CHANGES IN CHANGES IN THE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION OF THE OWNER
OWNER'S INVESTMENT CAPITAL

Increased Charter Capital

Charter Capital After Increase Form of Capital Increase
(VND) (VND)

At the time of establishing the Joint
Stock Company (Conversion from a

1 19/09/2007 104,617,880,000 . o ,
Limited Liability Company to a Joint
Stock Company)
Receiving  capital  contributions

2 11/01/2008 45,382,120,000 150,000,000,000 from existing and new shareholders
through private placement

3 2014 179,999,970,000 329,999,970,000 Public offering of shares

4 2016 100,000,000 429,999,970,000 Private placement of shares
Private placement of shares to
strategic investors. Issuance of shares

5 2017 200,000,000 629,999,970,000 )
under the Employee Stock Ownership
Plan (ESOP)

SHAREHOLDERSTRUCTURE = e oror

Ownership Shareholder Structure
Number of Ratio [ Number of

IDICO

CUONGTHUAN

CORP

Categor
e/ Shares Charter Shareholders Individual

Capital

1 State Shareholders - - - - -

Major Shareholders (owning
5% or more of charter - - - - -

capital)
2
- Domestic - - - - -
- Foreign - - - - -
3 Treasury Shares 8.200.000 13.02% 1 1 -
Other shareholders 54.799.997 86.98% 4,417 30 4,387
4 - Domestic 55.349.187 86.27% 4,378 20 4,358
- Foreign 450,810 0.71% 39 10 29

62.999.997
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W] BUSINESS PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

OPERATIONAL STATUS AND BUSINESS RESULTS

Opportunities

» Despite ongoing global economic unce
more challenges than opportunities, Vietham
achieved strong growth in 2024, with the con
sector recording an 8.24% increase — one of the larg
contributors to the national GDP this past year.

e The Company currently possesses a highly skilled
workforce with years of experience in construction,
infrastructure development, and the manufacturing of
drainage pipes.

¢ CTlisequippedwithadvanced machinery and equipment
capable of supporting large-scale business operations.
Products such as construction stone, concrete pipes, and
asphalt are offered at competitive prices, enhancing the
Company’s market competitiveness.

« The Government's acceleration of public investment
projects has created numerous job opportunities for
CTI's construction and installation divisions.

- Traffic volume at BOT toll stations managed by Cuong
Thuan CTI increased compared to the previous year. In
addition, toll rates were raised by 15% at several
stations across the country. Notably, two
toll stations under CTI's management

— National Highway 91 and Road

319 — received Government

approval for such rate

adjustments.

CeONG TNZRERIODEY FLOFMENTRIIMESY SIS TEORRORICION - CTI

6161
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In 2024, the Company recorded strong business growth, achieving a 36.49% increase
compared to the same period last year. Notably, the construction and installation segment
saw a more than double growth, thanks to timely resolution of legal obstacles in projects,
accelerated implementation progress, and a significant increase in workload, which resulted
in a substantial revenue source. The remaining business sectors continued to operate steadily,
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company.

Challenges

e In 2024, energy prices, raw material costs, and

transportation expenses surged significantly.
Construction materials such as cement and bricks
also experienced rising production costs due to

stricter carbon emission regulations.

e The tourism and restaurant segments have not yet
generated stable cash flow and are facing licensing
obstacles.

e The traffic volume through the BOT station on
National Highway 1 - Bién Hoa has declined due to
the operation of the H6 Chi Minh City — Long Thanh
Expressway. Additionally, toll collection at the T2
station (Can Tho — An Giang) has been suspended,
with no approved resolution plan as of yet.
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W] BUSINESS PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2024

2024 was a turbulent year with considerable impacts on CTl's business operations. However, the
Company made concerted efforts to overcome challenges and achieved several noteworthy
accomplishments:

» Completed key projects on schedule with ensured quality, earning satisfaction from
stakeholders.

»  Optimized mining operations and continued to leverage transport infrastructure, thereby
enhancing operational productivity.

» Improved toll collection efficiency and the management of BOT toll stations.

» Applied advanced technology solutions to make the toll collection process more efficient and
user-friendly.

»  Strengthened infrastructure development with a strong sense of responsibility, aiming toward

sustainable value for the environment and community.
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W] FINANCIAL SITUATION
ASSET STATUS

Unit: VND million

CUONG THUAN IDICO DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT CORPORATION - CTI 65

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SITUATION

Unit: VND million

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024
Indicators . . % 2024[2023
Value Proportion Value Proportion
Current assets 366,835 8.12% 481,717 10.56% 31.32%
Non-current assets 4,148,88I 91.88% 4,079,630 89.44% -1.67%
Total assets 4,515,715 100% 4,561,348 100% 1.01%

As of the end of 2024, Cuong Thuan CTI's total assets recorded a slight increase of 1.01% compared to
the same period last year. Long-term assets continued to account for the majority of the asset structure,
primarily comprising toll collection rights from BOT projects such as National Highway 1, National Highway
91, the Dedicated Road, and BOT 319. The value of these assets saw a slight decrease due to depreciation
charges during the year. Conversely, although short-term assets represented a smaller proportion, they
experienced impressive growth of 31.32% year-on-year, mainly driven by the recognition of long-term
work-in-progress assets from ongoing projects and constructions. Given the nature of the toll collection
business, CTI's asset structure is characteristically long-term oriented, which reflects the industry norm

and underlines the Company’s potential for stable and sustainable long-term profitability.

4,079,630
2024
481,717
4,148,881
2023
366,835
0 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000

B Non-current assets m Current assets

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024
Indicators . . % 2024[2023
Value Proportion Value Proportion
Short-term debt 624,971 20,13% 749,053 24.66% 19.85%
Long-term debt 2,480,127 79.87% 2,288,304 75.34% =7.73%
Total liabilities 3,105,098 100% 3,037,357 100% -2.18%

With its core operations in toll collection, Cuong Thuan CTI's liabilities structure is primarily concentrated
in long-term debt. These debts are mainly secured by toll collection rights at BOT stations, serving to
finance previously developed infrastructure projects. The long-term loans are repaid progressively in
accordance with disbursement schedules, allowing the Company to avoid sudden payment pressures.
Meanwhile, short-term liabilities have shown a steady upward trend since 2021, driven by the recovery of
Vietnam’s economy post-COVID-19, which in turn has spurred strong growth in construction, production,
and business activities. Overall, total liabilities as of the end of 2024 recorded an insignificant change
compared to the previous year. Coupled with increasingly positive business results, this demonstrates the

Company'’s effective and flexible management and utilization of capital resources.

2,288,304
2024
749,053
2,480,127
2023
624,971
0 500,000 1,000,000 1,500,000 2,000,000 2,500,000 3,000,000

H Long-term debt  m Short-term debt
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WE] ORGANIZATIONAL, POLICY, AND
MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENTS

CUONG THUAN IDICO DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT CORPORATION - CTI 67

W] FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

Million dong
Organizational Structure Policies Item Explanation Actual 2024 Plan 2025
The Company conducted a comprehensive + TheCompanyenhanceditshumanresource 1 Net revenue 1,111,590 1,389,521
review and restructuring of its organizational policies to foster a professional, equitable,
framework to streamline operations and and motivating work environment. 2 Net profit after tax (NPAT) 116,159 124,599
reduce overhead costs. * Robust training programs were introduced
to strengthen employee skills and LA rnnr"'— 2 e IOPMENT:INY

The management model was refined

with clearly defined decentralization and

delegation of authority among leadership
levels and departments, thereby promoting
transparency in responsibilities and decision-
making. This change helped eliminate

operational bottlenecks.

New departments were established to support

the Company’s growth and expansion goals.

management capabilities, aligning the
workforce with the evolving demands of the

industry.

+ The compensation and bonus mechanisms
were reviewed and improved to better

reflect performance and work outcomes.

« Furthermore, the Company set its sights

on becoming a sustainable enterprise

These new units focus on research and by developing policies aimed at
development, technology adoption, and environmental protection and corporate

project management. social responsibility.

Management

+ The Company accelerated the adoption of modern technologies across governance and
operations, including information management systems and decision-support software.
These tools improved administrative efficiency, reduced errors, and saved time.

« Continuous efforts were made to enhance the professional qualifications of the management
team.

- Internal control and supervision mechanisms were strengthened to ensure compliance with
regulations across all business activities.
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4 REPORT FROM THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

Assessment of the Company’s Operations, Including Environmental and Social
Responsibility

Evaluation of the Executive Board'’s Performance

Plans and Directions of the Board of Directors
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W] ASSESSMENTOF THECOMPANY’S OPERATIONS,
INCLUDING ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

In 2024, the global economy continued to face
numerous challenges and recession risks, significantly
impacting various sectors, including construction.
Amid these difficulties, the Viethamese Government
increased public investment to stimulate the

economy, while domestic economic activities showed

positive signs of recovery. As a result, CTl achieved

commendable business results—though revenue
slightly decreased compared to 2023, profit increased

due to effective corporate governance.

Under the leadership of the executive team, CTI
successfully fulfilled its key targets for 2024. The
Company demonstrated agility in applying suitable
business solutions while implementing safety and
stability measures to withstand unpredictable market

fluctuations.

Profit after tax

PROFIT ll 601 59 Million VND

Achieved 111.51% of the 2024 Plan

In terms of environmental and social responsibility, CTI remains committed to contributing to the
sustainable development of the community. The Company aims to develop environmentally friendly
urban areas, housing, and transportation infrastructure that meet the needs of a modern society. To this
end, CTl strictly complies with environmental regulations, implements standardized waste management,

conserves resources, and optimizes production processes to minimize negative impacts on the ecosystem.

Concurrently, CTI continued to affirm its social responsibility in 2024 through charitable activities. The
Company collaborated with local authorities to organize meaningful programs, such as donating gifts

and scholarships to underprivileged families, spreading positive values within the community.

~
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W] EVALUATION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD'S

PERFORMANCE

The Board of Directors highly appreciates the Executive Board's remarkable efforts in executing CTI's
business objectives in 2024, despite a challenging market environment. The Executive Board operated
efficiently in alignment with the strategic direction set by the Board, the Company’s Charter, and the

resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. Key achievements include:

. Agile Leadership and Timely Response: The Executive Board demonstrated excellent
management skills by quickly implementing appropriate measures to address economic and

market fluctuations, maintaining business stability.

Project Progress Acceleration: The Executive Board closely oversaw the execution of key

projects, from construction works to toll station systems, ensuring progress, quality, and

operational efficiency—further strengthening CTI's market position.

Risk Management Enhancement: By closely collaborating with the Board through regular and
extraordinary meetings, the Executive Board promptly reported, analyzed, and resolved arising

issues, thereby minimizing risks and optimizing operations.

. Promoting Responsibility and Innovation: The leadership team consistently modernized

management processes, allocated resources efficiently, and motivated employees, creating

momentum for the Company to achieve positive results.

The Board of Directors affirms that the Executive Board’s dedication and capabilities were pivotal to CTl's
success in 2024. The Board is committed to continuing its support, enabling the Executive Board to fully
realize its potential and drive sustainable development and corporate value enhancement in the coming

years.
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WE] PLANS AND DIRECTIONS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

Maintain Current Business Operations:

The Company will continue to focus on maintaining and improving the efficiency of its core
business areas, ensuring stability and sustainable growth. This includes ensuring product/
service quality, enhancing work performance, and maintaining good relationships  with

existing customers to protect market share and strengthen competitive position in the market.

Develop Real Estate Projects:

The Company will implement high-potential real estate projects, expanding its operations
in this field. Investments will focus on large-scale projects with high profitability potential. In
addition, the Company aims to build strategic partnerships with domestic and international

organizations and enterprises to develop networks and expand investment opportunities.

Strengthen Construction Activities:

The Company will focus on expanding and developing its construction segment, particularly in infrastructure
and real estate projects. Investments will be made to enhance construction capacity, modernize technology,
and improve labor productivity to meet project requirements in a timely manner. At the same time, ensuring

high-quality construction and adherence to project timelines will help build the Company’s reputation and

meet the growing demand in the market.
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W] BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LIST OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of December 31,2024

. Number of Shares ownershi
Member Position R P
Owned Ratio
1 Mr. Tran Nhu Hoang Chairman of the Board 1,370,000 2.17%
2 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Quang Board Member & CEO 1,627,430 2.58%
3 Mr. Nguyen Van Khang Board Member & Deputy CEO 440,000 0.70%
4 Mr.Vu Tien Dung Board Member & Deputy CEO 3,850 0.006%
5 Mr. Nguyen Hong Hai Independent Board Member 0 0%
6 Mr. Vu Manh Cuong Independent Board Member 403,070 0.639%
7 Mr. Doi Hung Cuong Board Member & Deputy CEO 1,100 0.002%
3 VINH MUON NAM
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Board Member at Other Management Position at

Other Companies

Companies

CTCP Dong Thuan Investment
CTCP BOT An Thuan Phat Investment

CTCP National Highway 91 Can Tho -
An Giang -

CTCP BOT 319 Cuong Thuan CTI

1 Mr. Tran Nhu Hoang

CTCP Cuong Thuan Mechanical
Inspection Joint Stock Company

2 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Quang  CTCP Dong Thuan Investment -

CTCP National Highway 91 Can Tho -

3 Mr. Nguyen Van Khang AR Gi
n Giang

CTCP Dong Thuan Investment

CTCPCuongThuaninvestment

4 Mr. Vu Tien Dun -
5 Joint Stock Company

Vietnam Urban and Industrial
5 Mr. Nguyen Hong Hai - Zone DevelopmentInvestment

Corporation (IDICO)

6 Mr. Vu Manh Cuong - -

CTCP BOT 319 Cuong Thuan

7 Mr. Doi Hung Cuong - -

CHANGES IN BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBERS IN 2024

In 2024, there were no changes in the list of Board of Directors members compared to 2023.

ACTIVITIES OF COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of now, the Board of Directors of Cuong Thuan IDICO Investment and Development Joint
Stock Company has not yet established sub-committees under the Board. However, the BoD
continues to conduct regular meetings, provide relevant information to its members, and fulfill
its supervisory functions, as well as coordinate with the Supervisory Board (if applicable) in

compliance with corporate governance regulations.
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W] BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ACTIVITIES OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Independent members of the Board of
Directors, including Mr. Nguyén Héng HaAi
and Mr. Vi Manh Cudng, continued to play a
vital role in providing strategic counsel and
objective oversight of the Board of Directors
(BoD) and Executive Management. Their
presence ensures fairness and transparency,
mitigating potential conflicts of interest.

Throughout 2024, the independent directors
actively participated in BoD meetings,
contributing  constructive opinions and
offering strategic development proposals and
business planning recommendations for the
Company.

In addition, they closely monitored the
activities of the BoD and the Executive Board
by preparing monthly reports for other
Board members in accordance with the
Company Charter. These reports maintained
transparency and clearly reflected the
outcomes and scope of oversight, thereby
supporting the BoD in making well-informed
decisions.

Independent members also played a key
role in safeguarding the legitimate interests
of minority and small shareholders, as well
as other stakeholders including creditors,

employees, and customers—ensuring
equitable treatment for all parties involved.

The Board of Directors held regular meetings
and collected written opinions to pass
resolutions and make decisions within its
authority. All procedures and processes strictly
complied with applicable laws, the Company
Charter, and internal corporate governance
regulations.

During operations, the BoD assigned specific
responsibilities to each member, ensuring that
individual accountability was aligned with
designated areas. This delegation of duties
significantly enhanced the Board’'s overall
effectiveness.

Policies, mechanisms, and resolutions issued
by the BoD were thoroughly reviewed before
enactment to ensure their alignment with
the Company’'s actual circumstances, thus
facilitating effective implementation.

At the same time, the Board strengthened its
supervisory role across all Company activities,
particularly in corporate governance. These
efforts contributed significantly to the
Company’s success in 2023 and laid a solid
foundation for sustainable development in
the future.

LIST OF BOARD MEMBERS WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TRAINING

CERTIFICATION

Currently, all members of the Board of Directors of Cuong Thuan IDICO Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company possess extensive experience in corporate governance.
The Company actively supports and encourages members of the Board of Directors, Executive
Management, and key management personnel to participate in training programs, workshops,
and seminars organized by regulatory bodies, such as stock exchanges, VSDC, and other

professional organizations.

CUONG THUAN IDICO DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT CORPORATION - CTI
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W] B0OARD OF DIRECTORS o, Resolution/peci- contl

sion No.

Approved the list of shareholders entitled to attend

ACTIVITIES OF BOD 3 03/2024/NQ-HPQT 26/03/2024 ,

the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2024.
The Board of Directors regularly organizes meetings to assess the company’s performance during the Approved the completion of procedures for the
period, review the company’s operations at each stage, and identify any remaining limitations in order to transfer of agricultural land use rights and the
propose solutions for achieving the goals set forth in the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. 4 04/2024/NQ-HPQT 12/03/2024

settlement of expenses arising during the completion

In 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company has fully exercised its rights and responsibilities in of the procedures..

accordance with the company’s Charter, regulations, the Law on Enterprises, and the Law on Securities.

Approved the extension of the time for organizing the
5 05/2024/NQ-HPQT 27/03/2024 ,
. . 2024 annual general meeting of shareholders.
Board of Directors Meetings

Approved the nomination of positions related to the

Number of Board Attendance

Board Member Position A Board of Directors (BOD), the Supervisory Board (SB),
Meetings Attended Rate ) ( ) P o Y _( )
6 06/2024/NQ-HDPQT 09/04/2024 and the Executive Board at the subsidiary, BOT National
1 Mr. Tran Nhu Hoang Chairman of the Board 13/13 100% Highway 91-Cdan Tho, An Giang Joint Stock Company,
for the 2024-2029 term.
2 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Quang Board Member & CEO 13/13 100%
Approved the preparation work for organizing the
7  07/2024/NQ-HPQT 23/04/2024 PP Prep _ 9 9
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024.
3 Mr. Nguyen Van Khang Board Member & Deputy CEO 13/13 100%
Approved the nomination of positions related to the
, Board of Directors (BOD), Supervisory Board (SB), and
4 Mr. Vu Tien Dung Board Member & Deputy CEO 13/13 100% . L
8 08/2024/NQ-HPQT 27/04/2024 the Executive Board at the subsidiary company, Dong
) Thuan Investment Joint Stock Company, for the term
5 Mr. Nguyen Hong Hai Independent Board Member 13/13 100%
2024-2029.
6 Mr. Vu Manh Cuong Board Member & Deputy CEO 13/13 100% Approved the discussion and agreement on the
9 09/2024/NQ-HDPQT 03/05/2024 loan plan at the Oceanbank — Dong Nai Branch, a
7 Mr. Doi Hung Cuong Board Member & Deputy CEO 13/13 100% commercial bank.

Approved the signing of share lending agreements

Content and Results of the Meetings with individual shareholders who own company
10 10/2024/NQ-HPQT 08/05/2024 shares, as well as with the company itself, to use
the shares for the redemption of bonds due that the

Resolution/Deci-

sion No. Contels company has issued.

Approved the transfer of land areas (adjacent to the
11 11/2024/NQ-HDQT  10/08/2024 Hoang Hai quarry) within the planned area of the
Thien Tan 10 quarry from the Hoang Hai quarry.

The appointment of Mr. Bui Tien Vuong as Chief

Accountant and the dismissal of Mrs. Pham Mai Thu
1 01/2024/NQ-HPQT 17/01/2024 - ,
from the position of Chief Accountant have been

approved. Approved the transfer of land for the construction
12 12/2024/NQ-HDQT 05/09/2024 project of the Thien Tan 10 quarry in Vinh Cuu and
Trang Bom districts.

The Company has issued its Information Disclosure
2 02/2024/NQ-HPQT 20/02/2024

Regulation.

Discussed the company'’s credit usage needs at Tien
13 13/2024/NQ-HPQT  22/11/2024 , ,
Phong Commercial Joint Stock Bank.




82 Annual Report 2024

W] BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

LIST OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEMBERS
As of March 18, 2025

Number of Ownership

Member Position i
Shares Owned Ratio

Head of the Board of
1 Mr. Nguyen Duc Thach ) - -
Supervisors

. Member of the Board of
2 Ms. Hoang Thi Hong Supervisors - -
upervi

. Member of the ABoard of
3 Ms. Nguyen Thi Phuong Thuc ) - -
Supervisors

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Number of BOS Attendance

No. Member Position .
Meetings Attended Rate

Head of the Board of
1 Mr.Nguyen Duc Thach , 4/4 100%
Supervisors

. Member of the Board of
2 Ms. Hoang Thi Hong o , 4/4 100%
upervisors

. Member of the Board of
3 Ms.Nguyen Thi Phuong Thuc , 4/4 100%
Supervisors

CONTENT AND RESULTS OF THE MEETINGS

Meeting

Participants Content Meeting Sessions

Sessions

Review and evaluate the 2023 business production

Session 01 on April plan and the 2024 Supervisory Board activity plan.

1 4/4
23,2024 / S :
upport the preparation of documents for the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
5 Session 02 on May 4/4 Review the data on business production and
08,2024 investment results for the first six months of 2024.
Session 03 on 4/4 Evaluate the business production plan for the third

October 09, 2024 quarter of 2024.

Review the data on business production and
4[4 investment results for the fourth quarter of 2024
and the full year 2024.

Session 04 on
December 31,2024
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SUPERVISORY BOARD'S OVERSIGHT OF THEBOARD OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT, AND SHAREHOLDERS

Throughout 2024, the Supervisory Board (SB) actively participated in reviewing and monitoring
the activities of the Executive Board by attending both regular and extraordinary meetings of the
Board of Directors (BoD). These efforts aimed to assess the implementation of the 2024 business
strategy and operational plan approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

« The resolutions issued by the BoD were in compliance with the Company Charter and the
resolutions passed by the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS).

« The SB delegated representatives to attend BoD meetings, both scheduled and ad hoc, and
contributed opinions within the scope of its authority.

+ The Executive Management continuously introduced innovations in operational and
managerial practices, contributing to increased efficiency in corporate governance.

« The SB collaborated with the Executive Board in reviewing risk assessments and proposing
appropriate risk prevention measures.

« Overall, the SB successfully fulfilled its role in supervising and supporting the Company’s
operations. Its activities ensured transparency and effective management, which in turn
contributed to the sustainable development of the Company in 2024.

In 2024, the Supervisory Board worked closely with the BoD, Executive Management, and other
managerial personnel in the following ways:

+ The SB proactively communicated and aligned with the BoD regarding the content and
schedule of its supervision and inspection activities. It also worked in coordination with the
Executive Board during the implementation of these activities.

« The SB regularly informed the BoD and the Executive Board of its quarterly inspection plans.
In return, the BoD and management provided the SB with full access to relevant information
and documentation concerning the Company’s business operations, as requested.

« The BoD, SB, Executive Board, and key managerial staff maintained close collaboration in the
governance and operational management of the Company.
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WE] TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS

SALARIES, BONUSES, REMUNERATION, AND OTHER BENEFITS

Salaries and Allowances of the Board of Directors, General Director, and Board of Supervisors for

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, GENERAL
DIRECTOR, AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

the Year Are as Follows:

No. Full Name Position Income (VND)
Chairman of the Board of
1 Mr. Tran Nhu Hoang ) 1,927,121,000
Directors
Member of the Board of
2 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Quang . 2,319,875,000
Directors cum CEO
Member of the Board of
3 Mr. Nguyen Van Khang . 1,787,073,294
Directors cum Deputy CEO
i Independent Member of the
4 Mr. Nguyen Hong Hai . 590,000,000
Board of Directors
Member of the Board of
5 Mr. Vu Manh Cuong . 680,000,000
Directors cum Deputy CEO
) Member of the Board of
6 Mr. Doi Hung Cuong ) 1,272,500,000
Directors cum Deputy CEO
. Member of the Board of
7 Mr. Vu Tien Dung . 590,000,000
Directors cum Deputy CEO
Head of the Board of
8 Mr. Nguyen Buc Thach .
Supervisors
i Member of the Board of
9 Ms. Hoang Thi Hong ) 67,000,000
Supervisors
) Member of the Board of
10 Ms. Nguyen Thi Phuong Thuc )
Supervisors
1L Mr. Nguyen Xuan Cuong Deputy CEO 1,235.920,800
12 Mr. Pham Thanh Quang Deputy CEO 605,224,000
13 Ms. Pham Mai Thu Deputy CEO 989,820,000
14 Mr. Bui Tien Vuong Chief Accountant 585,000,000
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WE] TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, GENERAL
DIRECTOR, AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

TRANSACTIONS OF SHARES BY INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS

The company has adhered to corporate governance regulations, ensuring transparency of information,
Number of shares owned at Number of shares owned pany P 9 9 9 P Y

Relationship the beginning of the period _at the end of the period Reasons for compliance with legal requirements, and protection of shareholders’ interests through comprehensive
with internal increasing, information disclosure, organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders, and timely dividend payment.

Transaction

executor persons Number of Number of decreasing Although formal corporate governance training sessions have not been organized, the company

shares Percenicag shares Percentadl encourages and facilitates Board of Directors members, the Board of Supervisors, and the CEO to

participate in seminars and professional dialogues throughout the year to enhance their governance

Increase capabilities, such as:
and
. Member of
Ms. Nguyen Thi decrease
the Board of 3,000 0.005% - - . Event/Conference
Phuong Thuc ) in
Supervisors .
ownership - . o, . . . .
) : 04/2024 Training seminar on securities registration, offering, and issuance
rago documents organized by the State Securities Commission.
Ihgredee Conference on “Key issues in complying with securities laws and market
it regulations of public companies and listed companies; Common
Ms.Pham Mai decrease . . . . . . .
Deputy CEO 3,500 0.006% - - ) mistakes in preparing and presenting financial statements of public
Thu '\ ) 2 06/2024 and listed companies” organized by the State Securities Commission in
ownership cooperation with the Vietham Association of Certified Public Accountants,
ratio . - . . . . .
aimed at guiding public companies and listed companies to improve
compliance with securities laws and the quality of financial reporting.
Conference on “Enhancing corporate governance capabilities for listed
companies” (part of the corporate governance and securities market
3 07/2024 : . Iy .
upgrading program) organized by the State Securities Commission with
technical support from the Vietnam Institute of Directors (VIOD).
Seminar on “2024 Securities Registration Organizations Conference at
4 08/2024 VSDC” organized by the Vietnham Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation (VSDC).
Seminar on “Improving corporate governance effectiveness for public
companies through internal regulations” organized by FPT Securities

Joint Stock Company with professional support from the Ho Chi Minh
City Stock Exchange.

i N by 5 09/2024

Seminar on the launch, introduction, and guide to using the ESG Reporting

6 10/2024 : ) iy -
and Disclosure Handbook organized by the State Securities Commission.
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WE] TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS

No.

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, GENERAL
DIRECTOR, AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Transactions with Internal Parties

Name of

Organization/

Individual

Dong Thuan

Relationship
with the
Company

NSH No.* date of issue, place of

issue

Certificate No.: 3601413688,

Date of Issue: 6/1/2009, Place of

Address

No. 315 Vo Nguyen Giap,
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Time of
transactions

Resolution No. or Decision
No. approved by GMS/ BOD

Resolution No. 02A/2021/NQ-

Content, quantity, total value of transaction

Content: Construction Project Revenue. Value:
35,920,490,902 VND

1 Investment Joint Subsidiar Phuoc Tan Ward, Bien Hoa In 2024 . .
Y \ssue: DPI Dong Nai - Business _ _ HDQT dated 12/01/2021. Content: ~ Management,  Toll  Collection
Stock Company Regjistration Office City, Dong Nai Province Supervision, and Other Services. Value:
8,525,105,747 VND
Cortificate No: 3603443783 Content: Construction Project Revenue. Value:
ertificate No.: , .
No. 315 Vo Nguyen Giap, . 4,142,398,417 VND
) BOT 319 Cuong Subsidi Date of Issue: 16/2/2017, Place of phuoe Tan Vi sien 1 A Y Resolution No. 02A/2021/NQ- - v o collect
upsiaiar . . uoc lan Wwara, Bien Hoa n ontent: anagement, o ollection
Thuan CTI JSC Y Issue: DPI Dong Nai - Business . i 3 HBQT dated 12/01/2021. o g _
. ] . City, Dong Nai Province Supervision, and Other Services. Value:
Registration Office
4,862,919,000 VND
Content: Construction Project Revenue. Value:
989.558.568 VND
Certificate No.: 3603051070, . .
An Thuan Phat No. 315 Vo Nguyen Giap, ) Content: Management, Toll  Collection
o Date of Issue: 25/4/2013, Place ) Resolution No. 02A/2021/NQ- o _
3 BOT Investment Subsidiary ) . Phuoc Tan Ward, Bien Hoa In 2024 Supervision, and Other Services. Value:
of Issue: DPI Dong Nai - Business i ) HPQT dated 12/01/2021.
JSC . . . City, Dong Nai Province 4,501,200,000 VND
Registration Office
Description: Accounts receivable. Value:
800,000,000 VND
i Content: Construction Project Revenue. Value:
Certificate No.: 3603181739, Date )
Quoc Lo 91 Can No. 315 Vo Nguyen Giap, . 20,863,500,055 VND
] o of Issue: 22/5/2014, Place of ) Resolution No. 02A/2021/NQ-
4 Tho - An Giang Subsidiary . . Phuoc Tan Ward, Bien Hoa In 2024 Content: Management,  Toll Collection
Issue: DPI Dong Nai - Business ) i ) HBQT dated 12/01/2021. o _
Investment JSC . ] . City, Dong Nai Province Supervision, and Other Services. Value:
Registration Office
5,313,394,839 VND
Certificate No.: 3603990676, Date of
Cuong Thuan No. 370/2A Vo Nguyen Giap, . Lo .
) o Issue: 6/7/2016, Place of Issue: DP! ) Resolution No. 02A/2021/NQ-  Description: Accounts receivable. Value:
5 CTl Tourist  Subsidiary ) ) ) ) Phuoc Tan Ward, Bien Hoa In 2024
_ Dong Nai - Business Registration _ ' _ HDQT dated 12/01/2021. 23,571,602 VND
Corporation . City, Dong Nai Province
Office
Certificate No.: 3603990676, Date of ) Content: Construction Project Revenue. Value:
Cuong Thuan CTI No. 370/2A Vo Nguyen Giap, )
_ ) o Issue: 6/7/2016, Place of Issue: DP! ) Resolution No. 02A/2021/NQ-  2,324,499,000 VND;Content: Management, Toll
6 Vehicle Registry Subsidiary . . . . Phuoc Tan Ward, Bien Hoa In 2024 . . .
_ Dong Nai - Business Registration . _ _ HPQT dated 12/01/2021. Collection Supervision, and Other Services.
Corporation . City, Dong Nai Province
Office Value: 2,340,000,000 VND
borrowings: 31,669,999,996VND; borrowings
Ms. Tran Huyen Related . .
7 - - in 2024 - payment: 14,051,631,000VND; Interest:
Trang person

556,058,365VND
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W] ENVIRONMENTAL AND COMMUNITY
RESPONSIBILITIES

RAW MATERIAL MANAGEMENT

Raw material management is a key factor in the
production operations of construction companies,
particularly for CTI. Effective management not only
reduces production costs and increases labor
productivity but also ensures material balance
during production, minimizes resource waste, and
reduces negative impacts on the environment and
workers’ health.

Recognizing thisimportance, CTIhasimplemented a
series of strict measures to optimize the sustainable
management and use of raw materials. Fuel
management standards are rigorously applied,
alongside monthly fuel reconciliation processes
as regulated by the Company. CTl also regularly
inspects and adjusts fuel norms for transport
and mechanical vehicles, especially in cases of
abnormal fuel consumption. These efforts ensure
that management is conducted scientifically and
efficiently.

Thanks to these stringent management measures,
the Company saved a significant amount of fuel
over the past year. This not only resulted in reduced
operational costs for CTI but also demonstrated a
strong commitment to environmental protection
by cutting CO, emissions and contributing to
sustainable development

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

Consumer unit

Consumptionin Consumptionin

2023 (kWh) 2024 (kWh)

Company ~and 258.847 828.310
Culvert Factory

Vehicle Inspection 50.952 53.245
Center

Island 657.384 638.977
Xuan Hoa Quarry 913.440 858.634
Thien Tan Quarry 260.600 257.733
Gas Station 14184 15.035

CTl has implemented a range of measures to
improve the efficiency of fuel management and
consumption control across the entire system. The
Company focuses on applying standardized fuel
consumption regulations, ensuring transparent
monthly payment processes, and conducting
periodic inspections to limit excessive fuel usage.
In cases where significant discrepancies from
standard consumption levels arise, management
actively adjusts the norms to align with actual
operating conditions, ensuring that fuel usage is
managed in a scientific and efficient manner.

These measures have helped CTI significantly
cut costs and raise awareness and responsibility
among drivers in using fuel more economically.
Consequently, CTI not only improved its operational

efficiency but also reduced CORemissions and other
pollutants, clearly demonstrating the Company’s
commitment to environmental protection and
sustainable development.

Additionally, CTI is moving toward adopting
advanced technologies to improve operational
performance while being more environmentally
friendly. The Company has begun upgrading and
replacingoldvehicleswithmorefuel-efficientmodels
and investing in modern machinery and equipment
for construction and quarrying operations. These
innovations not only enhance productivity but also
significantly reduce emissions, contributing to CTI's
image as a pioneer in sustainable development
and environmental protection.
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W] TRACH NHIEM VSI MOI TRUGSNG

Total water consumption in 2024:

Water consumption in

Consumer unit

WATER CONSUMPTION

The Company acknowledges that water is a vital
yet finite resource; therefore, water conservation
has become a key objective for CTI. Over the past
year, CTlI has implemented a systematic approach
to water resource management to minimize water
consumption and prevent the waste of natural
resources.

CTI's water supply is sourced from long-established,
reputable providers in the region, ensuring that
the Company’s clean water standards are always
maintained. In addition, the Company utilizes well
water at its headquarters and fuel stations.

One of CTI's pioneering strategies is the reuse
of wastewater. Through wastewater recycling,
the Company not only conserves valuable
water resources but also reduces the amount of
wastewater discharged into the environment. This
contributes to the protection of local water sources
and minimizes environmental impact from CTI's
operational activities.

Moreover, CTl has installed wastewater treatment
systems at its production areas, applying advanced
technology to strictly comply with legal and local
discharge regulations, ensuring no pollution is
caused to the surrounding environment.

By saving and using water properly, CTI enhances
its reputation within the industry and lays a
solid foundation for the long-term, sustainable
development of the surrounding communities

Water consumption in

2023 (liters) 2024 (liters)

Compban Well water Well water
pany (not yet estimated) (not yet estimated)

Vehicle Inspection 1.344
1.236

Island 3.456
3.214

Xuan Hoa Mine 2.596
2.284
. Well water Well water

Gas Station

(not yet estimated)

(not yet estimated)
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COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION LAWS

As a company operating in the field of infrastructure
construction and mining, the Company always
places the responsibility of environmental
protection and public health as a top priority. The
entire product chain, from design, production,
distribution to usage, is managed strictly with the
goal of protecting the environment and ensuring
the safety and health of employees as well as the
surrounding community.

In addition, the Company focuses on investing
in modern equipment and machinery to ensure
higher productivity, cost savings (such as electricity
and water), and to minimize repair costs. More
importantly, these machines significantly reduce
emissions to the environment, contributing to
building a workplace and production environment
that is friendly to the ecosystem.

The Company also encourages all employees to
use recycled and regenerated materials. This not
only brings benefits to the environment and society
but also helps the Company reduce production
capital costs, minimize waste treatment costs, and
optimize investment in quality treatment systems.
This is a sustainable step that helps reduce the
environmental burden while bringing long-term
economic efficiency.

TheCompanyisalsocommittedto strictly complying
with the legal regulations regarding waste disposal.
Construction waste, wastewater, and general waste
are all handled in accordance with procedures,
preventing harmful impacts on the environment
and public health. With clear policies and practical
actions, the Company not only ensures sustainable
development but also affirms its pioneering role in
environmental protection and social responsibility.

210.261
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WE] POLICIES REGARDING EMPLOYEES

Labor Policies to Ensure Health

The Company not only focuses on complying with legal regulations regarding occupational
safety and hygiene and improving the working environment but also pays special attention
to the comprehensive development and legitimate rights of employees. The company fully
implements social insurance (SI), health insurance (HI), and unemployment insurance (Ul)
as per legal regulations. This not only protects employees’ benefits but also creates a stable
working environment, allowing employees to focus on their work and career development.

The Company regularly organizes health check-ups to ensure employees’ health is at its best to
complete their tasks. In addition, health guides are provided to employees to raise awareness
and adopt healthy lifestyles, helping them apply the care regimes effectively.

In addition to ensuring physical health and living standards, the Company also focuses on the
spiritual life of its employees through collective activities. Programs such as team-building,
International Women’s Day events, Children’s Day celebrations, year-end parties, and other
periodic events are organized. These activities not only help employees bond and strengthen
relationships but also build teamwork and cooperation in the workplace.

Employee Training Activities

The Company always prioritizes employee welfare, as evidenced by the issuance of training
support regulations to enhance skills and better meet production business needs. The company
is responsible for covering the entire cost of training and regularly organizes programs to update
production knowledge for staff, including experienced employees.

Employees are encouraged to continuously learn and improve their skills, helping them not
only enhance their abilities in their current roles but also be ready to face new challenges in the
industry. Additionally, the Company organizes training programs based on the development
needs and skills improvement, optimizing labor productivity while supporting employees in
building and developing long-term careers.

These efforts not only affirm the Company’s commitment to the development of its workforce
but also create conditions for each employee to maximize their potential, contributing to the
sustainable development of the Company
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WE) REPORT ON RESPONSIBILITY TOWARD
THE LOCAL COMMUNITY

Throughout the past year, the spirit of the Company has not only been focused on production and
business but also demonstrated through care and sharing with the community and society. CTI
has actively participated in charity activities, contributing to alleviating hardships and bringing
joy to people in remote and disadvantaged areas. The Company'’s efforts include supporting
poor children in mountainous areas, providing necessary gifts for struggling communities, and
supporting gifted and studious students in remote areas.

Participating in these humanitarian activities is not only an obligation for a community-based
business but also an ethical and emotional responsibility toward the employees and the
community where the Company operates. Here are the local activities that CTl has carried out
in the past year:

' 1

—
o
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Time Content Amount (VND)

Binh — Payment for Tet 2024 support for poor households
in Xuan Hoa Commune, An Binh Ward People’s Committee

23/01/2024 . 50.000.000
(PC), Xuan Hoa Commune PC, Vinh Thanh Commune PC —
Nhon Trach District
Tet gift support for disadvantaged families in Xuan Loc

24/01/2024 o' 9"t SUPP g 20.000.000
District
Tet gift support for disadvantaged families in 2024 — Phuoc

24/01/2024 ) 9 PP 9 10.000.000
Thien Commune PC
Support for policy families and disadvantaged households

30/01/2024 PP policy 9 15.000.000
- Tet 2024

05/02/2024 Support for social welfare activities in Bien Hoa City PC 200.000.000
Support for poor and disadvantaged households to wel-

05/02/2024 PP P . anag 200.000.000
come Tet 2024 — Vinh Cuu District PC

17/04/2024 Community sponsorship in Xuan Hoa Commune 10.000.000

10/05/2024 Community sponsorship in Tan Hiep Ward 10.000.000

28/06/2024 Community sponsorship in local area 18.000.000

28/06/2024 Community sponsorship in local area 50.000.000
Community sponsorship in local area — Quang Thach

23/08/2024 y sp P Quang 50.000.000
Commune

30/09/2024 Community sponsorship in local area — Dong Nai Province 50.000.000

24[12/2024 Community sponsorship in Phuoc Thien Commune 5.000.000

Téng céng

688.000.000
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Auvditar's opinivn

[0 v opinion, the ennaclidated finencial stalements give a true and Lair view, in all material respects, of the
consitlidatec. financial pesition ol Cuong Thuan 1MCO Development Tnvestment Corparation and iis
Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2024 a3 well as the tesells o its operation and its cash flows Tor the Yeur
then ended. The consolidated lnone:al stotementa are prepared in comp.ionce with the prevailing Vicuamese
Awcounting Standards, Yictsaess Accounling Syslem and other stamutory requirements relevant 1o the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated linancl stacments,

Foaphasis of matters

1. ™ot denying the afrrementioned opinfon, we would like 1t dres the reader's aztentian to Metde V.10
Tunptble Fixed Assets and Mele X1 Contingent Liakilitics, Commitments, and ¢ther Fitangial
Milcnnation n the accompanying wonsolidated Goancial statemems, Accordingly, us ol Gecember 31,
2024, the origingl cost ol langible fixed assets a2 the O lsland — [dong Troong Tewism Cenler amountzd
tr WA TTESETIEE 71, with accumulated depreciation of WNTY 32 086,20 823, resulting in & net
bk value o7 WNIY 126,501,073, 908, The Campany tamporanly recorded the original cost of these Gxed
wiiels at the end of the 2020 [scal vear (primarily buildiaps wnd ather sesets) based on the i

- seillemenl value. As of the date of this repert, the Company is still swailing un oFicial decizion fiom the
stale authorilies to procced with the completion of lzgal decumcntation regarding lend wse rights and
erwirship riglits of the construetions on the mentioned lixed sssets, Additionally, pursuant e Dec sion
Mo, FROOQD-XFTIC duted Merch 11, 2023, issued by the People's Committes af Dong Nai Provinee, the
Compary was subjected w admirisrative penalties for environmental protection viclulions at the 0
Islend — Dang, Truene Tewrism Ceater, The Company is currently working with siae sothorities and has
nof: vt azsessed the potentinl impainnon: of ceoramic henelie resuling fram the athrementioned ever,

Fd

In Mote V.9, Lomg-torm Waork in Progress — Construerion in Proaresy, the Company is recognizing land
vzt rights accuired through teanslir contracts from individuals, These lond use rights zre eusreatly being
utilized in the Company's businuss operations. As of the dale of issumme of this andit repert, the
Company s =1l in the process of completng the docementation for the transfer o the atocementioned
lard nsa vights,

The eensclicated Guuncial statements secompanying this report do not include adjustments that may arise
from the above avents wul our opinion is nat expressed on this matter.

Hao Chi Mink Cilty, Morek 28, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

RESOLRCES Code  Motes ec. 51, 2024 dan. 01,2024
. OUOWHERS' EQUITY Bl 123800 185 M2 LALOGOLT, 255,444
1. {remers’ equity 410 V.22 1523990, 185012 1410617283, 444
1. (mmers' capital 11! B8 GO0 QT 000 A2 900 070, (00
- el Shores with vorlng Hphes gida 029, 0e8 870 a0m G258, 505 570, (i
- Proferred shares 1% - -
2. Share premium 12 187.613,739,279 183,673,159,779
3. Bend conwveesion aption 415 - a
4, Cwmers' other capital 414 - -
5, Treasury shares 413 (155,035,000,0000 (155 036,000,000)
G, Diference upon aszests revaluation ila -
7. Fovsign exchangs difforences 317 B
g lovesimens aod developomact find 218 33512873319 33512973119
O Furd For supporl of arengement of cntemprises 4149 - -
110, Chface tunda 120 =
11, Urndistribured esrnings 421 JBG, 596 E0,857T ZED 46901 ,359
- Drcliniribwled earninps acoumulated to the s
encl of pwior e 3 JHF 5F0 3430072 2P 435504248
- Unaistribured eqrnings in the year 43T Qe R A5 503 FOA0E AN v
1%, Invesment reserve Tor basis constrostion 422 11,120,427 LI120,427
1}, Men-controlling inlerests 424 25269981110 208,518,979, 0640
1L Buwlgel sparces gl odber Dods 430 - -
1. Dudgsl souroes 431 - wr
2. Fund to farm fixcd sssets 1332 - - -
TOTAL RESOQURCES 4“0 4,561,347 537,632 4,515,715, 466,524
Lhopz M, Moweh 35 2025
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Foe the fisoa’ year ended December 21 2024 Uit WWND
ITEMS Code  Maotes Year 2024 Yoenr 2023
1. Sales 1) YLl 1,111,582 982,180 B14.40596d, 5835
2. Less sules deduetions 2 WVI.2 - 17,644,720
3, Wot sales 10 VL3 1,111,589,982, 150 R14,388,3 19,365
o Konal 6 stiee 1 vI4 6027BT 492002 403,312,605,
A, Gross pmfit 20 415.802,490,178 410,875,624,2H
(20=10-11)
4. Vinancial income 21 VI3 TLE B2V 0R]L FALA, 79,567
7. Financial expenses 22 Wi [B8,180. 175,245 ZZZUBE,301,45%
T which: logr Irderest expenses 3 187 850,535,929 2L TS 57422
8. Gain or loss in juinlventure, asoeiae 24 . c
%, Eelling sxpensss 23 W1.7a 4,081 291,55 TAO3LLET2 164
10, Crencral & administralion expenses 26 %], 7h 101,591,525 619 ¥ A.640,480
11. Operating profit 30 125 Gl 27 1R 03, 656,569.014
(30— 20 + (21 - 12) 1 24 - (35 + 26)) 1,910,931 871
12. Other moomss 31 YVI.E 257 R55350 1,010,821 871
|3, (ther expenses 3z 1.9 738,181,992 i 35 L R
14, Oher profit (40 =31 - 32) 40 [480,326,603) (1,29%,765,5453)
15. Med aceounting profit before fax S0 125,108, 600,447 01,357,104,341
{50 =30 | 40)
14, Corporats inccme Lex - current il ool 08Z,150 TOLE SRR 150
17, Carporatz income (ex - delerred 2 (01 ,2eh6,13%) 604, 175,08
14, Met profit after corperale income (ax G [i6, 035,764,127 0,052,959 521
(60— 5051 -52}
Prafit after tax of the paront company 6l QO0ER, 50,805 0,208,381 5335
Prafit after tax of Won-cominelling interzst AZ 17.050,505322 320,577,504
19, Earnings per share T VLI 1. WIs 1,345
20 Diluted varnings per share 71 VI11 1,80% 1345
Dpngr Nal Marzh 25, 20235
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FT.OW STATEMFENT

{Under indircet method)
For tha fisoad yeor ended December 35, 2024 Lindi: FND
ITEMS Cude MNuotes Yeur 2024 Year 2023
LoCASH FLOWE FTROM OFERATING ACTIVTITIIS
1. Ner profil Tefare oy Ml 125, 10,000 447 02 337,104,541
2. Adjustments for
- Depresinlion of fixed asiets and ‘nveatment propertica 02 133,2552351 992 130,669, 144,815

- Privvisions 03 1,271.111,913
= I'-Iﬁh;_-"nmes frown toreipr exchanze difforonces npon

revaluation of monctary asscts denominated in fareipn

currencies 4 G
- (Feinsloases mom investing aclivities L {T4E.82T081)
- Injerest expense {Ha Ve 1BT.850,558,920
- Dher adjusimenis 7 C

3, Profit from operating activities hefore changes in +5 447.001,676,202

working eapital

- Increase (-1 decegsse {7 L paceivables (9 73, 43,578,087
= lnireass {-) dooroese () in invenlories i {63,284, 206,075
- Inerense (=) deerspse () in payables ((Other than
payaliles, inves ax) il (22,202 ,488.393)
- Inercass (- decrease (Hin prepaid expenses 12 11,826,823,472
- Incrense (=) decrease (1) in trading seonritizs 13 -
- Inerest paid 14 (10,205,947 A6T)
- Corporate income fax paid 13 V.16 (L ADZ 223, 167)
- [ithe receipls Trom opecating activiries 1n =
Orhar paymets on openling aclivilis 17 {3,002 710,257
Net cash inflows/{ontfows) fimm operaling aclivilies 39 300,525,492, 790
IL CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1 Purzhazes of fixed assels and other leng-tenn assets 3| (RIA67.376.070)
2, Procceda from dizposnls of fixed assels ood vther Iong 22
ECTIT, el 23,000,007
3. Logas grantad, purchases of debt instroments of other 23

cntitics 4 335,803,505
4, Collsetion of loons, procesls [rom sales o delr 24

insrrumenits ol other enilies

8.558459.578

= Investments in other entities 25 4

6. Procseds fiom divestment in other entities 20 =

7. Drividerds ancd boterest peceived 27 718,527,081
Net cash inflowz{owllows] from iovesting activities 3 (TH,501,992,717)

{4,602,004.233)

(1,539,519.819)
221, 270.5T4.243

434, 160,299,125

26,514,234,377
21,137,554 1,9347

{17,054, 827.273)
910,072,122

{50,127,580,254)
(7,15 1,022,056)

(A, 9UT D84 ATH)
FA5 00 530 649

(137 484.04] 4003

P TAT.2T)

(2,124,742 652)

2 AN D000
1,414,750 867
(142,67 1.296,952)

CONSOLIDATED CASIH FLOW STATEMENT
(Under indirect method:

For e fscat year ended Daceimber 31, 2024

Uinde: FWD

TTEMS Code  Mobcs Yoar 2024

ITE. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITILS

1. Proceeds [rom ssue of shares and capital contribution il 2

2. Pavments for shares retums smd repurchnses 32 -

3, Procceds from horrawings i3 OVILe UK, 701368930

4, R:ﬁa}-azleuts of borrowiigs 34 WVILS (T16,131,801,468)

5. Pavracats for finance leuse liabilitiayg 3 [RE4,074,590)

&, Thvidends paid 36 -
Met cosh infMows{ontflows) from tinancing activities 40 (208,313, 109,127)

Met cash ioflows{ontfovrs) (50 = 204 30 + 40} 5l 14,0005,4%0,952
(ha.]__L and eienh equivalents at the begiuning of the

vear 1] 23,051,749 620
CiTecl of Tersiim exchanpe differances sl -
Cash amd cash eyuivaleols al (he eod of the venr T ¥.1 27 000,240,572

Year 2023

ZUZ,E0G 687,735
(421,515, 080,312
£1,227,000. 605
(90,000,007
(210,628,302 574)

(30,253,149,882)
53,534, 809,502

13,05 1,749,620

=

{70 = E0-r60+61)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For tha figosd yaage enoed Dezerber 1, 2035
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B L'S;I‘-IEE.‘S HIGHLICHTS
ngingss highliphis
Eztahlishmont

Cucng Taven 10LCD Development [ovestment Ceorpocation ("The Compeny") was esfablished onder the Dusines
Rogistration Cortificase Mo, 3600439834, the first neistensd on Seplemter 19, 2007 by The Depariment of Planoing s
lyvestment of Dong Mai provine: issucd and the fourtzenth amended deted Fzbmoare 01, 2024 on changing information
uf lezul represeniative.

Strneture of ownership: Joint Stock Compuny,

« Business sector

Corstetion and Industrial pradussion,

Ngiul nghé ldnh deanh

= Canstructan of ;_:;i".-'jlI ety ri_r:], I'ra-'.r:-.pnrlali,-:'-'r.l anid irriﬁ&-‘.‘illi} w-.:rkﬁ‘, ciceitlicn of civil and industrial elocizical Wﬂrk:i;
Tamd Tewelings, nxed freicht trassposlation; prossssing ol suil, stewe, aod saod (eaelediog prosesie ol the Tenlguanisss),
tzdl estatz business; trading of construction materials; buying and selling end leasiog o machinery and constroclion
aquiptect; menufaciuring and prosessing of meedanical and cencrote praduets (exclucing manufactring and processing
ut the headguarlens); exploilation of slung, :and, pravel, clay; processing of soil, stone, sand (excluding processing at the
Leadaguarers); business in demestic thurisr, hotzls; producion and sale of various types of reinforoed conzrcte pipes
wsing rolucy pressing aod cenlrilogal chinciopy, aod bot capaalt comerets dexcluding produciion at the headquariers)...
- [vestiment in the constroetion of inmspockien aroisels Gomder the Build-operste-trnmsSes - O mehod);

Constrastion of eivil, ndustrial, ranzportation, rrigaton, and telecommunisaticn works,
= Vgl collechom services, whalesala of hpcci..-l,]i.u_'li tralTic anid construslion ;.'|.|_uij'.|r'|¢'.|'.;
- Rl estee business, land wse mizhils under owoership, uss, o Laase,

Englizh myme: CLITORG TIT TAR TDICO DEVEOPMENT TRVESTMENT CORPOR ATION.
Shorl name: CTC,

Securities eode: CTT {Listed and-radad on HeSE - Ho Chi Minh City Sock Excnangz Ho Chi Minb),
Headd ullives ]:x:u. 103 Quantz L, AnBioh Ward, Bica Hoa City, Dong ™ai Provines, Vietnam,

. Wovmal sperating eyele

Monnal cpesating evele of the Company Tasts 12 months of the aomoal fiscel wear beginning from Janwary 01 cod ending
on Ckoznmber 31,

Toe projects will operam feconding o the company’s busieess plan

Lertind l:.;||||_|-]_1,|:|- vies [or e '.’I-]_., M2 ARy j,:l.J-:rJ.ll-.:. IT}';_'_'. ::II, MIEZ A0 ]luul_ﬂl.: .:I.

. F:nleriu e Slruclure

list of srheidiaes
« Mtz of stbs.diaries Leing consolidated: 06 subsidiarics.

- Munbe: of svba diarizs not being conaelidared: Mons.

AUFLES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o the Teeol pear ened Deceodler 31, 2024

6.2 Lis of subsidiuries cndsr consalidztion

Linlp. MO

Asal December 31, 2024, the Group has six 0000 dlsetly owned coipaniss as Sllows:

Comonny wame and

P i

Privcipal acabviiias

Leroermlope af
sirednlding

Feroentage of

nwning

Parcentags of
vafinr Fiich/

Doag Thuan  Investment

Joint Srock Cowgany

Address, Wo

Mai Prowinee, Wictnam

315 Vo
M yen Giap, Phose: Tam
Ward, Bien Hos E_'.'Lt__'f', Dong

< Investing, builzing.
cxpooring and tradirg
whan technalog ca
i'lrl'd."\-l.rIJLi:.'.E'l_'E'_i I_|'|'|_-C\_‘|=]'
LT method;
Construction. of civil,
industrial,
Lansportelon  and
irigatinn projects,

- Beal eslule business,
lemd wsz rights
belonging  to the
ORI, LsEir T temni,

B3 100

B3 TR

83, 1030

e Lo 91 Can Lie - An

Ciiang Investment B0

Acdress: Moo 315 Vo
Neoven (fiap, Fhuoo 'Ien
Ward, Bizn Hoa Ciy, Dang

e Provines, Vizinam

Fsilihing “raffic works;

Imwesting,  building
t=afhie woarks |:u;||:|;.'r
Baxy fuelhdy;
Digiiding  vpes of
Fouszs, other  civil
wirles; Toll eallection
Services,

A AT

ST

59975

An Thupr  Phor  BOT

Tnnestment J3C

Address: Mo, 313

Mgnven Giap, Phooe Tan
Werd, Bien Haa Ciy, [ong

Wai Provinee, Yietnam

W

Fuilding watfic works
(ueder ke Torm of
Build-Uporarc-
Transfer  (DOTHY
Building 2ubiic worls;
Houses of all Lvpes
Qi civil  azd
uﬁl‘.nn—'.ng_"n::—:] wearks,
Tol collectiion
SUTNICEE,

5.25%

95.25%

W
L
b
L
El

Cunng Thuen CTT Webizle

Bl oy Curporaion

Addrezs; No. 370024 Vo
Mauyen Giep, Phues Tan
Ward, Hicn Haa Cizy, NDiong

Mai P-owinee, ¥ielnam

Trading awmtos  and
other iaclor vehicles,
fMuintaining, repairing
autes and otlie: motar
vithicles,

Cliecling, and
EnAyzEing techaalozy:
repslenn vehicles.

80T

83.67%

067




NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fuar e el prer kel Divemder 37, 2024

L. PN

.2 List ol subsidiaries vader consalidation (Cong)

I I r AR ¥ P 3 i 3 3
I..I'.li"i"i!j':'ﬂ?'i'_'l-l.‘i NOEHE TR P vt Fﬁ.rv.:;,zagpt o FEF'..-\..rIE'fI'..."Fr"l. i Per'ﬁ'emqg:re at
AR wheprebipkiding PV vritdaer ks
Building raffiz works
ROT 419 Cuionp Thizzn oty Wer the fumm of
80 Puild-Operase-
Transfer  (TOTE
Addtess: No. 315 Vo uldingpublsworks; 67.53% 67.57% 67 53%
Mevven Gilap, Phwes Tan : S L
‘-"-'-'-E’-;] Ricn Hoa City. on Ollwer wivil sl
ull'i.ir:'ll"r'irlt'; 1."il.‘!:|-ll:!:r.l. . neehRii] - erks
i ; Toll colikction
seErvicEs.
Cueng Thum ClL Uourigt
= ~atinr
Corporation Hotel, ikl
. _ smawients, ko
f‘lflf'li’“‘“h'q:“‘r:";';“H;;“‘;;E;'“ management, local L6010 160.001% 100.00%
o ' L waterway

Group,Vink Aa Town, Vich
Cun  Dhstrict, Dong Mol

TP in

s 00T i (LT

. Disclosure pn compavability of information in the Consolidsted Finuneial Siofements

The zolection of OEures aod infocmstion need to be presented in the congolidated financial siatoments hzz boen
irnplemanted on the principle of comparability pmong corresponding veoounting periads.

CACCOUNTING FERIOD AND REPORTING CURRENCY

. Fiseal vear

18

%

Tha fizeal vear of the Group zegin on Janenry 01 wn:d spded Dezember 31 aomually.

Keporting currency

Victnarn Dung (YD s used a5 2 currenes ol Ty aveonnliog ieeonds,

ADOPTHNN OF AQCOUNTING STANDARDS AND NALLICLESS

Applicable Accounting Sysiem

The Croap epplies Vichwmes: Accooncing Sendords, WVielnamese Corporate Azcounting Regimz isswead onder Cincular
Me, 20020 4 TT-BTC dated Decambes 22, 2014, Circular Mo, S32016/T1-D1C dated March 21, 2016 amending and
supplemieniing a mumber of afleles of Circular Mo, 200020 [ TT-BTC and circulers puiding e implemenition of
acconnting standords of the PMinsicy ol Fmance o prapasing awd presenting finaocial statemeants,

The Group apalies Civaular So 20220014 0T-BTC "Circwlar 202" duled December 22, 2014 issued by the Ministiy of
Firanee providing puidimee the praparatinn aod presenration of the Conznlidared Finane’sl Stetoment. Cironlar Ma, 2002
raplaces previons puidzlines in Soction XL of Circolar Mo, 16 L0 TL-ATC duled Decernber 31, 2007 isoued by the
Blinistry of Finarce,

. Disclosure of compliance with Yictnamese Aveonnling Stumdards and he ¥Vielmmese Acconfing Syarem

We conducled our secounliog, prepavaliv sl prescitalon of e consolidassd fisancial statcments e aceosdance with
Wiemamess Accourtitg Slandards, Corportle Accounting Eveewm, Yienamese Corporane Accounting Swstem and ather
relzvent statutary tegulatiang, The consalidated finencial stetements give a tree and S view ¢l Lhe stale ol alfairs ol Th

£ ey e d b rpaelle P ira spsszalidared nmersticns as lllln'l'l £a |-u: .-nnun'llﬂl:-r\--"l rech +'|.n|:|n:
ITOHD NG L0 TRELLE O 15 COnzanaien LIPS Iaiadin 5 5 i =L G

For e tscal yeur ended December 31, 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Linde: ¥V

2, Tiisclosure of compliance with Viemamese Accounting Standards and the Vietoamese Accounting System [Cont)

Iv.

1

The zelzction of figures apd Infonuetion presentad in the notes o e fransial satanents has complicd with G neaneriel
principle in Yietnamess Accourting Standard Mo2 1 - Prosentarion of the finsrcial stazments,

APPLICARLE ACCOLINTING POLICIEER
Hisiz ol somsanlioda liun

The eonsnldated tinancial stasements compeise of the fingncial starements of’ Coong Thoan TDICO Devalapment
Troveatinent Cosporation {"the Company™) anil it subaidianies (Cthe Croop') Ror the leeal year endud Devember 31, 2024,

Firancial stoements are poepared on the besis of ecoronl eccounting fexeept for information relzted oo cash floss)

The finansial statements of tha subsidiasy are consalidated fron the parehase dats whan the Groap stacts contral o tha
clats il e e contenl,

The subsidiaries’ finarcial statements are preparcd tor the same fiseal vear as Coong Thuan 1D1CO Developrment
Invvesiment Corperalion Commpeny’s wader Ui sccounding pooicdss o corsisency with Cusdg Thuen IDICO Develoamend
Irvzstment Corporazion and its subsidiarics, The adjmtmerts for ary different accounting policizs ars implemrented o
snzure Lhe consislency betwess the Subsidiaries ad Cuong Thuan IDICO Development [nvesunsnl Corpcation.
Allinler-Group talenues amd mevens, owwne, sxpeises noomrs) Do cansaciions of e Goeup, ncludiog anealize]
zaing incurmed from inter Growp Tansactions in the assets” value gre completely eliminatesd.

Unrealized loss incurnesd frow intra-gronp teanssctions recorded in fhe assets’ valuo are climinated wher the expenics
rezulting in the loss ars urreroverable,

[t zase of revence from constrection activity of the perent comnpany who is investor, coniracior and subsidizry whoe is
BOT project emerprise, the Groop prepaves the consolicated financial statements on the peociple of aliminating
mverieppzd tactors in the complex of parenl comzany — subsidiary wilhoul infuencing the revenue, profi! aller Lo [
corslrcrinn of ROT perajkers inplemented by the Campany in order o cnsues the sharcholders’ irteress and promate
paolicias of encousmgnng nvestmens it national infrastroctures by socialization capital sources.

Intzrest of uncenlrolled sharsholders represerts the portion in gain or loss and net asscts o7 the subsidiares that are nod
held By the Growp and presented separatsly in Le consolideled Income Stelement and Trom sharebol ters' eguily of the
Cirsup i Uie owiess’ equiny e consolidated Balanes Sheet,

Lusses fgurred i the sulstdiany se allostel o cogespomlooce with the wneeptollal shaehohles' portiog of
ownarship, inciuding e ciee whers those Josses gre greater (han the uncentoellsd sharehoklers” porion of ownership in
the subsidiaiy's net azset,

Crood-will (o guin om Eacmin porchase) ecising Som poschass alancinterest in the snbsidiary is the dilfessnes Bbebwazern
enct of sequiaition end fair value of the identitislle net asscte of the subsidisey at the dale of nequisition. The pood-will
wil e alloceted g;u!l.'a-.”:.' amid :-.|-.‘:w|:.-' fi the cabimared inaviznum wseful life nat E-Hl:::;.‘,d.il'n?l Len yGard. T’-:':I'-ll.'tliit-.".'l.":r', the
Grroup valuutes logs ol guedwill Incase wiene svidence showe il e loss of guodwill 2 greater B allocated aoweadl,
allacetion will be made by the Inst goadwill cight in the pericd of oocormences,

Chaoge in (he ownership percentage of Incorporatio in the snbsidlary

Wacn the Ciroup cordinues o iovest o the subsidiany o rise its nteres percenrage, the differences belween che
irvestment oozt and she net book valoe of tae subsidisnds oot asseis eoquired wall ze cecorded dircotly o the
vt slriboe = pl:\-:'.l,_',l altar 1ax i the halarcs shast

Woen capilal withdraval does por make the Group lose cootrol vight over the Subsidiary, al the differencas betweon the
pracocds fiom cepital withdrawal in che Subsidiary und its net usset plus (=) the poodwill which has not bzen completely
elloculed wre recordzd in he undistibared prefit afier 1ax in the consolidated Balance Sheet,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For gne fveal veor eded Dvcewber 51, 2024
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Chuonge in the ownership pereentage of Ineorporatin in the subsidiary (Cont}

When cepital withdeawal mmxses the Group lose control cghl aver the Subsdiare, 2l the diflerences between the
preceeds Lrom ceptlal withdraweal in the Subsidiary and its nat asset plus () the poodwill whica bas not been completzly
allocared are rogerdzd in the vodistzibwied peoflr afier tax o the corsclidated Income S.element. Alter the wilbdmwal,
the remaining inlersst porlion in the subsidiary will ae recorded by the residusl ook value of the Dvestment in the parant
chmpany's privas finenc’al statorients &flor the adjusunent fllowing e eguivalenl percenlage Doc chumges o e
oweers anuiny fince the arguizicion dads Ceapely medbod ) 10 the -Groop sHl makes sipnifeant Impacs on he investes or
preserhed of the orignal cost of the residual investreent (Fthere are no sipnificant impacts,

Primeiples tor aceounting finaneial invesiments
Frimciples for accounting leans

Louns are determined al vosl less provisions for bad cebls. Provision for bac debis of loans is established based on he
cxpocied [ovel nf loss that may oo, ]

. Primciples for recording caal and casl equivalents

ash ineludes cash on hard, dowmand dzpasit,

Cash aquivaleals ars shod-term inveslments with & redenption period or maturity of no more than 3 months from he
datz of purchase, casily corrvertible tmbne A srecified ameunt of cash and doonet bave mach visk in conversion intoomency,

Principles for recordiog trade receivables and other recervables

Kereivables gre presented at book value less provisions for dovkbifiul delxis,

The classifcetion of receivabley is caoried out aceonditg o te following prineiples:

- Receivables from ousromers roflect commoercial receivables avising rom purchasesale ransoelions belwaen 1he
If_:n:-up and “he '|1|.|:,-q_'r w13 35 A in:]L'.rlu_rn.h:l:l'. unil of tho f:-;l].'l]_'.\."l:l_}'.

- Inlernal reveivables rellecl receivables from allilioed anile withool Jeeel stsles and being dependent aczounling
cntirics,

- {ther reocivables reflest nen-comnereiol receivables, not reloted t2 purchase and scle ransastions

Provigion for bad debts js madc o esch had debe bazsed on e overdne age of the debis or the expectad level of Loss
bt oy ovcur, specifically e follows: 3

- Har nverduc recoivahles: The Group estimates the lost valuz and makes provdsions according to currens regmlations,

- Fre veeeivahles thar are ot overdne boo are nnlkely to he resovaren: base nn tha expenied l=vel of Teas Inoget up
ProVISLILE,

Increases and decreases in had deblt provisicn balances that need to be approprioted at fhe end of the fAseel vear arc
recorded [n corporate MALRERMen] SxXpenses,

Principles for recording imsen bories

[rivenbories ara pecordend at e Tower o cost aned sl realieahle welpe

The eriginal cost of inventory is determined as follows:

- Haw materils and poods; includes purchasine cosls and oler directly relaled costs nourred (o brirg inventbony o ik
currcnt lacation and condition,

= 'I?'iTI:i'ﬁl'IEIII [JI'IFI."LI LA i.'l'i."_l]l.li.'n.“- I |:r|a-.|l|.':|-r|.] 'L'vll."aL"\-n.l ':I'il.'i.'l_". Ii’l.h:lr H:I_'.'I J'E-]_-i11|:|] I_'[I,ﬂ[ll.l_-i’l.i.'l.l.l.._]‘ng U‘,"ﬂ:hl::i‘ld I,:';.'Ib'l'ﬁ |hﬂt AT _['.l'l'e_hr.[
allociled besed wooorond operating levels, dirzel coels and mlalsd geoend cosls incurred during the invesbmens and
consruetion prosess of consreetion.

- Coel ol production and buesioess in proeress: includes Qe cosl of mein row mederials, divcet labor ard relwed
menufacturing nweread.

Rethivud ol calevlhitng inverrnsies! valoe:s Waighisd svemige mechol, parficolerle Toeowark v progress smd fimzhed goacds
relznzed from werehouse secording to the actusl spocitic method.
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6. Prineiples for recording inventories (Cont.)

71

Method of accenating Dor (he invemdorics: Perpetial method.,

*lethiod For setting up provisions [or desaleation of inventory: Provizion tor devalnation of ivwentary iz estahlished
[ar essich inventory dtem whose original price i3 greater than 18 net realizable valiue, Wal realizehle value iz the estimatad
eclling price of Ivventories in the srdinary course of busness less the estimcted cests of completion end the cstimaled
cosls neecssary 1o conswne fhem, {Lor services orovided in progress, the provizion for Jdevaluation s celeulatzd
evorciog W each ype of service with a separate price.”

Increases &rd decreases in the balenees of provision lor devaleation of inventory Gt neod 0 ke appropricted af the end
of the fscel year ace recordsd tnecst of goods sald.

Prionciples fuor recording and depreciating fized assefs
Principles for recording tangible fimed asscts

“ungiblz fixed assets are starcd ar origingl cost kss acenslatad depreciaion. The initiul cost o7 a teraible fxed assst
comprizes All expendimres of bringing the s o s workite condifion. snd loestion for i3 tended use. That the
encpenses are raconded nfler the iniiiul cos: iz recorded sz an sdditional coe: of rancible fixed sssets when they have
resulted inom inerense in the futore coonomic bensfita expected to be obtaired Mram the use of those langible Oaed assels,
The expendtuiss which do oot meet tie alwve consditicus s chmrgad W e expenses b e vear,

When fhe assets gre sold or disposed, their original cosls and the socerrulated deprociation which have boon wimen off
ared wry wein or loss frorn disposal of asszts are vesarded in the Dncome siatecnend,

Delermiralion of srizinsl costs of fangibls fixed asses:

Vompdhle o aesers perciazed

The ceignal cost of purehozed tangitle fived assets shall songisl of the aclual punchase rce less -] ads discounts or
tedoction plus (1 lages (cauluding bases o be relugedod) aod pelevant eapensss cloalated to the time when such fixed
23515 are pul e eoeralion such as fees for installation and trial nporaticn of fixed assets; specialist and other direct
LSk,

The ariginal eost al e mgible Gxed asset foomed from zapital consteetion under the mode af lendering shall be (he
finulizntion price of the consuuction praject, ether ralevant fees plus (1) repisiraton Gee (3 any).

Fixed asset: wiich are suildings, stroctores atacied 1o land use cight, the value of land vse right is computes separateby
and recorded & innacgible fixed assals

':r'-.'r.'rla:‘:e'.r.l."c'lﬂ.m'.:.i' sy onneras el i_'.r_Fl':Jn.i'.l..:;'.r.;'l! E‘.!_:r' iy I:'..-'I.'-'?"i!,l'-l-'-lTl_'I-" I'f-TSI!_:i':'

The original cost ol o lanible fixed asset which is constraeted or produced by the Company itgelf sholl includs (he
actual proviction ear ot 112 fived asset slns (1) expenies for instellalion snd el operation. [0 case where the Compeny
trams fers ils sell-produced products to fived asseis, the orginal eosts will e the production costs plus (0 other relesvan:
caponacs colevlatzd to the tine wher queh fxoed assel s il 11l |_'||_:||.'.;r._-'::ir_5|_'|_. o such cas= all int=rnal zains will not bo
psa ] Gl I,_:llit_'-IIIHI warsts ol those Oxed asses,

T} Primciples for recording intanpible [ixed asseis

Infangible lixed wssels are slided ol cost less pecomuelaed anortization, The ariging] cost of & iokangible fixed assel
eomipriszs 2l oozt of cwning the asset o the date it s put info operation as expscted.

Principles for rzeording intzngible fived assers

Durohase of veporale Inlansi e fived aiiets

The ariginal cosl of purchesed inangibls fived asscts shall consist of the acteal purchase price pavaile less =) fnade
discountz or reduction plus (+) taxes {excluding taxes to be refunded) and relevant expenses eoloulated to the ime when

such fixed assets are put iale operalion, The land use gghls whick are purchosed together with buildings, struetuics will
b detebmd sepandedy sl reourded v inlaneible Hxed gsseds,



NOTES 1O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fecol yeor ended Deceinher 11, 2024

nic FAD

T.2 Principles for vecording intangible fixed assels (Conl)

Fuvahiase of saparaty ltangiila fond awety

If an istengrhle theed asset iz forced frowm the exclunge invelving payment sccompanicd with vouchers related o the
capital ownership of e estuolishmert, it original enat i= the reasonable valne of vouchers fssusd in relaiion 1o capital
owTershiz,

Laecd pset pientls

Land nsa rights are all acliml expenses the Group has paid that ave directly related o used land, ieluding: noney spent
b huwe land vze rights, coste far compenzation and ste clearzncs, sile Jeveling, repistration fees, eto, When Innd use
tights arc purchaszad elong with houses and archileehmal obiets oo the laad, the valus of land nse rights is detesimized
sopasaie]y and roaonded ws nlnogible el weseis

Srinaars prapram,

Cnsts relatad 10 computes sollware programs that are not an integral part of the raiaed hasdware ave caplialized, The
origiinl price of cornpuler sofbaure is ell expanszes thar the Company has spent up to the Gime the sellwars is pul into use.
Terd! coldloen o ."J:II:-.'.;!'.':

The oeigingl cost of foll colleclion right is dewstmired by finalized vahe of the project on the basis of all expenditures

that the enterprise spends “or investing in the project n complianes with the spmed comtracl W the dule the asset: ane put
infe nze a5 expactad.

7.3 FPrinciples for recording financiol fzare fiued assei

A leimse s clindBed ne o finsmes [ease iFthe majerity of the risks a1d rewands incident] W cwnership of the reset belong
o the lessce.

Finunce l2ased fixed assets are expressed &t cost less accusniiated depreciubion. The cost of a finance |oased fixed assct is
the Loweer of the fair valee of the leased azsel al the inceplion of the lease comoract and the present value of the minmin
leaze. pavenent. The discount rabes te calculate the preszat valne of the minimum kase payviment for o properly leass is the
interest rate implcit in the proserty lease contract oF the iferes) rale siated in the contracs. [n caso the intores: rate
imgTicit I the lemee contracl cannot be detennined, the loan interest eane at the beginning of the lease will ba waed,
Method of depreciating and amoriziag fieod ogsery

Depreviaion is cuarged to write off the cost of fixed assets an a sleaiphi e bosls over Ui estimaied ussiul lives.
Uselisl life means the deration in wiich the tengible fixed assets procuce thaie elect un prod setion and business.

Vive costlemoied s fiaf fife jor wseety iv o5 follows

Brialags and sireciures J - 40 years
Aaeliiviery and eguimment Ve 03 ears
Uremsportation and facilites A - 43 pears
Gl ggrndoment 4o 5 oypears
Chfiers 1= &l penrs
Laand pxe Fighis I3 yeurs

e gaa iphly wiich are pranded Jor o indefinile ferm e cavvied of cost and kot osmoried,

The todl coleation rights cover the steeted from iometes TR0 an Natisea! Highway 1, Sioweter T4-000 1
icaeier 501 330 aw Nationz! Wighvay 95, the dedicated road af i Phuan Plad foll statiun, te cxtzackad savtivg of
cocel 305, ol dhee Etercfeange with dhe Lo Cf Mink City - Losg Thanh - Do Glay Expressway in Shon Troch Divieet
urrd Lonp Tianh Toas Thess are fimaee BOT imvastmenr phosects, wed Ine Uroup depreciales them pwing e meffne of
Jropaetioed Fe o G0l risiawe fie (e perdod (iilar to deprecizfion based o guansing ar valene of producis)
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&, Principles for recording construviiom in progress

1

11.

Canetruetion in peogress 200ta reflecl costs (fneluding ioteresi costs) divcetly selated, in pecordanee with the Group's
accounting poleiss, ko assets under construction, machinery and eguipmant heing installad to savs producion, lsase and
misnagernenl purpuses a8 wall as costs related 1o ongolng repales of fived asses. 1Hiese assels are pecovdad at cost il are
not deprociatzd.

Thzse cosls are cepilaliced as an eddibon to the gsset valuz when the eanstoction iz camplered, the asset iz handed over,
and it iv roedy Jor uze,

I vases ol the constrielion which hus bhezn put inoe wse boc the settlzment of Dneomplets eonstnestion has nat boen
finalizad, thzse costs arz recordad az an inccease In fhe book value of lixed assets al the provistonsl gefllement vilue, The
bock wvitlie of these lned wesls will be adjusted and fully reengiizad based on the settlement value of the comploned
construchor,

Principles for recording prepaid expenses

Prapaid expenses include aetaal expenses that have been ncureed bul are relelsd W business results of many accountine
pericsds, The Groug's prepeild expenses inciuds: expenses of rock exploiteton; repair of lxed assels; ols ed suzplies
awenttingz allocution smd other prepaid exporsss. Method of allocating prepeid zxpenses: The calsulating snd allocsting of
prepaid expenzes to business operating expenses of sach pencd are accosding to he simight line methad,

Method of alloeating prepaid expenses: The deferminiage and wllocating of prepaid expenses lolo coste of producton
and doing business of each period is nn a straight-line basis, Bazcd on the naturz and level of cach exponse, the torm of
allocation is defined &5 folows: short-tesn prepid sxpenses should be alloceted within 12 montls; Dong<ecn expenses
should Be ellocated m the tenm from over 12 momths 40 38 months, Particularky, the rock cxnlnitation project is zllpcated
according to the sxploiling term.

Prinviples for recording liabilities
Liehilities are recopiized foo anounts to be paid i D fune foo poods and secvices cecived. Acomed expenses as
recaenized based oo reasonable esiusanes of the amouan pavabls.

I'he classitication of payahles &8 payatles tn sollers, pavable cxpenses, internal payables and othar payehles is done
accarding to rhe fallowing principles:

= Trade payablzs sefest tade paveblas csiog from purchiszs of powds, services, essels and the zeller s an insdependent
it s Lhie Group. ; ’

- Irtamal payvebles reflect navebles hetwcen superior unirs and suhordinate unies withon® depandent accnrnting lezal
sl

= Uther payablzs rellect non-commercial pavablies, not relaed o tunsactions of hudrg, sziling or prosiding with goods
and scrvices.

Prinviples [or recording borrweings

Borrowings are mmal amounts the Grovp owe to banks, institicns, Tancial companies and ofher objests (excludng
burrawdrgs under the Gorm ol bood),

Finencial leasc liabilities are rooorded a5 totel payable amount cxfoulated by present value of minimum [esse pagimeain
amoints or faic valve of leased assets

Boreowings and firancial Tesse liabilities are mondtersd in detn] aceocding e creditor, apceement ans bormeesd nssst.
Frinciples for recovding and capitalising borrowing eosts

F'I'il'u::i._|:l|2:=\. o tl.‘::'&ll‘iihg |::-|.‘:-r|.'\-:'.l'-'=.'i|'|$l Gisla: H-::lrn:’tlv."-lf.l.t'; corils clide loan inlerest and other cosls necrred -;]'i]'l:q::]}' r=lared
Lir Do, Buarowige vosts ame reconled as expaises wlizo bouered,
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12, Principles far recording and capitalizing borrowing costs (Dol

13

id

In cases whore berrowing costs ars diccetly related o construston investment or production of unfinizhcd asscls thel
ocad & long, coough pericd of Gme (ever 12 wenths} o be put e use B the iisnled popose o sold, deo Uese
oozsrowlng ©osls are capitalized For separale loaos serving Lhe construclion of lixed asses, lovesiment peoperty, the
interest 35 cupitalized even i the constroction petiod is lzss than 12 moeths, Income arising from D torporary
imvestient of loans 13 recorded a5 8 decrease in the cost of the relevan! assels.

Far panecal Toana that areuzed for consencting meastinest pogses or prol cliom of unficishend asseis, the capiialisel
borrowing costz o determined according to the capitalization vare for the averape cumculative cost arising Jor investoent
in capital constuction or production of that assct. The capitalization rate iz caleulated aecording to the weigheed everege
intg ot vats of suistanding loans ducing s yvear, sasopl T separate leans sorviog, e purpose of creating & specili sl

Prineiples for recording acernnls

Avoreed sxpenses relleel amounts peyeble Tor roeds mmd seovives received fom (ke seller or provided o e buver bul
not yer paid die to lack of inveices o insufticien: rezords, accourting docurcenss snd amounts payable to employees in
Lo ol viaztion wises, producticn and business expenses that must be deducled inadviance,

Principles for recording provision liabilities

Provisions are fecopnized when Sz Company has & present obligation (legal or coastuetive} a2 a meevle of 3 past event
arted setillemaent of the |_r"|];igr|.lir_.~;r| 15 |iL;5:,- Liv resull i the ceonormic benelits and valos of the Ell'.'l]-IEEtiCll:'l can B catizrated
relivhly.

The Group: pavable provisions include warranty foe produe’s, warranty foe construstion works, provsion tor perjodizal
repair and maintonance of fixed asscts (umder ooonizal requiremert) and povable provisions Tor condnacls willo major risk
in which the pavable costs for the obligations relafing o che comtract excesd the ecoacmic hercfits cxpacted to be
abduined from such confracks,

. Principles for recovding unsarmed revernue

Llareaiizesd revemoe 13 Thi revenus which waill be meearded o u-:_1rr|:hp-:_']1|||:|:|-:-:- wila (ke -:|E:l|iEl,ﬂlEl.’t-:'.R tat the |:-:'.II‘:II|zr|:.- rrisl
perlorm in one or more [ollowing eeoounting perods.

Lnearned revenue ncludes arpounls of cuslemers pad in edvance v one or many aecoundiog perieds for aszed leass .,
hatlicd of llocating unsarned revane i3 on the pringiple of canfarmity with obligations thar the Company will peefam
a0 ol one or severs] dovountiog peciods,

I'rinciples for recording Bonds

The haok value of & bone 15 usnally reflected on anct basis equal tn the bond value st per valuz mines bond discount
plus bond prempivn,

Principles for recurding owner’s Equily

T’riru.'i_p'lus Tar r\'I.HEIIrI.“l.'Ig owners® Iuli.r.'l: in IlllEIti.l:ﬂ

orane’s confribnicd cazital is reeorded according to the actual smont of eapital eontribuszd by sharcholdars,

Bhare premium: Share premivm is reeorded aceording to the diffarence hetwoon 10 issus prize and par value of shares

and capital components of converible tonds at maturity, Divect costz ralated to the imvance of add:honul shaves and re-
imsuance of Lecasury sharct are fzeorded a3 & decasass in shasz promiam.

Principles for recognizsiog undistributad earnings

Profis affer corporale meomes fax 15 distributed to shirebolders after setiing up funds sccording 1o the Charter of ths
Company as well 25 the provizions of law and apavoved by the General bMeeting of Shereholders,
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17, Preimeiples for recnrding awner®s Tgoily et

15

14

Principles for recopoizing undistribaled varming:

The distribuficn of profits to sharsholders which takes into aczouwat non-miowstary items included in wndisnibutcd afte-
-ax prafits may affoet casn fAlow and ablity to pay dividends such & profts dos o rovalustion of assors coatr bured as
cacital, profits due to revaluation of mosetsry s, luaccial inslnuments wxd other non-awoneiary 2ms.

Drividznds are recorded as liakilities when epproved by the Ceneral Mesting of Shaseliolders,

Principles for recording treasury shares

Whisn repurctissing stures susd by the Group, the paymen, Including ransaciivn-relaed expenses, s reconds] as
reasury sheres gnd s reflected a5 a deductior. in equity. Wher re-issuing, the differeace belween the re-iEsue price z2nd
The book price of treasury shares is recorded in the itam "Share capite] surplus”,

rinciples [or recerding reveouss and olher income

Eevenue Tronn zoods sold

Sakes revenus i[5 recognized when the tollowing five (3) conditions ors simultaneousiy mes; 1. 'The enterprise has
transferrad mast of the risks and benefits assaciared with ownership of the smoduct o good: W e Buyer, 20 The
eaterprisz oo longer olds the tght 1o manage the goeds as the ewner of the goods or to right o control the goods; 3
Bovenue is maasured with relotive cerainly. When the contract stipulabes that the bever has the righl Lo relurn the
purchased produsts o goods under specific conditions, revemue 15 only recognized when thase specific conditions ne
longer exist and the buver s no. enbCed o retem the products ind gocds (excep. o cases witese custoreers have e richi
toe remaen pends in the fiom of excharge fiv other gnod= or servizes); 4. The.entorprise receives or will roceive coonomiz
benel s Iram The sales transection; 5. Casts related 1o sales tansactions can be iZentified.

Bevenue from service rendered

Raveae fTong f servive _';ll,,:l.-i:_-'ll,:ln Liasssaizbicn i ||.?»:.',-:|‘i_-',s'.i:--u_"r whon the outcome of that wansaction ean be doterninesd
relably. Incoses the secvics & parforced e mary periodls, the revenne recogrized Inthe parled s hased on the resel: of
the wark eomplaied at the end af tae accounting zeriod.

The rzsuliz of & sanvice provizion rransaction ae determined when all foae {4 eonditians are mat: 1. Revanve can he
dolemained with zelative certainiy, When the contnel slipoluies thal the bayes s entitled to retuen the purchased serces
under apeoifie conditions, rovenue is recognized only when these specific sonditions no lomger exist ond the buer Iz not
cpbitled o el Gwe pochased seovices, 20 Foooonie bonefits funn de transaction providing fat service can bo
abiined; 3. The work completed an the 2nd of the acconntlng perdod san be determined; 4, The easts lncueresd for the
transsciion and the ensts o compicie the serdce provision tansecion can be desrmined, -

Priveiples for recording revennes of a consirnetion contract

P comstruction eontracts thal stipulate thal (be confractor pavs aceordioy (o the valoe of the volume of werk
performed; whea the results of constuetion coatract perfermanze are reliably determined and confinmed by $e
custames, revenve ancd cosls relfalal fothe ool s reronled coressponding In e complered ok conlirmed =y the
customer-in the period reflectec-on the fveice,

Incrzzzes aad desrcascs in canstrction vo ume, compensation and oter rovenezs are orly recorced as revenne upon the
upreeinenl will the cusloceer.

Wacn the results of performanes of 2 construelion confroct connet be paliably estimoted, than: Revenue & only recordad
cdivalant to the confract coss ncwesd whose rzpaymert & relasively certaing Contact costs are on'y recorcsd as
exenses wheo lnenrred,

The diffsrence betwesn the total accranlared revenus of the construction contraet being cecorded and the accomuleled
ameont recorded on the payment invodcs accordinge tothe plamed progress of B conlmct s weearded gy a coccivabls o
pavanle aceonding o the planned progress of corstinelion contacts.
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1L Prineciples for reconding revennes and other neome {Cont)

20

21

Fringiples and method of recordng revenne fron operating leases

Kovenue from operesting leases 15 recoenized on o srangh-lne besis ovar the lease term. Benizl recedved noadvance Tor
many pericds iz allocated o vevenve in accordance with e rantal period.

Frioviples snd method of recocding revenue from sale of resl estale

Fnr works, wark items of which the Group being investors: Hecording surmovers from sales of ren! estare must selis0y
five follewing conditions: 1. The real estate has compleled and transfeered o <he buyess, enterprises have transierrcd
risks end benefits ausosialed with owneeship of the rel estzle lo the buyers; 2 Toterprises no longer beld e right to
inanape the rezl sstate as eal emarz's owners o the right to ool the rea” sstats; 3. The tumever is detemined relinkly;
4, BEntergeises have recoived or will roceive coonamic fenefits Fom the sales of the rzal estebz; 3. Costs nolated 1o sales alf
e real eslale miy be delecitnnes,

Principles for recording finauzial income

Tinanclal iceames includs interesss, distributed dividends and orofits and income from other financial activilies |
imvestmenl in essociales, subsidiares, oiher neeslmeits) 3

Fimneial incomes 5 recopnixed when tao eoaditions are simutaneoushy eatiztiod: 1. It iz possiblo t» gain bonefits from
thas tronsaziion; 2, Bevenue is detormined with relalive cerlainly,

Tnlerest iz recogoized onoan accrual basis, defermined on the belance of ceposit accounts end the setial nberest rate ol
each period. . ; '

Dividends aud distributed profits ore recopnized when the Compeny s entiled Lo reseive fham rom i wapital
s briliation., Trivideads reccived in the form of shates are only trecked based on the number of addizional shares and are
w0t recopnized In tems of valug, :

When an amcunt which hizs been recarded 23 an ireomc hecnmes irrocoverahls, such drrecoverab o o uncereinly
recoverahle amovnt must be accounted es expense incured othe peded, b oot recorded as inccime decrease,

Principlas and method of recording cost of goeds sald

sl ol gusls okl e thie cost of preducts, goods, services: cost of corstruction products incweed during the pericd and
oiher experses recondad o the eost of poocs sold or recorded a deercase inthe cost of goods sold in the reporing perind.
The cast of goods sold is recornded al the dale the eansaction incws or Jikely o inear in the futwre regacdless of payment
hag been made or nat, The eost of goods 20ld and revenue shall be recorded smullineously on conformity principles.
cxzenses sxcesding nonual consiuption levels ace recosded inumediately ro g 2ot of goods sold o proden: pringiples.

Principles and method of recording fnuncial expenses

Finuneiol expenses include expenses or less related 13 the financial irvestonent, orrowing cost and capital borvowing,
sontribution in associaly, expenses of sale of securitica.

Firanzial cupenses ane recorded In delails by their conlent gl defermined reliably when there are suTicient evidences
otk thiese E':!i"'._‘.'IE!E'IEES.

Principles nod metheds of recordiog tixes, delerced oeome tag

3 ot ks - W
sl bigis Lor delenoining speraiiog resull o e Group alle s el Qseal yeas,

Current tax is the tax pavable an the tezakble income end tax rube enacted in currenl yeir In eecordence with the low on
corporitls oo ay. -

Defarred income tax Liabiiitiss are the amonnss of ineoms tax payalie in the fiture poriods anzing o the eeoding of
the diferred income lex pevuble i the yeor and reversiog the deferrad icome b beng rezorded Bon polor years, The
Giroep dozs not secnrd in s azenunt the deferred meome tax sssets or delerred meeme lax Hehilitizs asing fron the
tranz<actens being recorded directly o the eeners’ equity,
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Fow e fivcal yaor ended Decewmnar 21 2024

LRt FVD

1, Principles and methods of recsrding taxes, deferred ineome tax {Cont.)

I3

Dielirmed iovoms s assed 15 e aduction of delsrad o pavable arising rom e recording ol e delernsd incomes s
perrable in the year end reversing e defarmed income tax being recorded from prioy years.

Defered inecme tax asses and deferred Ineome fax lakilities ave offset when the Groap has the legal ight o ofiss
vimreml ircome Do mssels wEinsl corrent income G Lahilities sod G defemed ineoee s mesds smd defers] ineome
tax lighiltize arc rzlevant to corporats imeome fex whizh iz undzr the mensgement of ooe tax authority of the same
subjocl b corporate ipcome fax and the Group bas indontoes o pay currzal inzoms tax Tabilitizs and curront income max
iwssEls uiLa fel sasls,

The fax wnounts payable w the Stele bodeet wall be Cnalieed with the lax offies, illepences belween the s gmounss
pavaile specitizd in the book and $10 tax anowms under Analization will be adjusted when the tax finalizztion has been
ssaes b the taw aoffice.

The company epplies the corporale lneome 12 mte Sor constcucton soclal houslng, which 15 10%, and for other
activitics, f0is 2%,
Priwciples Ior recording earnings per slare

Razio camirgs per share 15 celewlsed by dividinge net imeome pvaclable 1o conueon shareholders sefore appropriating to
Mnnus and Wa fare Furd By he weighted-average mumber of common sharss outstanding during tae aedod

Cllgred FI'%S f3 caloulated by dividing net fncome available o common sharshulder: Caller adjustiog, dividends of
prejeced convacsibie shares) by the weightod-average number of common sharz: owstending end the weighoed-average
number to be fssuad In cwee whees all dilutive sotenfial comumon are eonvermed inta eormon shanes,

Z4. Fivancial instroments

Twitial recoznition

Finanvial wsscls

Acronding lo Clreular Wo. 2120 TT-RTC daed Novemher 06, 2009 (Circolar Moo 210), financial wesels are
zlazsifics proparly, for the purpose of presentzlion s e linascial steierients, Do the financia) azset whizh arc stated ac
Gair valuz theewgh the Ircoms Stetzment. loens and recedvebles, hell-lo-maturily investments aod availazle-foe-sale
financinl pssels, The Crronp denides o classity theas assots at the date nf initial rocognition.

At the dete of initdal recoeniticn, the fimnelal asses are recopnizes an caat ples funsacton cost that wre directly
gllributable to the asquizition of the fnancial assels.

Firancia assets of the Compamy comprise cesh, Shartsterm and longtemm depesits, frado receivahles ard nther
receivables, other firancial instrumaniz.

Firaneiz] liabiliticy

Accoading, to Cireular 210, financial ssscts aee claysified properly, for the purpose of preseaiaton in the financial
statrmenfs, i e Goancial liahilities which are staved ar taic velus fwougk the Incoms Stoterment, fmemcial liebiliie
detenained on ameorised cost basis, The Compary desides to classi Gy theae liebilitics at the date of initicl secopnition.

Al the date of initial recogpition, the financial lwilitie: are recopntoed sl cosl plus tranzaction cost that are divectly
attributuble o the acyuisilion of e Inaacial liatilities

it Aol S o oy Py oy o L [ -l ____ [ ..
LN B PR ILGS =l i

LRI SRS,

Re-meazurements after initial reengnition )
Czrently, thers are no regquiremenis for the ce-ussasucsiosol of e Dogoeial stogooots aftee initial iecogition.

{Mfactbing

Financial asses and financial liabilites are offset and the met amount reporied in the coport un linancial positicon i 2nd
oaly I, thess Is A eurrently enforezable logal right w ofTsel the Mnanciul assels weainst el labilices or vice-versu
el there fx aninlentien B s=tlle ana et bagis oo to realize the assets and seftle the lasility simualaneoesly,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For ke fread s ended December 30, 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Linfe; Vv

For tha figeal wear ended Dhecember 3T, 2034 Chwil: ¥ NLD
24 Related parties 3. Held-tr-matority
Tnfarmnation gbout releled parties al the company is i follows: 'E';:'“*i' Ll Dee, 31, 2024 Jun, 07, 2024
B T , , ] : ] Ty s =T + e
(1% Individuals with direet or irdirect voling righls in reporbing entecprises hil lead Lo sizmifcunt Influense over De HEn Anonni Provision Amonnt Provision
Ciroup. Including clese family nembers of these individuals, Close family members of an indivicual are thodse who can Tarm deposits with
comcro. of br controliad by that person woen cenling wirhy n husiness aoch as: Father, minther, spanses, childzen, sihlings; il avesr [ Ths
(i) By managemen: emplovess have the righ.s end responsibilities or plasming, manging and conrroiling the acrhvices . FEmptg TATBALL 762 : 3,139,608,456 -

ool the Group, including lecders and management statt of the company and close family members of these individusls; Total TATHALLTH2 - 3,139,004 456 -

(i) Enterprises whene e individuals mentoned in 2ase (1) of case (37 direstly or indincetly hold an imporimt par of the
voting eights or through this, thet pemcon mm b aosigsilicant impact cn e biasingss, This incides busincsses thal are
cwned by the directars or major shareholders of the enterproe and businessas that share a ‘tey member of management
with the Ciruup, '

(0 A or 37 Drecemler 2024, held-m-mairify Ivesimenss oomiprlse 12w deposlt oonivacts wirh matiriiey of & o 12
manifs of comerersiol Doy, Baoving e ralfes Fanging rom DB 0 555 per e,

4. Trade receivables D, 31, 2024 da, 1, 2024
26, Principles for prosenting ossels, revenue and operating resulte by sepment : Amonnl Frovisiom Amount Proviginn
A teportalile sopment includes business segmenl or 2 geogriphical segment, Shori-ferm . ;
A business segment 15 & distnguishrble component of the Group thul is engueed i providing an individoel product or Loval cuslumers 40086977 (12,697923,750) 23,537,603,503 (13,208,515,980)

servies or 4 group of relatsd prodects or seevices and that is srhject to risk= anc retumns that eve different om ese of Mo 37) Jeizet Risek
ather husitess sepmante, Corpany

FALI SRR T 00 - - -

A sgopraphical segment is a distnguistuble compeneat of the Group 1at is enzaged in providing producls or services Fiafoom Dipteal

within a particular ecenamiz ervitnnment and thal s subject to sisks and returns that are difforent from those of Yromspord Al T3 IO T, A G 00 -
eomponants operating in ulher Sonomic Eviennents. Other bogel cusiomers 14876 146, 78] (12697923752 26,0153, 173,503 ({3, 200.615,980)
V. ADDITION AL INFORMATION K¥OR VIEMS STOWN TN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET Solak IHABIONTT  (1L69D.9IA TS TSSTHUSSUS  {13,209.615.980)
1. {:ash and cash equivalents Dec, 31, 2024 Jan, 01, F124 &, Prepayolents to snppliers Trec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 224
Cash T2 ik 20,57 22 884,119,300 . Amount Pravision Aannunt Provizion
sl e and 20604, 952 327 ERlu LR ol « D Bhort-tecrm
Trernand degosits 19,375,256, 245 18,917 473,777 Laeal supplicrs 17,242, 6536,240 (4,413,557, 260 31,159,922,264 (4,465,145, 144
L'usJ:l- coquivalents 15,000,000, HI0 16T, GUM, 2500 FLNACS Consliraction Sl - e B e
Tern dapaste [within 3 monihs] 13,000, 000,000 - 167 A0, 250 'H'ir-'r Dong e
Tatal A7,060,240,572 13,051, 749.670 fif;gﬂ;;ffm 2 682,239,080 - 2082 230,086 i
T Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024 Chher losal supplises 15,200,397, 154 AILIST200 T 74096 AT9 £, 455,145, 149)
Shart-term e e Skt Provision Taptal 17,282,636,240 (4,411,557, 260 31,150,922.264 {4, 465,145,149)
WINACT Consimetion J5C & g Tttt [r. (Mher recenble ez, A1, 2024 Jim. 01, 2424 )
Eﬁtrucl& ];j:lrzgm Aot Provisicn Al Trovision
180 5 i 1,000, 000,200 a. Shart-term 57,435,592,677 . 107,921 668,870 .
Total § : 8,558,459,578 Advance o Lhe
¥ implemertation of e
Siale profecl 0712331 509 = 8 ERA.IRLITR §

Advance far  purciase
lend §*)

Advaiges 1o emplayes
Dieposit ek 'Uen Cangs
Crwznsy

A7 A80,529,008
2,326, 426,687
7848767361

T 0AG T3R8 KT
P S e MR

91552706, 108
3.768,419,727



NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far iz fsoad yeor erded December 21, 2054

L o

.

CFher rsreivahles CComl

b. Lomg=term

Depusis for
anvizonmental
rehibiliLi ko,
{lther deposits

Taoskul

Theo 31, 2024

Jan. 01, 2024

NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amount Frovizion

AIOIRT

8515472372 .

TaE58.506,0068 -
556,063,704 -

15,458, 733,046 .

7,648, 1940973 :
7,420, 334.073 %

Provigion

55;151,“65.54_5}____ -

123,410,398,022 M

/=) Thie it ar afvenne mnawt i order fs condict the Grodips projects Jor sl olsorance proceis,

Boubiful debibs

- Total averdue or undue
raceivable! prepavments o
supplives Chut wre wniikely tn
e repoveorcd

+ Cherdiz recefvabies
PrERaUAenrs fo sipndiers
CF RIGRY CUE RS

Inventories

Ky mnterinls

Works tn prugress F
Finished goods
hlorzhandise invenmory

lapbul

Mhec. 31, 2024

1

Tam, @7, 20024

O clisinal ondt Recovernble Oieinad east Roeovrerable
= Amount R AMBOONT
17,7 14,682.422 FO4,20] 400 14,315,706, 344 17221073

17714.632,422 i, 200 40k __{.1.‘_..'1'!}. Fiid, 34 P22 073
The. 31, 20624 Jdan, 011, 2024

Uripinal eost Provizinm Original cost Provision
12210,19%,153 - Ilala k63,700 -

2 A0 TIH 143 - LI IT2 590,317 -
29,235 550,772 - 34,738 AGT BT -

TT2 03,530 - w1, EY1, 757
34“.(-2-? L THILSNE - TAP IR RS, 650 -

- Walue ot inactive, detericracd inventor.es which are aot possibly consurned ul the peir snds Mot spplicablz.

= "The varrying amount of inventories pledgod ex acewvity for liahilides: Mot applicable.

(41 Construction wock i
prOgross

- Projoet of Rops 250
Fhse | - Whoa Trach

= Can Tho - Ik Giang
ERPIESEWLY s

— Coisireotion af
Foendotion P,
rircrirese woarlky, e

b iam Rl Bridlas
COMEFNSNER proiest

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01,2024
U‘l‘i,‘:[il'ls.l st Provision il iEillill sl Frowizign
26252472400 - - g

123,512.852,113

P A R

BRI RV ]

5. A58,001,081 3

43,038, 705,007 -

13, 215984,499 m

- Coat of the stolwe quarry

For dhe e vear ended December 71, 2004 Lini: B
E. Inventories (ool

CFy Constrection work o Dee, 31, 2024 Jan, 01,2024

FEARRER Cheiginal oost Poovision Chiginal cost Frovision

+ Comsfrwction of Sy Chaw VA2 NITTE 260 2.2%9 333 -
Bricdee ans Kenf Ol
Hricke

- Bocial housing projest in 2E051,080.0385 2T R DI oa| -
Tan How Warl Bien How -
Ciry, Trong MNal Provinee
()

- Constmetion of Tan An 343 14,955, b0 - - -
Indusirial Clusier ()

- Comstrietan cirst af Thien S0_578 T s - . - =
Tom cquarey {e

- Others 15,880,570,682 . 19,626 490 315 4
Total 298,400,728,143 : 112,172,591,317 2

{1l - The Nociad Houving Profect ia Tam Hoa Wara wis appeovad fp tha Dang Nad Praviscial Paspda Comngittiea
ke Dheedslon Mo, JESEAOPLTIBND deded Jage 17, 2008, cod subsegent cclfustment decisiony No, 20000 U0ND
cerfed Febweoory J7 2007, cnd N, 2742°00-LBND dored July 6, 20240,

- decording @ (Hicial Letter Mo A155T0-00N anted Jovsary 22, 2024, fias the Depvotieend of Finakes - Doag
Meed Previncial Peaplde’s Commitive rogarcding the appeaival resadiv of the salling price awd renlad price plar for fhe
Eocial Hapsing Frofeot fn Tam Hog Word, Bien Hoo iy Domp Nai Provinse, the Deparmnent of Finmce bas
."ar.'.|';',".’-_-n'..r L f:r.-'.".'!'.'.'.r.rj_p |.:.I"r|'|=' TR coreced pevodta. Mo ey nodice, Phe Gl Sroveximent vorluir -:,J_,I"J'Fex S Flrl.u::-.e'u_j_.; .F'ru_ll'.;-u.-n'
in T oo Waen, Blen oo Oy way seioiclored v selisiinaiized by e Compory. Dherefore, the Compormy is
gaiely respansible bejore the faw fav Mg socuvacy of 1Re reporied ofain, the praiact voine, Bie consivicion gty mhd
Tt Teed sefiiemen! fgures,

(Bl The concraciion af (ke Tan Ar Techebeiod Clustar s carvied cwf imdar frvesfment Polizy Degision No, 3720708
LIEND igswed by the Dang hai Provincia! People’s Coniwittee on Felivwary T8, 2620, valizk wos Jater adfisted by
Dl B, :5’-?'3.-"{:_'5— IRND daved Movenafer 22, 2027 T nrru'.::_.-', e ;.-."l.!_fL-'r.'t I de Bl e chvcareaoe J-.-.F_-u-:c'

(i 3 According o Daclsfon Me, 73500 UBND fsppedd o December & 2024, By the Dong Noi Proviesial Peaple’s

Clarmmitiee, aporeving the neesimend policy and simlaneowsly coproving the Svestor, Cuensr Yheow FONN

Favesfneerd arnd Devalapmens Joint Stoek Oampany, for tha Fopdosiodlor o’ Provessing ol Cimsieuciion Stoee Projent

nt Thiswr Vima J0 Graerery, Tha maiving period Is rzlermined bozed oo the dwrarion speciisd i the mineral exploitation

license liraed by tie compelent autiority fina st excdezlng 20 pears rooe e dale Gee expdeftenlon Nesrne (6 gratod)

|:'.5'.;:¢' A I seradie Por _,'E.lr i I'.'.e,iu'.:.:_,l.

4. Long-term jswets in propgres Lhec, 31, 2424 Jnm. U1, 2024
ﬂ'l‘igilml enst Trrowisiem ] rig:n wl s Troxision
~ Yorks io progress 951,253, 740,652 - 589,122 834 076 -

116,481 819.55] 153,517,277 867
J"'rL'IJﬁi.'-l ab 1Till Tn.'dl'l;:lilﬁ

Thies T 3 Clluei Tao

104y



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Frar e Tvend prvar onckeed DhemDee 31, 2024 i FAL Lor phe fsead vear eraded Decendur 30, 2024 Limie ¥adn
¥. Long-term azsets in prngress The. 31, X024 T, 01,3024 9, Long-term assets in progress (Conl)
(Com. 1) Original enst el Original eost Pravigian fe) Congrenction-ln-progress costs for the Residential Avan praject in Phieec Tan Comune
- Tamd usu dghls vader 108,655, 100,000 E 161,273.243,967 According to Offizial Lamer Mo, T3TATTRND-EY) dated Decemniyer 27, 20012 fasuad by the People's Committer of Bier

conversion ol using Tor City regarding the invesiment approval for the housing developriond projest; The planned residential area prejes

perpase &1 awner's name
(b}

Testallation of waighirg
slatinn cyuipmend
Residential Area in Fhuoo
Tan Comimuae ch
[rvestmert oroject,
upzrading  Mational
Eaghweay 31 Cvn The - An
Ciang (d}

24,888,900, 208

AQ0E 1245 13y

153,724,595.822

RS 1AL R

05 L LU

1247835122, 162

in Phuos Tan Commune, Biea Hoa City has & sealu ol approsimalely 10,42 becleres, wilh & wotal investment capita’ of
W 48,58 Willion, This praject |= diesctly managed end opereed by Thang Thuan Tnvestnent Joint Stock Compais.

According to Officin] Letter Mo, 13 TURND-KTN daed October 28, 2020 jssued by Lhe People’s Cemmitee of
Nang Mai Province rapasding the adjraivent of the invsstment poliey approval for she planned resident & ares projec]
in Phune Tan Commune, Rien Hoa City, tie total invastment capital wae adjusted 1o VR 1,5341,2 billion, with an
eriperted completion date in Seatember 2024, As of the dats of this report, the Group is still in the process of land
clearancs for the proect. B

fel) Comstraciivn-tn=progress cosly for e invesfment and upevade profece af Nattanal Hipliway 87, Can Tha - An
(rinemg

Thiz reprasents [ntarest expenses wcuersd Trom bank loans weesl Tor the investmend and construction of Mational

Specialioed road trarsport 14.813,303,331 & [14,813.393,13] Ilighway 918 {12 Toll Sabon). Since May 25, 20019, toll collzetion at tie T2 staticn has been suspeaded, As a resull,
prajeet for constoacticn the corrczponding inferest expenses from the suspension Jate (o Decenbe: 51, 2024, huve 2oen defzrred and will he
melerials in Phuoe Tun bandle:d tn aocordance with the deciston of tie competont Stete autworitics Goe Motz VLT for forther details
Commeane and Tam Phuos
Bl mni 1 Tangible fised asseds; (See gage 28 - 497,

- Crther expenses 1, 806,313,401 - 30,31 5,700,960 I1. Financial leasing fized assets Machincry and
Total G5 1,253,744, 682 - £89.172 834,076 s L L Tulal

Crriginal cost

firf L pise Fights and expleifaiion costs for the implementafion of Dol Chaa 3 Thien Tan gy project Opening baanes |1,808,2%3,1132 11,898,232, 112
Aceording to Official Letter Moo 2372UBND-KTH dated Mach 14, 2024, feom the Dang Mai Provineial Panpls's Moy decayay 2 A7 306710 07396510
Committaz, the Peaple's Commities s sgracd in prosiple te allw the Company to acquire, Lease lnod use rights, and Repurchase of teaved assets (LES612402) (1LE9R2ILIIY)

eeeive wpiial cootcibodons o Qe Sew of kol gse cighls o Thizo Tan and Tun An Communes, Viod Cuau Disticr
and Fla Mui Comene, Trang Bom District gs g besiz for the Company to procesd with the procedures for chtzining
investmient policy approsval for the Thizn Tan 10 Canstrction. Stone Quarey T'roject,

Aocording o Decision Mo, 3735 Q0-UBRD soued on December &, 2024, by the Dong Nel Proviocisl Peopls'z
Commitize, approving the iavestment policy and simuitaneonsly approving the investor, Cuang Thuan TDIC
Ivvesiment and Development Joont Stock Compeny, For the Lxploilation and Processsing of Construction Stons Project
gl Thien Tan [0 Quarry. The mining neried is determincd based on the duration specifizd in the mineral exploization
license izsued £v the compatent autouty (bt oot exseeding 30 verrs rom the due e expleilebon eense 15 granted).
Acenrding to Official Tettar Mo, 1Y STRMT-OIT dated Fabrugry 12, 2035, om the Doeng Ned Department of
Moturnl Hesouroe: end Envirenment to the Dong MNai Provioedal Poopl:'s Committoe, it was proposcd ther the
Company be allowsd to continwe: acquiving, leasing lard asc rights, and poesiving cagpital contrilations in Do Do el
land mse fdghts o implemant the Thien Tan 10 Sonstmustion Store Quacry 1P20ject
(0l Odefear lond nse Fighte withie che prafact shat cee in flor pracess ol heing beensed, somverted, and wiilized
Those are Land Use Bights (LUK certif cases agresd cpon under trenater contrazes from individuals o the Coompany,
lnceted within the projest planning subdivision of Dong Mai Provinee. Tae Company 35 sGll in the process of weaitng

appeoval frum the relevant Stale wuthorly for project licensing to supplement thz aforementioned land wse rights
tarster docimentation,

Closing balonoes

e

Avcumubaled deprecintion

— rr————

TATVARATIN

7077396, 710

Chpening halance 4,513,122, 504 4,513,122, 5041
Chavgs far the vaow LEL B CE LB LT
Retorn of finance leased assely o B0 815, 403 (4, 520,535,402

Closing halance G634 TEG G40 654, TRE

Net book valne

Dpening lalance T.HE5 109 408 T2E3 109,008

Clasing halanao

6,436,761 924

6,436,761, 524




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far f:!:f':'dl"i:-'r.'ﬂ.r e rreateed Deoemebor 27 2024

12 Intangribbe fixed asseis

Lhr A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sar tha _ﬁw..‘:.!- o soedoed Digosppkop 37, 2024 Tl WD

[and }l:; right 'I'n!rli;lr:l[]:il;m }ll.::;:ﬁifl —
; Cnnpoter

Original cost
Orpening balines 15, 728000000 3,033 <532 708,102 424 306,414 3,350,588,014,6046
Closing balance Lo, 725000000  3,933,432,708,° 92 424 300,414 3, 050,585,014,606
Aceuwmulated amoriization
(pening halance 2402303018 ST a8 0]5 424300,414  LI00,534, 003,445

Charege for ta ear 508 G0 GRE f0 a7 N2 7Rl - 1107743 11,879
Cloging balgnca e B S W . T . £i4, 405,414 1,101, 509,275, 514

MNet ook valuz
Crpening alance
Cluainy baloncs

160,255, 696,95
13,724, THT. 805

2.9715,814,354,177
2 K13,346 051 3R6

2,950,03,051,161

 2,39,275,739,252

- Ending carrving value of intangble fixed essets pledped/morbzaged as luen secuzify: VIND 2,835,275 735,232, The
Granp uses the toll collector righl al all the wil starion aad other ecanomiz benefits that the Company may derys [fom
rase (ol collastion. This toll eollectinn is for the porpose of assuring loog-temn borrowings and Habdites as starsd in

Totcs W20,

(=3 The land u=c rights of the Compiny 0 Tan Cang hamlet, Phoos Tan zommunz, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mei Provinee,
Aread 14,775 m?, The land use torm is unil Ociober, 2052,

« Bnding original mosts of intangrble Txs| ssssts Sl depreciatad bos still inouses VNI 423 300,404,

(%% Tkl eolleation cight foclodes:

(1} Fodt callecion righis for Nottonal Highway 1 (Bien Hoa City Sypass), recorded of cost; FNE 1,376,083, 831070
Qriginal zost of wil collection at swtlon Kmlddl + 912 Watioral Rowd 1 is wopererily delecmined snd well be
adjusted Immediately atter the Cnmpany Linalizes the investmen: vaiue of this projocr with Autharitics.

Dorg Thuan Investmert 150 commenced Lol. cellection at the foll station lacared 22 Km 1841 + 912 on Matianal
Higuway 1 from Tily 6, 2014, tn recover the projects capital. Since Jenuary 01, 2015, e company depreciates the tell
eallaction rvight vsing a method corresponding to the income from toll colleotion during the period (similir 1o the
depreciatun method based on quantity und volame of produsls),

(2] Toll collection richts for Natlona! ghwey 81 Can The - An Gfang, recorded at costz VIND 1,481 457 132 384,
Thw ariginal cost of woll collection at the station fonncd [rom the pro-set of investing, building, innovating, wigradng
Maticnal Road Mo, 91, from Bm 4 + 000 w Km30 + 889 under L lunn of BOT sonlvact Is lewporaily desnined
and will be adjusted -ight after the Conpany fiaalizes the mvesmment value af thiz project wilh cumpetent Stae body,
Cazt The — An Giang Maional Hoad MoS1 nvesunent JSC officially commencad ]l celiestion ar T1 Stafion on
Mational Foad 91 on Apeil 2, 2016, and T2 Station on December 31, 2006, 0 recover he project's ceoital, CaMay 25,
2019, T2 Btation temporarily ceased (e volecion and is eweiting a dzeision from the competart st agoncios.

n 2021, Cun The - An Glang Matlonal Bead Mo, 91 Joint Swock Company edjusied the depreciation rue for Fiaed
Assets , wliich is the toll eallection righ: Fer the BO project on Nalonal Higheay 91 within the jurisdicion of Can
Thn City, doe b the suspension of el eolleet.on ar T2 smtion 35 art of the project to vperade and improve Malional
Mighway 91 tfrom "Em14+HER-KmS0+HEES" starling from May 25, 20159, Spesifeally, the revised depreciation rate is
9 21%, culeuleied based on the expected reveue from T stationl'otel approved investmenl of 11 slalion, eplaong
the previoug ratz of (12.71%0 celealaa] Basel on the Total expectod revennie tiom Both T1 and T2 statiensotal
investiment o both starions.

12, Intangibke Oxed assets (Cont)

(20 Toll collectivn rigfis for Nedonal Sighway 90 Caon Tho - Ar Glang, recorded at costs VYD 1,400.457,172,764.

At present, the sompany is only operating the wll coll=clivn business at TL Station, smong & total of 2 tall stetions
pocording L The mirially appeowed finaneial plas

- Avurding w Roeport Wo, 8E55BC-BOTYT dated Avgust 20, 2022 submitted to the Goveramont ard Offizial Letter
™o BATHOCTY B UC T datad June 50, 2022 of the Winitry of Transpart submitted W tis Prioe bindste: egandi g
solwsinns to address ssues and obstacles at toll stations vnder he BOT praject Tor the construction, renovalicn, and
uaaiading of Matinnal Highway 971 from Km14+000 w-¥Kns0= 889, Accordingly, the Minismy of Transport proposad
thal the Goverpiment sonsider and subwnit to the Mational Assernbly for aoproval of Ui paliey to teeminate tho contract
ahcad of schedule, sllocating approgiciaely VD 1LE79 billion from the state budget o conpensale the Investor aad
dimmanile tall sration: T1 a1d T2 on National Highwewy 91,

- Om Moy 23, 2019, Can Tho - An Giang Mational Highway 91 Jeint Stock Conpany was ceguingd by s Rcad
Muragzment Sub-Depa-tment 1¥.: 10 suspend toll collzetion at &tation TZ from 1450 ax per e direciive of s
Vietmam Dirzctnrate for Foads (VDR “enbl] fucber ootice fom VDR allowing tie rosumption of ol sellechod,”
pzcording Lo the warking mimites on determin ng the £me for tall slation suspension, teaffic regulation, ard ensuring
seaurity and arder at Slation T2, located ot Ko 50+050 of Mational Hizbway 91 in Can The Cily.

- Accosding 1o Repart Mo, B8658C BGTVT duled August 24, 2022, submitted to the Governmenl, snd Dfficial Laiter
B, GATHRGTYT — BTCT dated Juns 30, 2022, from the Minisire of Transport to the Prime Ministor regoeding
solutions Lo address (ssves and obatacles &t woll statfons urdes the BOT project r s rebiobililalive o upgrading of
Matinal Highwey U1 lrom ban 1403000 12 m 30889, the Ministy of Trnsport propoded bl Lthe Uovaciment
submit 1o the Maricnal Assombly for approva the policy 10 tecuioate the conmact” premamrely and  allocale
approsimiale’y VD 1879 billion from the srate hudeet to compensute the investor cnd renore toll stations T7 and 12
on Mational Highway 91,

- According o Document Mo, 55/ CBCTVH-KHTC doted Jonucory 15, 2023, (rom the Ministry of Trangpart - Vietnam
Fapressvary Admdnistation segading solutiors o address difficulties end obstecles in DOT fransportation peojeets:
"for HUFD projects proposing conbrect erminstion aod sate capital allocation for ssttlermens investors and srelil
st tutions ere requiced to share responsibilitics in accordunce wilh the directive of the Standing Crovernnent Office
endar Motice Mo, 270TE-VPCP (excluding interest expenscs end profit in the estimaled selllanent value), The stane
copilal value proposed for peyment should be celoulated and determined, If invastors and credit instichions propose
addiicna. supporl megsuces, they mmst clearly state the readons, busis, end principks of suppart, and speeify the
additicnal sepport value (if any) for consalidation and suhmissicn to the snmpetent uthority for considesation. -
According to Proposal ™o, 062025/CV-CTAY subialied by the Company on January 20, 2025, regarding lhe
resolution of dilCculties and obsraclzs in the investment projecl lor e rebabiliaton acd aperading of Marianal
Ilighway 91 from Km 144000 L Km 501839 unde: a BOT contac: (BOT Qf A1 Projeet) ool to the Vielnwo
bogprossway Admindstraticn, the Compsny proposed the following corlents, which were agized upoa terween tha
Company, the Investor Consorlium, and VielinDank - Whon Trach Branch, as per the working minules duled
Movember 4, 2024

L, Sulunis o the competert euthurity for appreval of the policy to terningte the BOT QLI Project coolrect shead| of
sehadule, with the State alocating appraximately VR 1,800 billion {cosls caliated vp o aly 31, 2004) o cover the

lawtin] expenses for terminatng the DOT Matomad Highway 90 Projecs enntract. 'The propessd seillement smouzt of
gpprocimately VD L300 billion incluczs 0% of the owner's equily profit and 50% of the oastanding [ban mferzst

due tothe projeet's luck of Tuading sonmees

2, Keguest the Vielmam Expressway Administration ko repert lo the competant authovity for approval of the risk-
sharing mechanizm; "Recognicng 504 of the onzamending loon intzrest due to dhe project’s lack of funding sources for
tha loan wsed 0 vesl o e BOU Natiooe] Highway %1 Project as put of the statr paymert propose| Sor conimi

tecnination; the projoct cnterpriss nvestor sbholl ascoudt for 50% of T owner's cquity prodit in the stale piymzol

proposal for epcly tenminarion of the profect contract.
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12, Intangible fixed wssels (Conl.)

() Desdicated road oll collectlon vights, recorded af costy FND IF7 083,075,000,
Tz initial cost of the @l col setion righs al the dedicated road BOT peroject lies beea provisionslly deronmined and
will be adiuzted upon the Company's [nalization of the complated investmen: value of this projest wil the relevant
Srute anthoribes. As of the repecling dae, the project is sill awaiting <he finalization of the completed invesiment

salilz Ty the Thenartmont of Transpoet.

An Thman Prat BOT Joint Stock Company Fas been amortzing he wll colleciion rights ai the dedizatad road BOT tall
shitfon sikee May 13, 2021, asiag a methed proportional to pericdic revenus, in alignment with the ol collection

period for eanital reoovery of the project {similar o the wnis-olproducien depreciation method),

(4} Toil colfection rights af the DOT 319 project folf stetfon, recegnized of aw initiel cosfaf VNI 814215851 550

The infliul cost of toll collection Aahts at the BOT 319 tell station extension and tiz intersection with the Ho Chi Mink
ity - Long Uhenh - D Giuy Bapressweay s provisionally detemmingd based an the acmal incuired costs of all avdited
prarject companznts in the final sattlement roport. This cost will e adjusted aceondingly onee the Groop eamplates tha

fnal investment seltlement for this piaject with the relevant state anthoritics

The BOT 319 JToint Stock Company has hean amortizing the tall collection rights at the BOT 319 tol. slation sirce
Cioteher 200, 2021, in propoclion do periodic revenue, aligned with the twll collecton period tor capital reooveny of the

projact (imier tn the writs-of-praduction depreciation method).

(5} Tolf coilection rigiis for Provinciad Soad 16, recaraed of on nftded cosf af VNRF 83,070,838 182

The toll collzction rights far Peovineial Road 16 are assels ender a BOYE conlrect that hes rsached e end of s 121l
collzction peciod soid are currently pending transfes ta the ralevant statz athorfics.

13, Prepaid expenscs

a. Short-term prepuid expenses
Tools ard supplie: nsed
Fepoir fixed asset oxpenses
Crther pradald cxpenses
b. Taomg-term prepaid expenses
Taols and supphies pwatling allosation
Faptic [l el waieiees
Cogl ol pepovating the sevrge treatment plait
Fresaid land voatals
Fock cxploilibion expens:
Cusl ol mepagenient, waiteaancs, and rapair of the specialized roed
during 1z 1l eollooinn waiting poeriod ()
Other prepak] capenses

Tutal

Dhee, 31, 2024

RA9.977 453
106,237,004
102,123,335
AR 614
53,032,411,516
2485 3T CRD
11,845,598, 765
13,533,292 4416
A A%0,378, 195
12,714,393, 045

T.549,931.513

Jog, 01, 2024

1LOR7 441,160
190,555,816
37,063,720
RSG.T41 AN
59,595,741 672
[B76, 195,714
17.878.713,395
16, 719055414
5,007 499, 9F4
15, 172,359,971

T77.995.612

2,050,999, 582

53,571 3RR 069

&, 686,182,832
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Tinits VD

14, Trade payahles

Shori-term

Local supzlisks

JORCE Uvbaw Awd
mauriricl Zone
Dhevalcgpmaeed U Lied
Neroo Plrap Coryirpoiion
o pary Siniad
Fawahilz e Mr Ngven
Fan Thuaw — Falofad
Farfy (%

Ol Toeal regydiers

Tl

15, Prepayments trom customers

- Short-term
Loeal eustorcs

Ihec. 31,2024 Jan., 01, 2024
Amoont Tiﬁ::lﬂ Ampong T]::}:Tii:;]:ﬂ
144.915,407 602 144,913,407 601 110,544 458,153 120,544,498, 153
1349 5,407 Bz [ 20,55 498,193 120,544 495,193

14 597,290 260

AR A Y AN

T8,200, G808 (N
A R s

44,91 3,407,502

13,035 209 20

23,439,250 465

§8 300, 650,900
0,747, 257847

I7321.2605,7i2

03025 53T 451

§7.321,360, 712

TU3023,231,451

144,913, 407,602

144,913,407 602

120,544, 408, 193

120,544 408,193

Trzeseegy Son Conafnstion Corporarion

(Ithay cusfomers

by, Long-term

Trnong Son Cameraetion Corpavalion

Tutal

a. Pagables

el add lux

Corporaie Incones [ax
Conprorate Tnoome Tax on
Bovial resing

Personal incnme t2x
(Mher foes, dulies and

k] parions

Tolul

b, Beveivuilos

l:l,:||_||.,|.j anl {':U|||L:-|a_‘_|_.*
imloame Lud 2aid
Corporate Inoome Tax on
social Haousing

Torlal

1h, Tazes awd payablca to the Slate Budpgel

(¥ This is the pavable amount to individuals who are emplayess of the Pereal Company For executing the Residantial
Arca Froject it Phuce Tan Ward under the Aareement on Implamentation Suppor far the Residentiv Arsa Project

Thec. 31, 2ikx4 Jan. 1, 2024

54,05 308,773 (7, 642,081,422

£4,003,308,773 G642 (181 422

73308022, 5452 2 452 510 534

e T T J1, 179,367 458

15,904, 062, 300 44.193.779,301

I B OAF 3o e JHR T A0

100,897, 371072 BlLB4EINL, 422
Jan 1, 2024 Payable amound Faid st Drec, 31,2024

1,381,514, 7El 35,5700 B4 02 33800000244 3, 1900597 ,558

2424 406,182 3.037.086,333 B£42.317,.97] 2.419.235,044

; 198,015,082 45,401,597 453,423,492

TR1,685.267 4430244023 4,181,430,310 830,499 586

TAETAARE 126950258665 127014942377 13,950,954

4822544 895 IT6,I00,35450F  174,045,992,499 6,567, 706,914

Surplus paid
Jam, 001, 2024 AOTET Aanovut deducted Ivee, 31, 24

338344719 138,344,719 1,509,905, 1 96 |, F09,905, 196
SEE,TU5617 R L -

X7, 140, 336G SET AR, 180,005,196 1 ROGA05, 1954
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Lingi- AN

1%, Accrued expenses

14,

13

1. Bhort-term

Acesued inlerest expensa

Dednctihiz projzet costs according to final settlament (0. 91, An "Thuan
Phal, and BOT 319, speciolized road)

ters nocrned experses

b, Lung-ierm

Anurued ulemesl gapensz (T

Tntal

Deeg, 31, 2024
21,542 642,380
3,769,875 847

11,448 970,210

Fam, v, 20024

17,503,572,75%
3,366,081, 850

10,684,428 477

4,323,925,228 3,453,061 402
326,306,634,121  271,065,787,642
326,306,634,121 271,065.787,642
I4TB40276,501 I8B.S60.360,340

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEIY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fop ths fipead veor snded Decamber 21, 2034

Ui T

(1 Acoording to the amendment To The sealit confeacr Mo 15 20001272401 5-HDOMAMNHCTAR-(E AT dated Jure 21,

2022 of Car The - An Giang Mardonzl Foad MNo, 91 Jomt Stock Cempany urd Mo, Q1072017 IDCYTIATT MHOTGE -

BOT 319 CUONGTITUZAN CTT of BOT 319 Cuang Thuan CTI ISC with Yistnam lndustry snd Trade Jeint Slock
Commercial Bank - Mben Urech Braoehy (be entbe priosipal ad bt of Cw Joae w07 b sepaid bassd on the agreed

Iepayrant plar.

Linearoned revenoe

w. Short Lerm

I¥tierencs between revaluation of &5

h. Tiomg-term

Trncarned revenue [tem conseuciion social Rousing prajest

Tl

Criher payables

@, Shorl-term

T..' i"..l.'.' (N i'.-l fﬂ:

Encial insurancs, hellh msumoce, ooepplovimen:
Board of Direchar: and Suzesviaosy Bioand Remunasation

Other 'avables, &ecrocd cxponses

k. Loag-term

Iorest pavable to WietnBank Mhon Trach ()

Total

erg 5000 and ficansial lease price
Uncarned revenue frem eonsirociion social housing project

Twew, A1, 2024 an. i1, 2054
3,700 1 58 S0 4,182 042 165
186,771,012 S02.550.565
3,522 307,080 3,589,491 605
31420261599 HHTUETIEY
31,420,261 /9% 34, 870,573,050
35,129,430,491 39,061,615,224
Dicc, 31, 2424 Jwm, 01, 224
159,002,623, 838 20,605,150.121
el 048 ROT 460
(24,607,848 A6 018 588
10,975, 154,763 10607, 145 504
TA5Z, 543 584 BTAE (50,355
6d, 251561 926 .
o M T T (T
54 744,185,764 41,616,300,142

{8 Aapovding fo the cmendbren cidecd Augmal 7, 2023, fo the crealit cgrecwent N, 0T 07200 7-400 PR PR SR
BOT 310 CUONGTELAN O ik SotimMonk Nhon Trach, oll lateres! papmonds fooe 2023 00 2035 will ba defareed
winad paied frumn 20310 0 2042 baged on the dedt repayanent mhon sgread upor fn Soction {04, Articl: | of iy soczmaat

=x

20, Borrowings and fnwnvisl
leasing liabilites

£ Bhort-term
= Shert-mrm bhrrowings

Fletinhont - Mo Trash
il

- Careend poction of long-
TETIT, Seht

+ Tiex Fhong Conmmaroial
Joddt Blosk Bask
T k) (B

Oheeanhavik fix)
Fiafinkamk - Mhen Trach
fus

- Chailease Infernaiioin!
Leqaing Commpar)
Limstted (e

b, Louwg-term

- Frethehont o Mem bk
fal
Tier Phong Coiskercial
WTREEL: Senind Tank
(TP Bk ¢h)
{dozanhcn (o)

= Thereds 1 a5uad f...]
Persongl loans ()
Wty T T f'.irarn-"_-n
Tramyr - Nelaved oories
fnatvidnals o
shiemabolder el
msiniiom valing
righiElL

Total

Dec. 51, 2024

—

Jan. 01, 24024

Teht Service

tehi Service
Aamonnt Dkl Bervain AT .
Cosarage Coverapry
433,670,314 529 433.476,314,529 364, 335,804,792 364,335,804,792
R L e e 122,000,337 303 LOE G0 3050, 5386 1O O30, 303,350
P42,062.337 323 T42,062, 537,323 U GF0 3687 388 FOE 630,365, 385
283.613,777 508 293,615,777,506 235, 05439400 253.705,453,206

S05 038 R0

L ENGE, DO, (i

He A5G, 00 LY

213321806

1,514,201 560,459

L A1 S B4 BIT, J40

o R S

95,094, 38 400

WAL R

HE, 254, L0000

2.125,219.316

1,814,202, 560,450

AL P T T T

205 28N FTT TS

T84, 590 0170 416

L AL 00, 000

&1 H G0, 000

1,193,858, 179,523

} 30,400 27, A95

F29. 948,901,925

TR ORI 405

(ip e R A

S35 0G0, 000

2,193 458,179,623
L3641 277 695

329,546 901 528

2, 3000, 0006, 00 2, 56, () (e 22 S(0, 00, 006 23,560 000 660
4,060,503, 104 4,060,505,104  105,000,000,000 105, 000,000,000
R2.618,368,596 R2A18,368 996
I76818 305 005 I7008, 308 970 5
33, D), el Ok 0, OO, G, 00D %
2IA9MTRATS2ER L2V ETERTSINE 2458198984415 2.45K,193,984,415

{a) Motes on the bocrowings frawm Ficiinbank - Niow Trivck (Vi hank)
Lhori-tarm somm Fom Flatnem Joind Stoek Commereiol Bank for fckaing ansl Teacle - Naoa Dol Brorch weder (e
credtit adlt fnen controot Mo, 0033200 T-BECVANNECTER I -CUONGTHUANIDICO, dated Augusr U7, 2007 with
o erEdie finae '_.l_l,"' Foaidr S8BT Wifloe, TR crpely el inedlocfis olelly L.!-Lui:,l'pl'..lll":'bil |'.-'I_|.-' e ey ongeand M 002302200 -
SIDT O IMAT RO TSR -C UG TN ANIO G dinedd Saly 29 2000, with o marimmn oo erm of ¥omomks ner
ARNGFREMENS, Tha femding ffsvest paie 0F equa! Yo the F-mantf xavingy deposit nterest role Witk interesi pald of
EEATEEY e o mavpin o S ORF per daew, The Joaw Ie froprsd By speciiir eollelaegl aoses gf stimelatad B dhs
seonrine apreements simed bepween fhe Company and FielinBml - Mhow Troeh Bromoh,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For tha feeed pear angded Decemiber 21, 2024 Tiniz: TND Fov the lseal ssar sndad Dacawber 31, 2024 Lheii- T35
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20, Barvowings and financlal leasing Habilitles (Contd
(i) Neres on dhe hovrowings from Vietinbank - Nan Trach (Vetinbank)

At teewa loaw From Vietinbonk - Nhew Teach Sranch wnder the per-divhursamani lome mgresment No, 17 021
JEOCEEEATCTER 0T dentfed Npwgmeher FF 2020, wiile o dodcd Tovos coneu sead e E-E‘.Lr PO 22223 hilhigw, The

FEREVRERT ferm iF S0 momihs, The foan irferest rave (5 996 per pear, finen fie the fir J'_I-'E‘:l-'n".h. Ther prrpine o) e T
& fe zeftfe popmieis foe g Storg Geindsr Profect o, 20 The enlloteral I8 mactinery ad equaprient from Slowe

Cringer Profect No. 2 io sérve thi sione mintag of Xoan Hoo, specifically agfined e e seoeiy controzes signed
behreen tee company and Fistinkank - Mhon Traoh Beemch.

Lo smaer Cradit Contracr No. 15200808 27308 S-IIDTTIAMNTICTER QT L Thee loer erm v T3 paciode of 2

momths cook. The codateral for thiz loan inaludes tolf colisction rights aen Beraliss darfved fromn asrely farmed from
,‘.'J:c.' donma, Thee .."rafn'.l': wf e i A0S e BUEEL

Lovee aader Crecit Conteact No, 16,20.0004; 'E'f.l SA- T AN T TSR - BOTATE: The foam foem ir 144 mondes,

20, Korrorings and financial leasing Wablities {Cont.)
) Chadlease Tnteractione Leasing Company Limbied
Druring the vear, the Cosnparny bas Flly scitlzd S financial lease contact,
- Chailzase International Cine Member [imited Liability Finaneial Leasing Compary.

Cuntrsat M.

'l'.eusing tlule Mlulu ril:.- alaie Interest raic

G, 5% per veal for e first 6 monchs rom
the dizbursemenl dile, aogl 3.6% et vear
from the Ttk month anveards.

Mo, 17732407 July 12, 2024 24 months

feh Notes en fre Bonds isseed
e June 11, 2020, ihe Company issued incividuol Eomds through the tmderwrifor, Tolnt Stk Conmeroial im it far
Frrslen 'u!m ¢ of Fietnora Secwotzier Comipamy Limived - o Ohi Mink Clly Sranck, w+ilh o totad voloe of FNI 754

The collaenad for i foem iy the foll wotizcion rights of the progect,

The foan order Crecit Controct Sepoiesieniary dgresmant Mo, (00520 P00V DA D P REDREIAN IO TR 1 -BOT
S CTIONGTHIUAN CTT, with o maatvigs oo amiowd of T 627, 700,000 000 o mecium- amd dong-ferm lending
frfecesl pute el fo The base ralfe pdue @ 4,590 norgie par ters, o Inan farm af T80 manthe, ond o disbiersemens
pericd wail Desember 31, 2024, secured By fatsre-Formed ausels, specificelly the ol colleior wights af 1ol stationg
gt Tevastraent omd Construction Proiest of Rogd 379 fadension ana the fnferchange Berweer Road 319 amd :.’:p
o Chi Mink ity - Loag Theevt - Dan Giay Expresswen, wmcer BOT Contract No, E8/FHEB BOT-SETE dated July
T7, 2087 gipned hetwesn fhe Daparimest of Transoart af Dore Na? Province, Coowe Thoon TORCD Tevesimend
F?.-ew:f.rfr:lmm Jairt Blaok I:-|-.l|':II_|l'.IJ.I-TI_|.-' el BGT 300 f_'w:lﬂ_j? Thzeen €75 Fldat Btocsk |:-!'.l.ll!£".'l..|'.lll'
(0l Natas ty fnans fromn Tiew Fhorg Commercia! e Stoclk Dank — Doy Nai Drech

i lomgtarm lnmas fom Vien Phomg Commercizd Joind Stock Bank - Dore Noi Bronch are baved op Lown Condroeis
Mo, HDTD 36A0MIHDTDTTHEEDNL, MW2Z0T with o loan Msit o0 PRI 300 bilGow, Noo D7D
AESREAET T TR DI, MOR02 wiskh o Toean Baedd oo FNTE 230 Biliinn, aned N FTITD 30020 80T TTHE L
MNIAT ity o foan fivdr of WAL 70 billion, The interast pave iy defermined acoording o eavh dell deavdowes
apreeme. The focn ferms ace 37 monthe gnd 59 monitis, vespeeively. The eolloteval for theae loang eonsigts of the
sl wolleciion cights arfsing from B0 Cogieacd Mo, 2WEEBDTCRDEVN dfed Decegeboe (2, 2008, Cordeae? W
LSRR BOT-WFTET dated November 6, 2002, amd the cecompamying BOT conirac! apmendioes,

ek Netey o fhe hcr}l'{iur.fﬂg.;_,l"mm Chsebireh - Phoagr Wal Rramek

iﬂ.*:lg-h.'!:"."i lora __i"'l-"l:.'.lr: {omaafimk - .':I-rm;._-:' Mal  Beansh woder Bhe oan cogirgE et Nooo o022633-

TERC AN EARBAN DONCHNA-KIDR, doved donsery 28, 3024, wirl & foan savomat of P00 3D Miflion, with o
ercerdaaties enan faeive of 3 years o S day folleing S fTesr disturssmany aate, Thg mrerent rale faw e loan s e
sings depardt inferest rate of the cowler, ik o {2-ononil term, inferest paid of fhe end of e period, gl o
miniman margie of 3.0 per yeer ane adiveied every 6 mosths, The intarest rate @t the tfime of accwrrente in 4.2%
The collateral axsets ave apecified in the triparfie apreement Mo, DO0L202 LTTRBRAOCEANDANK DONCNAT daned
Sareiary 29 02T, repandlne the ATerternent of the feew and She reiervation oy the acunt i the pasent aooaust
and Tn the real astate wroripore aondrog No Q00202 AT M ENal- KERON dafed Javmary 29, 2027,

d) Challrase Infernotionol Leasing Compary Limited

Billizn, ferm of 36 months, por walue of VT 006,900, (00dbond. tone neeabar of donas actually ismed 150 Bunds.

Thme: Aan-convertihee homdy, withow! wervamis and seceaed e avsedy. The Fondy Feos o jieed Intsvess ware i the fiwt
O Intarast cateulation pericar of 10.2%5aar, the lnse 03 interest aclowiation peviode of 10,680 var. The puepose af
frwnenrToe Is Ao mzr-ft'rr:l-:'r:n! e wn’.'z.’h;i.: lvesduvent prafedt ang Sopplorent fie GRS h‘ﬂ?‘.'»’l:ﬂg -:T-‘i‘j!'-'!'h'l-:'- Oadlaterad
nctwctes: Lol s righes for SR Toeedd od Phoess Towe waed. Bien Al wity, Dy Wa! proivice coosraling (o Lamnd Lgr
Fiphis Certificate No, D TRETFE fswued &y the Thy People’s Comrivee. Bien Foa shorss are owned by e

{ovme Eh’:rl__l.-' & GO, DN T shrez are avned B a Sord pery and olf praperiy riskie arisiag from those shares, Deing

VietinBank Leazing Onz Mearbher Limited Lisbilite Finsneisl Lessing Company — He Chi Binkh ity Brvmeh
Conlrach Mo, Leasing date Fatarity dare Interest rate
£5% in fhe first 3 montis sipee the
W, 300 LB V- ) : i ik
cOTE Sorvember 20,2008 48 monghs wilekebrmead dade e adiiaied pariaaloally
A evary 3 mowthz,
Wi, 20N AN FA% in fRe frd 2 momiex sioce he
CTTC mnd  Controo At 06 2020 S5 peovithe withdrowal date and adiustad perindioally

ﬂ I_||j-|.-|_.-:|! i J‘.‘ﬂ' ol L'-"‘!:P'P'j ﬁ‘?".:'ﬂll'!li.

she peviod, (e Group reprrckosed 300 of the bords prior to matiel wedae the apragiman *Rapurchars Commitnrens

B e dasuer" after 24 months from the ssyance doale

Maving fhae yee, e Compearny Goly vettind s Fond dabe g connoled the feading rapiavation i accordonce with
MNatige No. 2TE T B-NGRON icpved By the Hanoi Slock Bxchange on Moy 22, 2024,

ik Parsanai fivews
Clomitrsiel M. Tirem MeTaknrity dlate Balanca Horm ol secorily
OOL2024 0 IDCVACTL
O 2024 HBON T, .
CO3:20241 IE"_:""'-M: Dver 12 to 24 menths 1055 BZ,e18,168,006  Tnsccured Losa
RS Rt B S IR el Y
GOS0 HDOWICTL,
OO IDCVACTT,
21, Provision for payables Dec. 31, Mi24 Jan, BE, 204
2. Short-terin 2 ash, 25 A3 1,250,173, 887
Ragular maintenance and repalr costs 2,456,035 03 1,750,173 887
h. Long-term 15,608,273,.959 14,778,733 040
[ Hher arevision (emvirommende | -shabilindion expaoses ) 15 ,608,7277,955 14,778, 733,644
Tolal 15164, 295,942 16, 028,900,933
22, Uremers’ equoiiy
u. Comparison schedule for chacges in Owners's Bguity [See page 500,
b, Capitnl rransactions with owoers nnd dizstribuiion Year Ziiz4 Year 20003
of dividewds, profits
Crwners' eouils 629,000 070,004 629,999,970, M0

At the baginnicgr of iha peor
At the end of the yaar

Tt Ansda Aladnils =
LA bardioian UL IJL-".II'H.-'.I

29, 895 70, 000
b0, 295, T 000

G2, P G ()
R N




NOTES TO THFE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fpar ihn’_.l"'.;r:uf P eruded Decaneher 21, 2024 Lhais- PRI
22, Chwners’ cyuily [Cont.)
w, Thiyidends Year 2024 Yonr 2023
Dividends deelzred efter the end of the Anancial vear
Common sock Nt vl ennozncid A00%
d. Shares Dec. 31, 2024 Taw, 01, 2024
Muriber of shaez registered to be issusd 2,999 9497 62,599,997
Bluciber ol sbioes sald ot todes peblic 2 Do o 62,000 Caky
Cirelivem ) shore AZ d ey LR
Mutber of s1azes to 2e rorurchascd B A00. 000 8,200,000
Ly shore A 20, G 2200, (04
Tmher of shares ousianding 54,793 997 54.'.79!:3.5'5'7
Ovelingy v shore Jd, 7RG LET 34 700 037
P vatue: Y hare PRI i), il

e. Funds

]n".-'ﬁal:l_'ﬁcn‘i u_nl:I I_‘IE'r'HI'ﬁF':rIErIL rl]:l'!_{

Cupital soure Lur investmant and cofstmction
Total

* Purpose 0. appropuisting and using funds

Dree, 31, 2024
53,512.073,514
11,120,427

Jan. 01,2024
§1,512,373,319
11,120,427

53,524,003, 746

53,324,093, 746

Trvestmen aned devabopinent fund v extablished from the profil afier dax of the enterpeize mnd wesd jor expanding lne

ApETailng soale or fvesding farther an ik enteepiise

VI ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

1

Sales

Fevenus from sale peimolewm and oil

Bevomus trom Gmeshad rock sold and sock mining samvize rendased
Eewame feom installaring and constroctinn works

Reverie from fee onllostion sordacs

Fevenue Tom tourisl and tes.euranl servives

{Ither TE'I."CJLI.I:BI

Tatal

Gabes dedoctions
I'ride discourds
Total
Wil anles
et seles rom sale pelrobeuin mol wil
el seles [rom ficished pozk anld and rock mining service rendened
Ml sales fram installation and corstraction works
Bzt salos from foe colleclion service
Moer malos from toorist and resliierand services
e siwles oo wiler aulivilies

Totak

Yeur 2024
15,512,002, 6010
32,425,844 502

LE TR RARE i

Vear 223
SOEDRSTESAS
4, TR 215,229

232,377,762,427

508,7490 =516 48T 2515
19,541.050,028 23,879,193, 143
19,732,944, 415U 4,824.992,606

1,111,589,082,180  §14,403 064 585
Vear 20124 Year 1023

- 1,644,720

17,644,720
Year 2024 Year 2023

15,512.092,600
32,425 840 502
Aoy an 031,175
S06,749,0 14,5116
19,54 1L,050,028
10,712,944 159

J, 803,973 535
40, TESR15,729
232 377,762,427
482, 734,123,645
23 RTG 1 145

1,407,245 BB

T ERR CLAE EER™T 1 LIF
B0 E 0y O L L

O 4 FOG ET DOE
BLA I LT 0

For the Seead veor ended December 1), 2024 Linig: Al
4. Caelof pouds sold Year 2324 Yoear 2023
Cuel ol male peuolewn and ol 3,285 1R A% 23 BNE.591,673
Crst of finighed rock seld and rock mindog servics pendaned 32,003 KO, 708 34567 184,001
ot of ingiallation st comstruslion works 437,014,143 545 I 58 G35 RA0L A5
Deprectelion, caintenaice, and other costs of tnll collection rights 14%,530,620,247 LA 8159380541
Cosl ol lour.st and restaumant services 28 TRRATS A0 21,A58.130.417
Lot ol wthor sctivitizs 11,705 548 318 31.733,001,174
Total ' (42,787, 402,002 403,512,695,665
5, TFinangial ineome Year Zikid Year 2023
Interest income from deposits, loars 718827 (8L 1,223.763,557
Dvidernds, profil pakl - 1611 ks i
Tatal TIHH2T, 081 1,414,739.567
. Finanvial expenses Yoeur 2024 Year 2R3
Imprasl sxpense [RT A5 S35 U2 221.275,574,222
Cnhier financlal cxpenses 138,636,555 BRI TN ENS
Totul I35, 189,175,285 222,088.301,490
7. Selling expenscy and general and administration expenses Yoeur 2024 Year 2013
d. Selling eapenses
Balanes 2,301,269,763 5,087,593,827
Tocls and supplics L BNG, Ne A0S {92
Uepraciarion, amammizatiorn 49,813,941 1,253,552,354
Lervices hought from outsiders 1,568,794 151,151,117
Ofher sundey expenses by cash - TO&, 727 494 168,285,570
Tatal 4,091,201 305 7031572, 164
b Adminisiration expenses
Saluries 30,747,708, 764 14 580,682 155
Mucerials wol packaging, 140, 1S, BE0 T 043
Towls ard supplies A0E L7420 422 804 114
eprecialivo, woorfization 280,05 520 S L e B
Tazes, foes and duties 23,533,16% 21,412,921
Mroneision for doubiful debls 2300, 148 516 TR AG a0
Services boaght from msilas 41.395.905,417 B, TTE, 195,807
DREer SURdry expansss by cash 15,054,353 455 140,437 883,784
Tatal 1O S92 341Y U ST, 640,480
8 {dher income Year 2024 Year 223
Ihsposal, and sale of fived assets 23,004,500 [ 24,756 157
Compensation sepenses rom iscrance 4,570,250 -
Crtacr income 167,978 461 1.786,07 1,914
Tolal I5T,RA5. 509 1.910,831,871
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For tre ool vear ended Liccember 21, 2024

(- TN

{ither expenscs Yoeur 2024 Yenr 2023
PHERETELED 519,267,334 2,730,116,720
(rther erpensss 418,684,003 A80,360,734
Total 738,151,992 3210,597,454
Earnings per share Year 2024 Yoear 2023
Aceounting profit after corporate i-.t.c-:lml.' tux 99, NR8, 458,805 T 508,351,033
locrease or decrenss oF Accouniiing prorit (206,550,287 [1,523,033,242)
- Incomme af e Boord of Direciors and Boceed of Supeesdsars (408580 38T (A AR 0EE 22
Frofil o loas allocated o sharcholders ormiug ovdivary shares 40,051, H59 518 TAERS 234E.6M
Profit or lass allocated to sharcholders owning onlioary shares 43,068,458 805 13,085 348,601
Averige oulstanding erdinary ehares in the year 54, 700 6o R A0 09y
Earnings per share 1. 50R 1,545
Irvilmtenl earnings por share Yenr 2024 Yeur 2023
Trafit ar loss ellecated o shareholosrs owning vrdinary shares QL 651 ROG 518 TiG85 345,601
Frofit!Loss atiributalde (o ordinarey sharclolders after ad justing for
dilutive faclors IR ) L e ) Th6E5 544 651
Aovermes owislessliog ordinacy shares o fa2 yaer 54,769, 00°F 54705 907
Weighted average number of erdinary shores oulstunding during the
prerivd aller adjusting for dilutive factors. 54,709 907 54,700,007
Diluted earmings per share 1,508 L 345

- There were oo dilsiive gifeciy on ordingry shoess a8 o Decerelee 31, 2004,

ORIFCTIVES AND FINANCIAL BRISKS MANAGEMENT I'OLICIES

hjetives nnd Tmanclal risks management poelicics

tujor risks of linancial instmments include marker risk. credit risk and liguidity -isk.

The Buard of Management considers the gpplication of manzgement solicies for G abuvs risks ws Tollows;

Moot risk

larket visls is the risk thal the (wir value of [utore cash flows of a financtal instrument #ll fluetuace doe to the changes in
murled prices. There are thires market visks; interest rate vide, Foreion exchange risk and other prics risls, for exanple
risk of stock orice. Finoncial ‘nsrumecls affected by the madket risks inclnde: hocrowings and lahilitios, deposts,
availalesfor-sale immesrmaens.

The Lolluwing seaslallioe analvsls veletes to the finencial position of the Group as ot Devemnber 31, 2024 aod Devemnber
31,2023,

The sensilivily analysis has heen prepamd on the hagie thar the arount of nat debt, the ratio of Cxed o Moating intenes]
rates of the debt end the proporfien of foaceix instruments in Greipm currepncies are oll constant.

When caleolating the sensitility analysis, the Board of banszement aszames ther the sensibilie of available-for-zalc
liability in the balancc sheot and related items in e income sibemenl s alleclsd by changes o the assumption of
cormesponding morket risgs, This analvais is bascd on the financial asscts and liabilities that the Group held as at
Dezember 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,

Io0 Marked Fisk (ConT )

Trderest padn resl

Toterest eate rizk 3 fhe risk that the fad walue or tistore cash flows of a Anancizal nstrement well flustoate due fo he
chanpes m marke! prices. Market risks due o chanze o intzeest rate of the Company mairly relate w0 horrow ngs and
liakilitics, cesh and shost-term deposis.

Tha Group manages the intenest tate tish by analveing the compestlion sl o e ooackel ooonder w apply e oenest
rale Lhal brings benefirs to the Company and stll in e it of i sk managemant.

Serwihifie fo inferesi rafe

The sensibility ol bormowings oo Jabililiss, vash aond shod-kaw depesits of e Geoup te ehanges that may ocear at
reasonable level in the inlerest rates iy Dlusirie] vs ollows:

Assuming that other variahles remain constant, the tluctiation in the intersst rate of berrowings, Habilifiss, cush witl
Mualing isleres mte mekes Impact or the Grroup's protit hefore e es follows:

dsreaveDevrone DeTenves on proddl

Year 2014 _ Ay hanic pairts fefare e
WhD (LK (22,055.422.2300)
YL -10u 22,053 422.730

Serglfaling t intarenr pake

Tavresmee Tocrears Tnfsaces on peadic

Year 222 o bawvis pelnle Foffra lar
WL 14 (2,254,441 C6E)
WML 2 - 10 242534 441 6638

Increassy decreaze of basie polats being naad to analyzs the senaibility to the interesl rule is pssumed on the busis of
ahazrvable condifions ol currenl markel These corditions show fhar the flustuation s ivsigniticanty greater then priar
Qe s,

Forelzn exchinnge risk

Foreign exchenge rizk is the risk that the faie value of Sutere cazh flows of'a tinsneial ingtrument will Suctaats due to the
changes In exchange rate. The Group beacs nsks due o chinges i he cxshengs mte of the cusrencies other than WK
related dlrectly to th Group's husiness.

The CGiroup munagses forsign exchangee sl by considering enrent and expecicd market stalus when it oatlinzs plans for
firnre transactions i1 forcign correncies "Lhe Droop dees net ose any derivative nstcmants tn prevent foreian excheange
risks :

Sersihiline to foreimm curvencies

The Group dees not analyze the sensibility to the forsign currenciss since chimps in the fosipn surercies ol The
repurliog dale i sigi Dl

Credle wieli

Cradit eizk is the riss due oo the custrmers’ failure Lo periorm 1ls obZgelions asing the fizancial loss for Gee Group. Ths
CGroup beams crecil zisks from prodeeticn and dofng tosincss activitics (rainly trade receivables) end from its financial
activitics irciuding deposits, forelpn exchage iransacions cod otler fianzial estmmens,

Trade recervadley

Tre Group mindmizes the credil sk by only dning lmsiness with ectities who kave good fingncial capacity and clasely
keeping track of the lizbilitice to zpeed up the meccvery of debis, Om the bosis of this method and recejeebles peled o
different customers, the eredil sk does not cansenteats on a coetain cUstomar,



MNOTES TO THE CONSOLTDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

Py the feoal year snded Dasember 31, 2024

Lheit- BT

§.3 Craidit visk (Coni

.r.-'fl".r.-.vil'

The Group rainly maintaing deposits in big and prestigions banks in Vietnam. The Group realized that the concentretion
lavel wl credil exposwre o deposils is low.

The Board ol Monagemen, of e Group bs sesessal bl mest Gooostal assets ae aol eveadug ] npaioed sinee fwse
fnzacial asscts relals o prestigiogs customers who have good Jiguidity cepacity excepled or.overdusd receivables
i devalued Liasee been fully peovided.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

For the freal vear ended December 31, 2024 i

70

ite receteaitles Mot averdue Ovardue
Mot impaired Timpaiied Mot impaired Tmpairved

As af December 31, 2024
Undzr 90 dayvs 20, 103,838,025 2 5
=180 days = g - 13, 2W0 978952
Total net valne 20, 103 W30 025 - L5, 20,078,052
Provision for devaluation - " (12,637923.75%
Plet value 10,103,838 035 - - En0.ns5.1599

A oAt Drecember 31, 2023
Unider 90 diys 15692 588518 - “ -
=181 i - - = 15,8454 14,985
Total net value [5,6492 3848508 - - 13,545 414,085
Provision for develustion - - - (13,200,615,950°
Mol value 13&93.3:531.5'13 = = 633,799,003

Liguddity ritk

Liguidity risk is the risk that arises fiom fhe Group's difficvlty in fulfilliog finsacial sbligsiens du:

T lack of capital.

The lguidity risk of the Group ooy adses [ dillererce of malunly of e Onecie] vssels and lebilities.

[e Group suporvises Boguididy visk by macntuinime wnoamount of ensh, cssh equivalents sd bormowings from banks at
the lewel dhat the Board of Managoment congiders as sufficient to sasti=ty the Geoup's eetivities and minimize infleee:

ol Chmnges i wash Do,

"k Tullowdng Lable summeriees Hgwidily deadline of be Group's lnancial lebilities on the besis of sstimated paymeats
in acsordanas with contract whizh are oot discountcd;

Asal Devember 31, 2024

Chider [ yoar

Fron 1-5 vears

Cheer 3 vears

Taml!

Borrevadngs end Labilibes 35,070,314,829 Tadse 004,150 LO60 146 556,305 340 ETH 8T N8

| cade povables L4, L8 407 Bird - - D U i el

Ceher pasvables 2ad aczined

ERTEIEEE 3709, 520,842 126.306,634.12° = - F3Z,070.A60.503
Toral IH6 33548273 LUBDIGE,658,271  LO60,046,5356,300 2,720,408, 743, 550

Asoal December 31, 2023 Limeler ¥ yeur Mram -0 peary Chier A vesrs Tona!

Borrowings o Fahililies

Trade pavables
(thor pavahkles and weorued

V64, V5,804,702
LZ0,541,298,193

B49208 310,714

1,244,559 868 G040

AR T3 BE ALY
120,544 498193

EX[IENSES ARG ORRSD AT NAS, TR A& - 274 437 RARD S0
Tudul ARE BAR 04 844 1 A0 164 AR T8 1 Y SE0 RER 00 9 @ET 170 157 160
._'::::'\.'1 T L o L Ty, :F"__ A g Ay L"||'.|'\.'_"‘.-_'\|'.-' L:"'||.-'-\.-'|." M e T Tl AL, A R .i-ul.ll.lgd..' I.l‘:l.l _li-.ll.l.r-l'

13.

Ligaidity pisk (Conl ]

Thie Gireups by abbe e suees capilal sowices aod with megaeds oodue Toreowings within 12 vcoths will be paid oo time.
Secured azsets

The Croup Hledged parc of fdght @ can machinery end cquipment, buildings end srruchurzs and some cther aszets vy
securily Lor shorl= e aos] loug-lemn bomowiogs Tom baoks (Botes Wo¥ 20 Borowings and foancial lease Tiabilities)
Thare arg na other sianilicant leoms velated wthe use ol 1bsse weseis,

The Cimoup deses not hokd eny secumed asseiz of the thics party as ol Deceinber 310 2024 and December 30, 2021

Fioanciol nseels and labilties (Sez paga 51

he :I_u]f volue of Poonend assets and finansial Dakilities s atated: 2t the value that the financial inetriments 2re
convertible in present Tansnolicd among parnscs, excepl for Gl'.l:l'.pl:ljﬁl.'lf_'g- sale or disposal,
“he Group wses the fellowing inethods aod assnicplions to estimate the fair value;

The leir walue of cash con hand end shant-term deposits, fradeo roecivatles, trads payebles and other shom-tomn Habilities is

:q|_1'i1.:':|'.|:.1'|t to the kool vislue al Frese dlems heoiee s insironenls ars in shordtenm.

Thie fade valne of seearizies and listed financial iahil ties ia detzrmined o market valos.

Az o amhisted securiles investmsris Sl noles repslar teansactines, the fair walog i the average price proavided by 1hres
mdependont sezutitics company af the fizenl pericd end.

The fair value of sccuritics and financial investrnents whose @i valus can nol be Lirmly determined since there exisls oo
higa-liquid inackes for secucities, financial innestraents will he stated at bonk walee,

Ezxeept for ths above-mentions) il2rns, the e valne ol ather negsterr Toancial agzets and fingnaal Tiahilities Baven't

eatimated and determined otficizlly at Decomber 31, 2024 and Deccosmber 31, 223 However, 'lhe Bowrd of
Wlanagsmerts havs eativharcd its fair valus that are not material differones writh it book value et the end of the year.

YVIL ADIMTIONAL TNFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE CONEOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

. Nom-mnnetary transactions that atheet the cash ow sialement io the Infures Mol applcable.

2. Amount held by the coterprise buk unused: Mol appicable,
2, Purcliase and disposal of subsidiarics in the reporting period: %ot anpleaale.
4. Actual procesds from horrowings in tho veer Year 1024 Year 2023
- rocesds from boroedings ander normal agrcement SUE 0T 300,431 202, 203687733
3, Aciunl paymenl ol principal by the vear Year M4 Year 2023

- Papimead of peincipals voder notmal agreenent T, 131,801,468 21, 515,080,312

X, UL IR ORMATTON

1. Contingent linbilities, commitments and other informaticn

Aczording to Decision Mo, TEOQD-XPIIC Juied Murch 11, 20235, jssusd by e People’s Comminee of Done Mai
Provioce megardiag administrative penzlies for envivonmentzal proteeton vinlations, the Company was subjocted o 2
roometary fing wnd remedial measoces, eluding the emoporay sispenzion of operation: al the Jao O - Dong Truong
Teiarism Center tor a parind of 4.5 mentas,
As of Dezeriber 31, 2024, the origing. cost oF ranoible Gxed assets ot the Do O - Dong Trucne Touvism Center was
VERILY 178,547,085, 731, with aseomulatad |]E-J'|rE|::::|.til.'||'| of WKT 32086, 2015, 823, IEHI]!.tirIE. inma rael bool volas of YT
A0 L ATE908, The Company hed orovisionally recognized the orizinal cost of thess fixed azsets at the end of the
2020 sl vear (primacily bulldings, structerss, and other azsc12) based on the proposed semkement value, The
Company conducts business achivities sod assel maoagemend wnder an anouel od Lees arresmen. will the Slele
Thee IIE,]' Drang ™a: Touriam Ioint Stock Company. These 2gsers wers congtrachsd and upErfa-r]&'] from asscts acquired

il 3 sk Mle AT ATTVTODTI T ET gkl Thees Tolaf Tamwiene Tl Oda ole @7
II.I Lll.ln_“ AT uhb'Fl. I -ﬂ.l.l:u.':] IJ.E,.I'Z'F BT [T Ry BN s B B S R k1 LAALLE LACH LU R A0 AT |-\_-|-||.|J|.|I.'-\.|J_'|'



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For Ehﬁ_;l";sn::.'r."_]w-'.l.r rrraied Dooomhey ,‘!_.l'l 2024 Llpsiee MAED Fe fﬁ.:__ﬁ-.nr_'.r_w.'.-'.?' madeed Dhenomboapy a4, LG {nii- FAD

1. Contingent liabilities, commitments and ather intormation (Cont.) 3. Relaled parly transsedions (Cont )

The Cormpany is correnlly working wilh relawmt go boecities (o determine the appropriste course of action for the

; 3 : ; Iy F N ; Jw.l Inepme of (e Beard of Dircetors, Board of management, Beard of Supecvisors, and Chicl Avconntant
steramencionod assets and has not vet asscesed the petential cconomis impaiemert arising teom this event. Tha Compary

Cammild o |‘\I\:l:|‘.'lg|'i!?'.il'lgI iy incureed lnsses -:i[_-.'l.;::-l:-“-:.‘-‘.]'lfq_'} aree all .:-'|'|'|i_ga-.li:1'n$ willy slate aelhoriHes ane fnalized, - The Board of ﬂin:l:-lurs. Buard of management, and Chief Acconntant

= Accordng o Cificial Letter Mo, 5CDCTVASELITC dated Januacy 15, 2025, [ the Minisisy of Traasport - First amd Last name Fosition Year 2024 Yoar 2023
Vislnegm Expresswey Administrahion regerding soludons for addeessing difficulios and obsizmeles in BOT wansporindion Tritn Mhu Haang, : Clhairman | 927,121,600 2,264,195, 175
~1t'n|a~1:s' For BOT pro‘ecis proaceed tor saely teomination and stzte capitz] pavoent arangameants, invedtors ard eeadit- Meuven Xuan Quang Gener] Direolor 2310 RTE 000 1563950, 782
';-.-|1=.'1|:r mg hanks as :r..,q_llln_;l Ly sharc TLEpTLs 1|::-|'|1L'-. it accurdsnes wilh the dircclives of the ':Lﬂnljmg Giowermmstl as : y ; .
sated i Mol Mo, 27008V PCP (escluding Juan Ierest urad profits Do e proposed seulesmenl vatus), The =ble Hanyan Van Ehang: Daputy Crenesal Dirse.or 177,073,259 £ 0,245,450
capital amount prapesed for payment muost be celowialed and determined. I5 investors or credit-providing hunks propuse Fharm ki The ' Trzpucy Creneral Trrasnr LR 20,000 SOa6 252 KET
additiona’ suppart measures, My must elesrly stare 1z reasons, hesis, &nd prinsiples far suct support, &5 well #s specity Weuven Xuan Clong Leputy Cizneral Direen 1,25 ,520,500 LATHTSR000
the i‘:j-;lllu.’.:mlqb'uppﬁlt value (i any) for the Admivistation to consolidate and eepod 1o the compeleol authorities for Tliam Thanh Onang Thoputy Gl Diimcos 05234000 534,387,000
crmslderan.

: . S Y u uLy G al Lritee: ¥, T ;

Aeoording o the Company's Propozssl Mo, 020250 -CTAN dated Janware 20, 2025, regaiding selations for u_J'-.l i LAt RepuL {Jmtm_l ey BA0,000,600 SR EICR), X
sl Benal s cmned ovhstiscles an Lhe TVONT mvesilmen| ]1'r|_|‘5-u-:.'l [or s rapowalion and ||pt=||'.|.."|u ol NI..IJ_EIJHLII_ Highw.'l:.- ';lll gl Dhoi H'—'[L?';'- CL'IDL'IE. Plember of Board of Dirscior 1,Z72,54K),50 1,343 300 204
Emld4000 - KmS0 880, submitsd fo the Yistnam Uxpresswey Administeation, the Company propossd the following Wi Tion Trung, Thapraty Graeral [Higean i R TN T8, 500, 108
itcins, wl'!in:h wore agroed upam t:-u?,:'.'-':nn the Campany, the Invosoor |:I:I-I'|!‘II.'II'[EI.ETI'.|. Erl:l tl'_u:: ‘-"it-‘..'l':il.m I_-:En'. Sk Bi Tien vuang {Zl'.icT:'.ﬂ.n::muu‘mﬂ 385,000,400 145,185 545
Commescial Bang for ndvstesy and Trade - Mhon Trach Branch, a3 recordad in the warking minates dared SNovenyher <, -

2134 Twinl 11,407 534,004 13,007,004,509
i, Subwit o the commdare cathoriiies for aopeoved af T eevly farmirention of i TOT WERT pecgacd e, ail ee - Hoard of Supervisors Voar 204 Vear 3033
':'e'm'.:- clfocaling avpraxismately FND J R0 8ilion faost calowlared wntil Julv 31 20240 fo pails the lagitiaate expenses
_;l';;r ‘u:'mz,r:.,_r.l:l:g the N NTRd _Irrh'.:.'r“'r_! semdrard, The _|"'.-'---_lr.lrﬂ-:r_'u:.iI TR anl comaaond |'.l|' g -'.l.n.l.lnr.en!r.i'l.-' | R B -{i"']l'- Lafdfe Boord of ELI.:IEr'r'i.LriJPJ G'T"_DI:II:I,I:{ID EU,UU:'.UUU'
GLaclides F0% of egodiy profiir onod J080 of the owsfunding foar interass that vemaing wnpolc e fo the pfu_.'au Foiking Tatal 67,000,000 50,000,000
FEVARLT STLMOOR.

Z Fropoge o the Fleinom Drpresswoy cdminisfration vepor! fo the comosdlent wadforitiey lo aoprove o risk-sharing 3u.2 Sigmilicant trunsactions aod balances with ey management personnel and individuals related to key management
meechmdan nelade 3% af the ourstanding lean inferest thar vemaivs uxpeid due o fhe project lacking reveimg persanmel

. Ll f NE i 5 ! e & & i 3 b s EX = =

sespeevtin for (e eveedif looe swed B0 invest fn the BOT NHRD profect in the proposed ¢ 0NN [ sl btk Biate for the Hivek amnd Fistsne Rulntionship

contraet rermination: The profeed anderprise ovaytor shall peodpde 5000 of the pquity profify in the propased eweral fie r————

Individouls related Lo

Sty penpened Ly tepmliiode Mg pvolect conirac! aligod Fofacliedive.”
ko menagomaent personnel

FAs. Toar Thi [luyven Trang

— e r————

2. Bubsequent events Conlen (s ol

Acoording w Dezision Mo, YEWH-XPHO dated Warch 11, 2025, issucd by the Poopics Committcs of Trong e First and Lost mismne Eransactions Year 2rid Year 143
Province tegembing sdminsical ve petalties in the field of enviromunensal peoechiod, he Compaty 5 subpect o e

; i : d g e et e ; : : . Mg Toan Thi Tosven Trang Rarrowings 31009 040 v
nenaltes and remedizl measurzs stuted in Section 1 o Contingent iabilites, Commitments, and Other Minaneial -
Inforoation menlomed above, ' Buunwings

repayinenl 1, G5 1Lad L 00

Offiginl Letter Mo, S5/CBCTYVH-KHTC doree Jenuory 15, 2023, from the Ministry of Transport - Victmam Exprosswooy
b e ; : ieaaine dieli: : et oy el i Irterest 336,038,205

Sabvisivalivn mepadiog soluticys T addvessing diMenltes wel obzlacles o BOT bapspuerlalion preess, aod Lig

Company’s Proposal Mo, 020250V -CTAWY datsd Juouary 20, 2023, un resalving dillicullies wnd obstacks in the BOT

irvestient peajact for he rencwation and usgiade of Mariznal Highweay 97 (szefion Kol d+H000 - K 5HE397, submitied

Liahilitics o relatod patics are aresented ir tho payables seecion nf notes VA0

by 1o Wictnam BExpressveay Adminisizabion, huve been presented in Mote X1, . 4. Presentatiom of segment asset, revenue and consnlida bed ﬂpemtlug resiilt
p : : The Crauns Taned of Manameament deturmine: Shat § fhe Clrmunls mepnnrmnsst decisons fs basod wriman il
j.' .I.{.fl“TE{J -l:ra m’ tila“mﬂ!n"! I. ‘-'1:.‘— L L P '-l.l AL r\.J-\.- J.-\.ll. l."IJI.E 'l.l'I. -H.I.\.- UJ L'!.Il.l'J I.I.|.I.-\.I.HI.=H.-I.I.I.|..JI. R LR P LS R L e L PIJJIJH—IJIT
i . L on the type of products or services provided by the Group tether than an the copraphic ainwhicl it poovides with
Ja. Transecrions end belonces witk kaop marnarenent members and aividualy relietaid to b2y managenient mienehors ; P 3 P by ; = & & I H

produsts, seevizes, As arcsul, the Gronp's majorsegmant repedt is by besluess sector,
Koy managemont imem>2i inclede: members of the Board of Dircctars and menbors of the Exseutive Doard {TBoard of

g, cliel avooulEod), Delividoels selaled b ey vmmrpgescl prewbers o clese wembers of fe key
management members’ lamilies,

The Company does not penerat sales wransactions and provide sorvices 10 koy managemant memiers and dividuals
relites lo key manspement mosmbers

Ocher rremsactions with key managzaent members and individusls related o key munagement members are s follows:



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e the froal ey anded December 37, 2034

Lo Vadlk

1.1 .‘rlnjiflr sepaenl reporfing: by business scetor

4. Segment repork by bosiness sector in the fiscal year 2004

Incadia stateitenl s e scal weur 2024

, e Group mukes ssgment repom by Gusincss scotor: Petraleam irading

division, Lol stafer, Kook exploiing exd processing division, Constrizction division, Social housing busincss devision
end acher servizes, The Grroup analyzes 12 revenie and costof goods sold as tollows!

e hors

Petroleurn rading division

Rock sxplodliog aml processing division
Corstractinr divisior

Toll manzpement and collection I:|.1‘.1‘-'|1|.'H'|
Tourist und reshnmnt servioe division
Crher sectors

Takal

Kot revenue

355120092, 600

32425 Ba9. 502
T A29.031,173

Cost of goods sold
33,365 380 650
33 LET ROE 308

437014,143,243

Ciross profil
2146702 824
(556 453 M)
Gonid BRT, G2

SO6,TIGNTA,816  T48.530,626,447 357,814.368,360
1,541, 0050,078 28, 788,075,110 (9.247.825,302)
19,732,944,059 11,705,548,318 8,027,395,741

1,111,580,082, 180  602,787,492,002 418,802.490,178

h. Segmend reporl by bociness seclor in e fseal year 2073

Income stakemen. o he Oscal wear 2223, dhee Group oeles sepment report by baginess secior: Petrolenm ading
divzion, Toll safion, Kock exploiting and processing division, Construction division, Social hewsing busizess devision

and other services, The Grous analyzes e pevencs aod eost of gonds sold as follows:

HeCTors

Fetraleurn Lrvding diviskon

Fnek explniing and precessing divisian
Cnnstrctinn division

Toll manazement end collzction division
Tourist omd ~espuranl servise divison
Other sestons

Tkl

4.2 Melimar seprmeal repacting by pengraphicn] regisn

r'llr:mﬂ llrl’!lﬂt
LETART O

Clost ol gooads selid

29,806,551 ,673

el revenue
A0303,573,535

40.7R5,915.279 34,567, 194,091 6.21%.731,138
252,377, 762,427 168,933,830,656 63.443,211,771
442.734.123,545 142,413,928 f54 330,020,194,59]
12.479,159,143 39,658, 119,41% (778,940,274
A 07,315,580 3,733,001,174 1,174,344 712
R14,380,319,865  403,5012,605,665 AL0,875,624,200

Tha Creong hag produesion plants and toll collcetion srations focsted in the sam: tervitory, whizh is Dong Mei provinee.
These are depecdest upils, produciog and lreding services o Dong. Mai and neighiboriog areas, The Boad of
tanagerient is aware thet there sre no d'fferences repprding risk and econemics benelts among segmenls by
pengraphical reginn, Theeafore, it does rat presant segment “apast by gengrapsical repinn.

5 Information on going-concern operation: The Grovp will costinge its operation in the Zutare

Lhangr val, Mareh 28, 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANC

For the fiwal vear exded Desember 31, 2024

Findd: BNO

Y., Tangible lized assers

ihers Total

Hlice Bl U illlllml 14

Transportation &
Lacilities

Machinery &
2qquipmend

Buildings &
structures

Trems

Origimal cost

0107, 664 570 S30 216,729 345

3,028 643,327

32541 R6R

gt

T RO BTG RIS

a3z

205,063,263 24]

G, 508,34
$A18 345,080

3

1
o

1

{pening halanec

15,452,741,342
JIBRE 332 112

3,136,062, 727
e

Merws prmefioe

Ropurencte of leased arrets
Sele arnd Leayedoren

(Fimanoe Leasef

(11,898,332.172)

554,669, 470,687

(11.808,232.112)
208,201,325 968

10,105 G650

3,028,663 337

154.006.045,031 1:0,328, 871,791

Clozing balance

Accumulbated depreciation

312.42,186,535

47 D70 450 137
1078 38002

63

N e

..|
5

50,128

2%

53,842

_,
a3

118

58,506, 876,800

1

HE

(]

8,

wi
[En]

»

-

11677

==

ﬂpu:n'ing Balanec

21,642,.592,433

]
I

(7 664,62

J.7

FAT6SIL ST

4, 330,835,402

e
v

i
i

G487 T4

Depreciation during (he year

4 820,835,402

Heprronaze of leared aazars
Stde qrnd Lecveback

rFinanee Loosa)

{4.820,835,402)
334.064,779,270

A4 820 8B55,402)
165,273,828.377

45,55 8,050,055

2AR0.740.515

& 820,00 8 a4

-
e

33,326,132, 465

Closing balanes

Met hool valoe

234,704,542,510
220,604 691,417

5.433

1:124.12

a

TH.534,559

8,104, 188,024
13,502 853,327

=

46,368,186 441
42,227 407 59

120,979,278,05
113,680,812, 1404

Ciprening halance

20 149 614,521

13,812

479

(Zlosing balznee

* Ending net book value of tangibie fixed azset: pledaed/memeeged as oan security: WML 34923 000 007

* Ending original costs of rangiole fixved nascta—fully doprociated but still fn use: WL 320,407,473,4534.
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